AGENDA
City of Monroe

LEGAL & REGULAR SESSION — AUGUST 13. 2024, 6-:00PM
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS CITY HALL

I ROLL CALL AND DECLARE QUORUM:

I: INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MS. WOODS:

1II: - COMMUNICATIONS & SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Mr. Harvey

2. Mrs. Ezernack
3. Ms. Woods

4. Mr. McFarland
5. Mr. Muhammad
6. Mayor Ellis

IV: APPROVE MINUTES OF THE LEGAL AND REGULAR SESSION QOF JULY 23. 2024-
{(PUBLIC COMMENTS)

V: PRESENTATION:
NONE.

VI: PUBLIC HEARINGS:
NONE.

PROPOSED CONDEMNATIONS:
(Public Comment)
NONE,

VII: ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF BIDS:
{Public Comment)
Noene,

VIII: RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTE ENTRIES:
1. Council:

Public Comment:

(2) Adopt a Resolution establishing procedures for the confirmation of heads of departments and
further providing with respect thereto. (W oods/McFarland)

(b) Adopt a Resolution confirming the appointment of Sarah M. Smith to the Board of
Commissioners for the Southside Economic Development District and further providing with
respect thereto. (McFarland)

(c) Adopt a Resolution granting an exception to the Open Centainer Ordinance to Isaac King-
Justa Cowboy Rodeo Association for the Bayou Black Open Rodeo pursuant to Monroe City
Code Sec. 12-231 D. (Open Container Ordinance), and further providing with respect thereto.

(d) Adopt a Resolution granting an exception to the Open Container Ordinance to Advancion
Charity for the annual United Way Golf Tournament pursuant to Monroe City Code Sec. 12-231
D (Open Container Ordinance), and further providing with respect thereto.

(¢) Adopt a Resolution granting an exception to the Open Container Ordinance 1o Tyrone
Dickens (K9 Outreach Blues Concert at Chennault Park) pursuant to Monroe City Code Sec. 12-
231 D. (Open Container Ordinance), and further providing with respect thereto.

(f) Adopt a Resolution granting an exception to the Open Container Ordinance to the City of

Monroe for Rollin’ on the Riverfront pursuant to Monroe City Code Sec. 12-231 D. {Open
Container Ordinance), and further providing with respect thereto.

1



2. Department of Administration:

Public Corﬁment:

(a) Consider an Application by Michael Riley dba The Monroe Bayou, 5400 Operation
Rd., Monroe LA 71203 for a New 2024 Class A Alcoholic Beverage Permit. The Monroe
Police Department has no disqualifying records and Sales Tax has been approved. (Distance
Report Cleared, Cert. of Occupy Cleared)

3. Department of Planning & Urban Development:
Public Comment:
None.

4. Legal Department:
Public Comment:
None.

5. Mayor’s Office:

Public Comment:

(a) Adopt a Resolution approving an agreement with the National Main Street Center, Inc., for
$90,000 in funding for the Thriving Communities Program Capacity Building Subgrant Program
and further providing with respect thereto.

(b) Adopt a Resolution authorizing a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with Isaac King d/b/a
Justa Cowboy Association and further providing with respect thereto.

6. Department of Public Works:
Public Comment:
None.

7. Department of Community Affairs:

Public Comment:
None.

8. Police Department:
Public Comment:
None.

9. Fire Department:
Public Comment:
None,

10. Engineering Services:

Public Comment:

(a) Adopt a Resolution approving Amendment No. Eight (8) to the Professional Services
Agreement between the City of Monroe and Burmns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.,
related to the Monroe Water Treatment Plant Expansion and Improvements Project and further
providing with respect thereto.

(b) Adopt a Resolution approving Change Order No. Fifteen (15) for the Water Treatment Plant
Renovation and Expansion Project and further providing with respect thereto.

(c) Adopt a Resolution accepting as substantially complete work done by Max Foote

Construetion Company for the Water Treatment Plant Renovation and Expansion Project (Phase
2 of 2) and further providing with respect thereto.

BREAK IF NEEDED:




IX: INTRODUCTION OF RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES:

Public Comment:

(a) Introduce an Ordinance declaring certain property in the Monroe Ajr Industrial Park no
longer necessary for public use and authorizing said property to be sold at private sale to Ochsner
LSU Health System of North Louistana and further providing with respect thereto.

X: RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES FOR SECOND READING AND FINAL  ADOPTION
AND SUBJECT TO PUBLIC HEARING:

Open Public Hearing/Public Comment/Close Hearing:

(a) Finally adopt an Ordinance Repealing Ordinance No. 12,219 (Video Bingo Tax Rededication)
and further providing with respect thereto. (McFarland)

Open Public Hearing/Public Comment/Close Hearing:

(b) Finally adopt an Ordinance Repealing Ordinance No. 12,220 (Special Tax Election) and
further providing with respect thereto. {McFarland)

Open Public Hearing/Public Comment/Close Hearine:

(c) Finally adopt an Ordinance Repealing Ordinance No. 12,225 (Purchasing and Bidding
Procedures) and further providing with respect thereto. (McFarland)

QOpen Public Hearing/Public Comment/Close Hearing:

(d) Finally adopt an Ordinance approving a two-year extension of the existing Ambulance
Services Agreement with Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. and further providing with respect
thereto.

Open Public Hearing/Public Comment/Close Hearing:

(e) Finally adopt an Ordinance adopting the authorized Millage Rate(s) and providing for the
Levying of Special and General Taxes for the City of Monroe for the year 2024 and further
providing with respect thereto.

Open Public Hearing/Public Comment/Close Hearing:

(f) Finally adopt an Ordinance approving a lease between the City of Monroe and Pilots for
Patients at the Monroe Regional Airport and further providing with respect thereto.

Open Public Hearing/Public Comment/Close Hearine:

() Finally adopt an Ordinance authorizing the City of Monroe to take Corporeal Possession of
and sell to Kevin Lee all rights, title, and interest that the City may have acquired to Lots 11 &
12, Square 21, Alexanders Addition, and that portion of an alley revoked in book 1334/673, ( no
situs) Dick Taylor St., District 4, Ouachita Parish, Monroe, La, by Adjudication at Tax Sale
dated June 4, 2018, and further providing with respect thereto.

XI: CITIZENS PARTICIPATION:

XII: ADJOURN.



City Hall, Monroe, Louisiana
July 23, 2024
6:00p.m.

The Honorable Chairman Juanita G. Woods, called the meeting to order. She then asked the clerk
to call roll.

There were present: Mr. Harvey, Mrs. Ezernack, Ms. Woods, Mr. McFarland, & Mr. Muhammad
There was absent: None.

Chairman Woods announced that a quorum was present, and that the Invocation and the Pledge
of Allegiance would be led by Mrs. Ezernack or her designee.

The Invocation was led by City Engineer Mr. Morgan McCallister.

COMMUNICATIONS & SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS:
(1.) Mr. Harvey had no announcements.

(2.) Mrs. Ezernack welcomed everyone to the meeting, and she said she is glad to see them here.

(3.) Mr. McFarland welcomed everyone to the meeting, and he said he is glad everyone is here to
get involved in City government. He thanked everyone that came out to his first Community
Meeting. He said it was well attended, and he received a lot of feedback from the constituents. He
noted his second meeting will be on August 12% somewhere Downtown. He said he hopes one of
the businesses would allow him to have a meeting there. He said he is looking forward to meeting
and greeting all and to hear their concerns.

(4.) Mr. Muhammad stated his goal tonight was to say in the month of July the City hasn’t had a
muzder but unfortunately there was one Saturday in Foster Heights. He said there is a situation in
Foster Heights the City needs to get a grip of and a lot of murders have taken place in that
community. He said the Senior Citizens Academy is still going on at Benoit and he thanked all
that are participating in the acadenty. On another note, he said he also had a successful Community
Meeting. He said they covered a lot of topics and had a chance to hear from the citizens. He said
they are going to continue to keep having meetings to bring the citizen’s voice back to City Hall.

(5.) Mayor Ellis welcomed everyone to the City Council meeting.

(6.) Ms. Woods stated the Council has a full agenda tonight and a lot of things to be talked about
and addressed. She asked everyone to respect the opinions of others, she said she will recognize
everyone, and keep comments to a minimum. She said you will only get one opportunity to share
your comments on a given topic and during the Council participation the public will not be allowed
to talk again on that particular subject. She said the Council wanted to keep the meetings decent
and in order while at the same time allowing individuals to talk about issues involving the City.
On another note, she said she had a Community Meeting that was well attended, and the meeting
will be once a month on the 3™ Wednesday at 10am at the Powell Street Community Center.

Upon motion of Mr. Harvey and seconded by Mrs. Ezemack, and the minutes of the Legal and
Regular session of July 9, 2024, were unanimously approved. (There were no public comments.)

Mr. McFarland stated that it is proper that an agenda be approved before the Council approve
minutes. He said he noticed the City Council always approve the minutes and don’t have a motion
to approve the agenda. He said the Council need to get things back into prospective where it needs
to be concerning the approval of the agenda. He said the City Attorney wanted to add some things
to the agenda tonight and those things should be added at the beginning of the meeting. He said
when the agenda goes out the Council need a line jtem that says approval of the agenda.

Mr. Brandon Creekbaum, City Attorney, noted there is nothing in the Council Rules and
Procedures that requires the approval of the agenda at the beginning of the meeting. He said it is
a practice that somebody has recognized, and that is something the Chair can institute. He said
until there is a rule specified there is some flexibility there and he said if there is a rule he is not
aware of it but until that time it is up to the Chair.

Ms. Woods noted the Council will take that up outside of the meeting.



Mr. McFarland noted the Council should look at adding that because the meetings shouldn’t be
all over the place. He said if the Council approve the agenda they have a structure to follow.

PROPOSED CONDEMNATIONS:

The following condemnation were considered:

1. 2925 Jackson St. (D4) Owner — Lucy Dale Wilford (Estate), Bt AL C/O Ella Gibson Notice io
show cause was served. Photographic evidence was presented. There was no one present. Upon
motion of M. McFarland, seconded by Mr. Harvey and wnanimously approved, the building was
condemned, and the property owner given 30 days in which to bring the structure into compliance
with the Code or demolish the Structure and clean the Iot. (There were no public comments.)

Ms. Stacy Newbill, Code Enforcement Officer, stated that this property is a dilapidated structure,
and it was brought to Environmetal Court on April 23, 2024, it was deemed blight and a nuisance.
They are asking the property be condemned.

Mr. McFarland wanted to know of this was brought to the Council or the Court.

Ms. NewDbill noted Environmental Court.

2. 108 Malvern St. (D5) — Owner — Anthony Guillory Notice to show cause was served.
Photographic evidence was presented. There was no one present. Upon motion of M. Muhammad,
seconded by Mr. McFarland and wnanimously approved, the building was condemmned, and the
property owner given 30 days in which to bring the structure into compliance with the Code or
demolish the Structure and clean the lot. (There were no public comments.)

Ms. Newbill stated this a dilapidated structure, and it was brought to Environmental Court March
26, 2024, it was deemed blight and a nuisance. They are asking the property be condemned.

Mr. Muhammad wanted to know if there was any contact with the owner.
Ms. Newbill said no sir.

3. 4102 Lee Ct. (D4) — Owner — Woods Family Estates, LL.C Notice to show cause was served.
Photographic evidence was presented. Upon motion of Mr. McFarland, seconded by Mr.
Muhammad and unanimously approved, the building was condemned, and the property owner
given 30 days in which to bring the structure into comphance with the Code or demolish the
Structure and clean the lot. (There were no public comments.)

Ms. Newbill stated this a dilapidated structure, and it was brought to Environmental Court March
26, 2024, it was deemed blight and a nuisance. She said she spoke with the property owner today
and if they are given 30 days they will demolish the property on their own.

4. 3710 Polk St. (D4) — Owner — Pearlie Irby and Danny Lenard, ET AL Notice to show cause was
served. Photographic evidence was presented. There was no one present. Upon motion of Mr.
McFarland, seconded by Mr. Harvey and mnanimously approved, the building was condemned,
and the property owner given 30 days in which to bring the structure into compliance with the
Code or demolish the Structure and clean the lot. (There were no public comments.)

Ms. Newbill stated this a dilapidated structure, and it was brought to Environmental Conrt March
26, 2024, it was deemed blight and a nuisance. They are asking the property owner be given 30
days.

Mr. McFarland said he is glad the City trying to clean up District 4 and he motion to condemn the
property giving the owner 30days

5. 1109 Griffin St. (D3) — Owner — Barbara Ferguson (Estate) & Evion Taylor (Estate) Notice to
show cause was served. Photographic evidence was presented. There was no one present. Upon
motion of Ms. Woods, seconded by Mr. McFarland and unanimously approved, the building was
condemned, and the property owner given 30 days in which to bring the structure into compliance
with the Code or demolish the Structure and clean the lot. (There were no public comments.)

Ms. Newbill stated this is z dilapidated structure, and it was brought to Environmental Court March
26, 2024. They are asking that the property owner be given 30 days.

Ms. Woods wanted to know if there was any contact with the owner.

2



Ms. Newbill said no ma’am.

ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF BIDS:

(a) Upon motion of MR, McFarland, seconded by Mr. Harvey and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8745 accepting D&J Construction Company, LLC’s agreed upon base bid for the
Monroe Regional Airport Taxiway D Construction Phase 1 Project and further providing with
respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

Ms. Woods stated she received a few calls on this item and if the City ever thought the Council
would let twelve million dollars go back to the federal government they were sadly mistaken. She
said the Council 1s about moving the City forward and making sure the Council is doing the right
thing.

Mr. Muhammad noted the City must get another airline and there are a lot of people who travel to
Houston, TX for medical reasons and they fly. He said it is very inconvenient to fly from Dallas to
Houston. He wanted Mr. Charles Butcher, Airport Director, to work diligently to attach another
airtine to the City.

Mr. Butcher noted he is working on it.

RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTE ENTRIES:

Council:

(a) Upon motion of Mr. Muhammmad, seconded by Mr. McFarland and approved to Passover
confirming the appointment of to the Board of Commissioners for the Southside Economic
Development District and further providing with respect thereto.

Mrs. Ezernack motion to appoint Mr. Lamon Woods and seconded by Mr. Harvey.

Mr. Roy Heavenly, Monroe Chamber of Commerce, stated Mr. Woods is their appointee. He said
he sent a bio.of Mr. Woods to each Counciimember. He said Mr. Woods is a lifelong resident of
Monroe, and he started real estate investing as a part-time job then went to full-time. He said they
have over 100 properties and a lot of those are in South Monroe. He said when he talked to M.
Hill about the appointment he said it would be important to get someone with real estate investment
knowledge on SEDD and the Chamber Executive Committee voted on him.

Mr. Muhammad stated he has a letter from the SEDD Treasurer-Secretary Roosevelt Wright and
on behalf of SEDD. He noted the Dhaliwal family is deeply invested in the future of South Monroe.
He said the 76 stores and the Now&Save stores represent an investment of millions of dofars. He
further stated even though Mr. Dhaliwal’s 3 year term has expired he desires to continue to serve
and according to the by-laws he will continue to serve until he is replaced by the Council. He stated
the letier wanted the members of the Council to recognize Mr. Dhaliwal invaluable contributions
to his continued importance of the SEDD and take no action to replace him.

(The Chairman called for the vote: Mr. Harvey aye, Mrs. Ezernack aye, Ms. Woods nay, Mr.
McFarland nay, and Mr. Muhammad nay.)

Mr. Creekbaum noted that Mr. Woods was one name on a list of four and if it is the Council’s
pleasure to take no action he thinks that may be a separate motion.

Mazs. Bzernack noted it is her understanding this is the Chamber of Commerce position and
obviously they must feel as if Mr. Dhaliwal is no longer their appointee. She wanted to know how
the Council plan to remedy that particular aspect of it.

Mr. Creekbaum noted whatever the Council’s pleasure may be; he said he needs to make sure the
Council appropriately dispense with the item before moving to the next item to have a clear
demarcation. He said the SEDD Statute simply state the Monroe City Council shall appoint a
nominee from a list submitted by the Monroe Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. Muhammad noted the Council have voted and the Chamber can come back with another name
if that is there pleasure. He asked that the community support Mr. Dhaliwal because he has done a
lot in the community, and he is doing an excellent job on SEDD. He said there was another attempt
prior to the new Council for him fo be replaced but they are trying to put SEDD together properly.



Mr. Heavenly noted the Chamber had their appointee picked back in June. He said M. Tony Little,
SEDD, called and stated SEDD would support their pick if they waited for the new Counci! to
vote. He said Mr. Dhaliwal has done a fantastic job and the Council all have appointments for the
SEDD that they can appoint him too. He further noted the Chamber have three and one year terms
that people rotate off of and the Chamber is not saying that Mr. Dhaliwal did anything bad. He said
the Chamber felt that Mr. Woods would be their pick for this time, and he waited because he
respecied the Council.

Ms. Woods stated the Council would move forward with the agenda.
Mr. Creekbaum noted the Council would have to Passover or remove it from the agenda.

Mr. McFarland said the democrat process on this matter is if there are Councilmembers that want
to offer the other three names allow them to offer those three names. He said the Council would
vote and that would be the pleasure of this Council.

Ms. Woods noted the names are Mr. Corbin Legg, Mr. Mike Abrams, and Mr. Chris Lewis.
Mr. Muhammad motion to Passover the List of Nominees seconded by Mr. McFarland.

Mrs. Ezernack wanted to amend the motion to Passover until the first Council Meeting in August.
She said obviously the board needs a member to do the business of SEDD and the Council should
bring it back as soon as possible.

Mr. Mubammad stated Mr. Dhaliwal has been serving and he desires to continue to serve. He
further stated the SEDD members wrote a letter asking the Council to let Mr. Dhaliwal continue
to serve.

Mr. Creekbaum noted he doesn’t think another Councilmember has the ability to unilaterally
amend a motion without the Council person’s consent. He said Mrs. Ezernack proposed an
amendment to the motion and it’s if Mr. Muhammad is willing to accept the proposed amendment.

Mr. Tony Little stated he did ask Mr. Heavenly to wait until the new Council were seated and this
itern was originally supposed o0 be on the last agenda. He further stated the appointment belonged
to the Chamber by Statute and he thought this item would be pass overed and be addressed at
another meeting.

Mr. McFarland noted the law states the end result is here with the Council and the Council have
the final say so. He further noted the Monroe Chamber have three other names and the Council
gave an opportunity to offer up the names.

M. Little stated this is not appropriate to be done in the middle of a meeting and his silence is not
that he doesn’t have an opinion on it.

Mr. Roosevelt Wright, SEDD, stated the letter the Council have comes from SEDD and he said
there is a large Indian business comumunity in South. He said Mr. Dhaliwal’s family represents
about 15 large businesses with millions of dollars invested in South Monroe. He further stated
some of the plans SEDD bave coming up will count on Mr. Dhaliwal to get things done. He said
Mr. Dhaliwal has the resources and connections with other Indian businesses to get them done. He
said SEDD was asked to let this come before this Council and now they are asking the Council to
follow the Statute which the Chamber has the right to recommend somebody, and the Council also
have the right to turn it down. He said if the Council turns it down Mr. Dhaliwal will continue to
serve until his replacement is named by the Couneil.

(The Chair called for the vote to Passover item (a))

Mr. Muhammad stated SEDD hasn’t functioned properly for years, and the Council is trying to put
SEDD properly in place to get things done in South Monroe. He said in his opinion M. Dhaliwal
is the most vatuable person with SEDD and why take him off when he has all the stores in South
Monroe.

(b} Upon motion of Mrs. Ezernack, seconded by Mr. Harvey and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8746 confirming the re-appointment of Cedrick Hemphill to the Monroe heritage
Preservation Commission and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public
comments.)




{¢) Upon motion of Mrs. Ezernack, seconded by Mr. Harvey and umanimously approved
Resolution No. 8747 appointing Juanita G. Woods to the Interstate 20 Economic Development
Corporation and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

{d) Upon motion of Mr. McFarland, seconded by Mr. Muhammad and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8748 appointing Verbon Muhammad, Sr. to the Monroe Capital Infrastructure
Commission and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

{¢) Upon motion of Mr. McFarland, seconded by Mr. Harvey and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8749 appointing Rev. James E. Jackson, Sr. to the Interstate 20 Economic
Development Corporation and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public
comments.)

There being no objection from the Council and there were none, the Chair requested to switch the
order which the agenda items are listed and moved item (f) to item (a).

() Upon motion of Mr. McFarland, seconded by Mr. Muhammad and approved Resolution No.
8750 repealing Resolution No. 8719 (Interstate 20 Economic Development Corporation Articles)
and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.) (Mz. Harvey & Mrs.
Ezermack Nay)

Mr. Harvey stated the changes were made in the best interest of the community and not for any
kind of political gain. He said ultimately he wanted the board to succeed, and this item is at the
Council’s pleasure.

(The Chair proceeded with item (a) on the agenda.)

Department of Administration:
(2) Upon motion of Mrs. Ezernack seconded by Mr. McFarland and unanimously approved

Resolution No. 8751 approving a Fiber Construction Agreement with AT& T Services, Inc. for new
fiber construction services within the City of Monroe and further providing with respect thereto.

Mr. David Aubrey, President of AT&T Louisiana and Mississippi, stated they have been invited to
collaborate with the citizens of Monroe to bring high speed internet and broadband AT&T fiber at
hundred percent to the community. He said this is different than anywhere else in the two states he
serves as president, and this will be the first collaborative opportunity both public and private
where they serve hundred percent of the residents and businesses across an entire city. He said they
will work not only on the Northside of town but definitely include South Monroe and be a partner
that will make the City proud. He said this means not only bringing additional technicians but
bringing jobs, provide services, and provide the speeds that no other competitor particularly right
now in this market would bring fiber to the home.

Mr. Ezernack thanked Mr. Aubrey for responding to the City’s RFP and she said this is an exciting
project for the entire City of Monroe.

Ms. Woods thanked Mr. Aubrey for all they are doing and if anyone has visited on the Southside
of Monroe it’s almost like being in rural part of the community.

Mr. Muhammad thanked the Council and the Administration for putting this to gether as well, He
wanted to know if this will help with the data plans.

Mr. Aubrey said absolutely, whatever they offer anywhere else in the State or anywhere else in this
particular region they would offer it across the market. He said he rates will be very competitive
and they have plans as low as $30 that would give a hundred megabits of speed.

Mayor Ellis noted he doesn’t need to explain to the families what proper connection to the internet
means today with telehealth for our seniors if they can’t leave their home. He said the City saw
what played out during the pandemic with families trying to learn and educators at home trying to
host meetings. He thanked the Council for allowing this work to happen and to be able to be the
thought leader in this space and be the first at something that other communities can kind of model.
He further noted it goes to show the mindset of the community and the wiilingness of the Council
to be able to drive something like this to work and show what a true public-private partnership can
be. He stated at the forefront of this being affordability, equity, and understanding that where we
start the work is just as important as how affordable it is to the residents. He said the community

2



allowed the City to be able to collect data and when the Council members are asking the
community to participate in community meetings that is why it is so important. He said this is the
foundation the City is laying for future investment, and we all realize broadband connectivity is a
necessity in our communities.

Mr. McFarland said he know the Council haven’t taken the vote yet, but it seems as they’re all in
favor. He said he had a wonderful conversation with Mr. Aubrey, and he thanked him for what he
is doing with and for the City.

M. Christopher Orange Sr., 3901 Old Sterlington Rd., recognized the new Council members and
he stated he wanted to speak about the agreement with AT&T being a cautionary tale. He said
when talking about broadband access and high speed at $30 plus a month obviously you’re not
going to get that type of high speed for that type of investment. He said one of the issues he had
with AT&T coming here is the same issue he had with Starlink. He said they were stopping a lot
of folks from getting the actual speed and he said 13 years ago CenturyLink brought him here with
a similar situation with investments from the State and millions of dollars. He stated CenturyLink
was supposed to build products that were going to make internet access more affordable, backup
systems, and network fail up. He said for all practical purposes no Ionger exist in the Monroe area
and he said with this investment he caution the City to make sure to have a fail over. He said with
a simple patch upgrade that nearly destroyed about 850 million internet connected and business
folks. He said if one internet system goes down it’s tested there’s another network that’s tied to it.

Ms. Kenya Roberson, Northeast Louisiana Black Chamber of Commerce, said she is very excited
with AT&T, and she has gone back and forth with them with things of interest for business,
community, and residents. She said they impressed and wowed her through commitment and
engagement. She noted they are not just willing with the community but also with the youth. She
further noted they insured her that they are going to do some major things here and will be inclusive
as a City. She said on behalf of the Northeast Louisiana Black Chamber she is in favor.

Legal Department:

ADD-ON: Upon motion of Mr. Muhammad, seconded by Mr. McFarland and unanimously
approved to add on a Resolution authorizing the City of Monroe to participate in the Kroger
National Settlement related to the Opiod Epidemic and further providing with respect thereto.
(There were no public comments.)

(a) Upon motion of Mr. Harvey, seconded by Mr. Muhammad and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8752 authorizing the City of Monroe to participate in the Kroger National
Settlement related to the Opiod Epidemic and further providing with respect thereto. (There were
no public comments.) (There were no public comments.)

Department of Public Works:

(@) Upon motion of Mr. Harvey, seconded by Mr. Muhammad and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8753 approving Work Authorization No. 6 between the City of Monroe and Garver
LLC for the Taxiway D Construction — Phase 1 Project at the Monroe Regional Airport and further
providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

Mr. Muhammad stated he noticed Mrs. Rowell would be the representative on the resolution for
the taxiway and in the first resolution for the taxiway it just says the City.

Mr. Creekbaum noted on contacts with the FAA grant agreement they typically request the Mayor’s
signature, and they keep it more generic to just say city representative. He further noted the work
authorizations the City typically designate Ms. Rowell as the signer of those documents.

Mr. Muhammad wanted to know if normally the Mayor would be the representative.

Mr. Creekbaum said any State and federal funded projects the State and federal entities ‘want to
see the Mayor’s signature.

(b) Upon motion of Mr. Muhammad seconded by Mr. McFarland and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8754 approving a Mowing and Litter Maintenance Agreement with the Louisiana
Department of Transportation and Development from July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025, and further
providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comuments.)



Mr. Muhammad wanted to know if this agreement has expanded.

Mr. Creekbaum said this is a renewal of an agreement that the City renew every year and the
proposed mileage is 42 or 41.97 miles the same as last year. He said it’s on State highways whether
divided or undivided and interstate roadways. He noted this is the exact renewal the City has been
maintalning.

Engineering Services:

(a) Upon motion of Mr. Harvey, seconded by Mrs. Ezernack and unanimously approved

Resolution No. 8735 approving Change Order No. One (1) for the Texas Standifer Trunkline
Repairs Project and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments. )

(b) Upon motion of Mrs. Ezernack seconded by Mr. McFarland and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8756 approving Change Order No. Two (2) for the WPCC — Equalization Basin
Dredging Project and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

(¢) Upon motion of Mr. Harvey, seconded by Mr. Muhammad and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8757 accepting as substantially complete work done by the Lemoine Company for
the WPCC — Equalization Basin Dredging Project and further providing with respect thereto.
(There were no public comments.)

(d) Upon motion of Mr. Harvey, seconded by Mr. Muhammad and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8758 approving a Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement with the Louisiana
Department of Transportation and Development from July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025, and further
providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

(e) Upon motion of Mr. Muhammad, seconded by Mrs. Ezemack and unanimousiy approved
Resolution No. 8759 approving a Master Services Agreement with Neel-Schaffer to provide
engineering and other related Professional Services and further providing with respect thereto.
{There were no public comments.)

Mr. McFarland wanted to know if the City will employ this company as needed and if they will
bill the City hourly.

Mr. Morgan McCallister, City Engineer, said correct, and he noted hously and per task. He said
just standard in line with the City normal master services apreement in the back of the
documentation there is an itemized list for a schedule of rates.

Mr. McFarland wanted to know what is the main function.

Mr. McCallister noted this particular service involve reviewing of invoices such as the Kansas
Lane Extension project federally and State funded. He said traffic studies associated with the
previous resolution approved for signal maintenance agreement, outside professional services that
the traffic engineering department are not currentty licensed to do, signal modification, and build
out within the department.

Mr. McFarland wanted to know how many people in Mr. McCallister’s (Engineering) Department.

Mr. McCallister wanted clarification if Mr. McFarland is teferring to the engineering department
or traffic engineering.

Mr. McFarland stated the City will sub this out as needed and he is looking at the engineering
budget and what is allocated. He questioned if there’s no one that can do any of these services.

Mr. MeCallister noted traffic studies no sir. He said they do not have anyone on the staff that is
capable of performing those services. He said there are additional services, licenses, and
certifications outside of a professional engineer. He further noted these individuals are well
equipped, certified, and experienced to perform.

Mz. McFarland stated with the multitude in the department it seems as if the City would hire those
that would have these expertise. He said it is problematic they will have to take another look at the
budget. He said the City have to make sure that everything is above board and those that are in the
department can do this work. He said he has a problem with the multiplicity of people in the
department and those in the department should have some type of engineering degree. He said



whatever their pay is it should equal up to what they can offer the City. He said the Council need
to have meeting concerning the budget. He said he know there was a financial meeting tonight but
there needs to be an open meeting. He said to go back through the budget that was previously
approved by the former Council and take an in depth look at the amount of money.

Mr. McCallister noted for the Council’s observation last year the City paid this particular
professional service provider right at $60,000 to perform those services. He said if he hires
someone at that rate within the engineering department say $60,000 would be the base salary, plus
pension, and insurance roughly $85,000. He said the City will not find a certified professional
engineer that is equipped and has the experience to do this for $85,000. He said he is running the
engineering department and divisions building out those budgets. He said he is adding positions in
the traffic department because he felt as though they needed more help. He said building out the
traffic department to respond properly to issues with the City. He said he thinks the work Neel
Schaffer has done for the City has proven to be sufficient and more than adequate. He said the
engineering department manager are not building out a department to design those projects.

Mr. McFarlaﬁd noted with all that being said again the Council may need to take a look at the
department and he is not saying hire addition too, but they may need to remove some that aren’t
qualified. He said the Council need to take a look since the Council has the last say concerning the
budget.

() Upon motion of Mr. Mr. Muhammad, seconded by Mr. Harvey and unanimously approved
Resolution No. 8760 approving Change Order No. One (1) for the WPCC — Equalization Basin
Aeration System Project and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public
comments. )

Mr. McFarland said he thinks all the Council concerns were pretty much addressed on this matter.
He said the City will have to put something in place concerning the days and he believe that the
Council have a very good dialogue concering this matter. He said the Council will move forward
tonight but it may not happen like that again.

INTRODUCTION OF RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES:

(2) Upon motion of Mr. Harvey, seconded by Mrs. Ezernack and unanimously approved to
troduce an Ordinance approving a two-vear extension of the existing Ambulance Services
Agreement with Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. and further providing (There were no public
comments.) - '

(b) Upon motion of Mr. Muhammad, seconded by Mr. McFarland and unanimously approved to
introduce an Ordinance adopting the authorized Millage Rate(s) and providing for the Levying of
Special and General Taxes for the City of Monroe for the year 2024 and further providing with
respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

(¢) Upon motion of Mrs. Ezernack, seconded by Mr. Muhammad and unanimously approved to
introduce an Ordinance approving a lease between the City of Monroe and Pilots for Patients at
the Monroe Regional Airport and further providing with respect thereto.

(d) Upon motion of Mr. Harvey, seconded by Mr. McFarland and unanimously approved to
introduce an Ordinance authorizing the City of Monroe to take Corporal Possession of and sell to
Kevin Lee all rights, title, and interest that the City may have acquired to Lots 11 & 12, Square 21,
Alexandars Addition, and that portion of an alley revoked in hook 1334/ 673, (no situs) Dick Taylor
St., District 4, Ouachita Parish, Monroe, La, by Adjudication at Tax Sale dated June 4,2018, and
further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

There being no objection from the Council and there were none, the Chair requested to move items
(e, f, & g) to the top of list.

(¢) Upon motion of Mr. Muhammad seconded by Mr. McFarland and approved to introduce an
Ordinance Repealing Ordinance No. 12,219 (Video Bingo Tax Rededication) and further providing
with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.) (Mr. Harvey & Mr. Ezemack nay)

Mr. McFarland stated the Council talked over, begged, and pleaded with this Ordinance but it fell
on deaf ears. He said the Council will move forward tonight infroducing the ordinance to repeal it.



Mrs. Ezernack noted she doesn’t understand what the objection is. She said is it the content of it
or is it just the Council acted on it, and you weren’t apart of the action.

Mr. McFarland stated this ordinance is rededicating the funds and the City hasn’t established who
the money will go too. He said the Council have talked about how some employees only get ten
dollars an hour. He said the City have to do some soul searching before rededicating funds to give
to the Mayor to give to whoever he desire. He said the Council need to have that conversation and
they will move forward again with the first reading. He said it’s not because they wasn’t here. He
said it is because they don’t like the fact it is an open check, and they don’t know who is going to
receive this. -

(f) Upon motion of Mr. McFarland, seconded by Mr. Muhammad and unanimously approved to
introduce an Ordinance Repealing Ordinance No. 12,220 (Special Tax Election) and further
providing with respect thereto. (Mr. Harvey & Mrs. Ezernack nay)

Ms. Paticia Tumer, 315 Marshal Drive, wanted to know what a Special Tax Election mean and
what it does.

M. Brandon Creekbaum stated in order to call for a tax election there must be approval by the
governing body to call the tax election. He said the City’s capital infrastructure tax is pearing the
end of its useful life. He further stated in June of this year the Council passed an ordinance calling
for an election to renew the capital infrastructure tax for a period of 25 years. He noted the

introduction of the repeal, if' it passes would rescind the call for that special election for the capital
infrastructure tax.

Ms. Tumner wanted to know if this was for mostly infrasteucture.

Mr. Creekbaum noted the tax itself identifies seven enumerated categories that it is used for. He
said without the list in front of him in jts present form he thinks its streets, drainage, and certain
public facilities.

Mr. Turner wanted to know are there specific streets identified within the ordinance.
Mr. Creekbaum said no, it is categories.
Mr. Turner wanted to know if the Council decides where the money goes.

Mr. Creckbaum said that is correct and the tax would be renewed again. He said the renewal is an
election it has to go before the public for a vote if the election happens. He said if it was extended
the projects the tax fund generate a pot of money that the City usually bonds against and the bond
fund is what is used to go out and do the projects.

Mr. Muhammad wanted to know if this has been sent to Baton Rouge.
Mr. Creekbaum stated he doesn’t know, and the City have a bond counse] that is assisting.

Mr. Muhammad noted the reason the Council is asking this be repealed is because in June it was
brought, and it was confusing. He said this is for the City’s benefit 1o make sure the language is
proper. He said there is an election in November, so it doesn’t have to be in December.

Mr. Creekbaum stated it is too late for the ballot in November and there are datelines to get on

certain ballots. He said the November election is the primary and December is a general election
if there are any runoffs or things like that.

Mr. McFarland wanted to know how many years will this tax expire.
Mr. Creekbaum stated it will expire in 2029.

Mr. McFarland wanted to know what is the rush of having an election of a tax that won’t expire
for another five to six years.

Mrs. Stacy Rowell, Director of Administration, noted it is nearing it’s useful life and it is the
bonding capacity that allows the City to use the money for additional projects. She said the City is
about at capacity with the large projects on the books right now. She further noted in order to move

new projects forward the City would like the capacity to be able to go out and bond additional
money.



Mr. McFarland noted in so many words that the bond attorney can go out and get these bonds so
the City can have the money early. He said you add 25 years the money will be gone, and he
doesn’t understand why the City is trying to rush this as if the City is broke. He further noted he
believes there is a resolution that states that if there’s an amendment to an ordinance that it should
be brought back to a first reading. He stated the previous Council changed it from a forever tax to
a 25 year tax in one meecting that was substantial. He said that can be challenged that the City
didn’t bring that back to be advertised to the citizens of Monroe and that would be problematic for
them down the road. He said they are bringing this back so it can be done right. He further stated
they placed this election on an off election day knowing that the majority of the citizens of Monroe
will go out to vote during the presidential election and they had an opportunity then to place it on
that particular date.

Mrs. Ezernack commented that she thinks the way Mr. McFarland reiterated what Mrs. Rowell
said was incorrect. She said the bonds and the City ability fo collect the tax expires in 2029,
however, if the City want to bond a project the City need to have more than five years left of the
availability to pay it back and that is what the tax help the City do. She said the City would not be
able to bond a new project and the money in there now is already committed to projects in progress.
She noted it is important to be able to bring this tax forward to constituents to ensure the City will
be able to do large projects. She further noted the City will not be spending money they don’t have
and if the tax doesn’t pass we will have no more capital infrastructure committee, funds, or the
ability to bond a project to correct the record.

Mr. McFarland stated if you have Council members in opposition it will not pass. He said it is best
to do it the right way and we won’t have any problems down the road. He said one of the main
issues was that it went from a forever tax to 25 years.

{g) Upon motion of Mr. Mubammad, seconded by Mr. McFarland and unanimously approved to
introduce an Ordinance Repealing Ordinance No. 12,225 (Purchasing and Bidding Procedures)
and further providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.) (Mr. Harvey & Mrs.
Ezernack nay)

(The chairman continued with the introduction of items a, b, ¢, & d)

RESOLUTIONS AND_ORDINANCE FOR SECOND_READING AND FINAL ADOPTION
AND SUBJECT TO PUBLIC HEARING: :

The Chairman Open the Hearing and seeing no on come forward the Hearine was Closed:

(a) Upon motion of Mrs. Ezernack, seconded by Mr. Harvey and unanimously approved Ordinance
No. 12,226 authorizing the City of Monroe to take Corporeal Possession of and sell to Chandra
Melancon all rights, title, and interest that the city may have acquired to Lot 4, HI & J s
Rosenheim’s Resub. Lots 11,12, 13, & 14, Sq. 6 Alexanders Addition, Ouachita Parish, no situs —
Jackson St., District 4, Monroe, La, by Adjudication at Tax Sale dated June 11, 2019, and further
providing with respect thereto. (There were no public comments.)

The Chairman Open the Hearing and seeing no on come forward the Hearing was Closed:

(b) Upon motion of Mr, McFarland, seconded by Mr. Harvey and unanimously approved
Ordinance No. 12,227 authorizing the City of Monroe to take Corporeal Possession of and sell to
Chandra Melancon all rights, title, and interest that the city may have acquired to Lot 6, Square
11, Unit 6, Humphries Addition, Ouachita Parish, 3810 Segrest Mercy St., District 3, Monroe, La,
by Adjudication at Tax Sale dated June 12, 2019, and further providing with respect thereto. (There
were no public comments.)

Citizen’s Participation:

(1.) Mr. Brandon Wilhite, 1306 S. 9™ Street, thanked the Council for everything that they contribute
to the city. He also appreciated the condolences that were given about the passing of his father,
Foster Wilhite Jr also known as PPW. He stated that his father passed away on July 3", but what
his concern was after the 911 call was made, he noticed that the fire department did not show up.
He expected that all responders would have been present during their time of crisis in order to
ensure the best chances of their loved one surviving. He is seeking information as to why all of the
emergency responders were not there during their crisis.

(2.) Ms. Minnie Miller Eleam, 1607 Sunset Drive, is concerned about her water bill being $300.00
dollars for the last three months. She reached out to the water company, and they stated that there

10



was a glitch in the system. She is asking how long it will take them to rectify this situation. She
said that she is a teacher, and she doesn’t have time to continue chasing behind the water company
to fix this error. She strongly suggests that something is done about this matter.

(3.) Mr. Franz Hill, 1700 Auburn Avenue, congratulated the new members on the Council. He also
gave his appreciation to the Mayor towards Ms. Roshonda Gospel and all the hard work that she
does in this City. He said he was completely impressed about her knowledge of the things that go
on in the city.

(4.) Ms. Kenya Roberson, 116 Glenwood Drive, announced their 3% Annual Back to School event
on August 3, 2024, at the Mt. Zion Life Center from 9:00am~1:00pm. She stated that they have
partnered up with the Omegas and the Renaissance Movement Committee and they are requesting
all of the Council Members to attend and show their faces at this event to volunteer. She said that
it is a blessing to be able to serve the community and be able to help a family in need with their
children’s school supplies.

(5.) Mr. Steve Cheek, 601 K. Street, shared his appreciation to the Public Works Department for
clearing the street in their neighborhood. He also wanted to express his unhappiness with the
closure of the lane on N.6* Street. He said that the cones are an eye sore, and it feels as if it is an
inconvenience creating a bike/pedestrian lane on N.6® street.

(6.) Ms. Mondrian Douglas, 5513 Long Drive, said her civil rights were violated, and she would
like for the Council to look into and address her concerns about law enforcement in the City of
Monroe.

(7.) Rev. Dr. Ambrose Douzart, 191 Street, is now the Chapter President of the Quachita NAACP.
He said that he came to thank the Mayor and Council members that attended the banquet. He states
that the NAACP strives to do better, and he would like for the City and them to work together. He
thanks them again for coming and for the donation they received at the banquet, and be said as
long as he is the President, they are going to do things on the up and up.

(8.) Ms. Marie Brown, 1002 8.5 Street, said the reason why they ask so many questions is because
they read the agenda items so fast, they can’t understand or know what it is about. She stated that
if Council changed the rules, then she expects them to read the agenda item in its entirety so that
the citizens can know and comprehend what they are voting on. All she wants is clarity and an
understanding of the She mentioned last meeting that she wanted the Council to come and ride
along with her to see what she has been complaining about in her neighborhood. She said that Mr.
Harvey and his wife did a ride along with her and they were able to see her grievances about the
neighborhood. She appreciated him taking time to do that with her.

There being no further business to come before the council, the meeting was adjourned at 8:31
p.m., upon motion of Mr. McFarland and it was seconded by Mr. Harvey.

Ms. Juanita G. Woods
Chairman

Ms. Carolus S Riley
Council Clerk

Ms. Tleana Murray
Staff Secretary

Mrs. Rachel Washineton
Couneil Coordinator

For extended details on the council meeting please call the Council Clerk Monday-Friday at
318-329-2252 to schedule an appointment to listen to the minute recording.

11



RESOLUTION

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE
The following Resolution was offered by Mr. /Ms. who moved for its

adoption and was seconded by Mr. /M.

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR THE CONFIRMATION OF
HEADS OF DEPARTMENTS AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT
THERETO.

WHEREAS, Section 4-01 of the Monroe City Charter (“Charter™) provides that, unless
otherwise specified by the Charter, the “heads of all departments czeated by or under this charter
shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to confirmation by the council, and shall serve at the
pleasure of the mayor”;

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish a process for nomination and
confirmation of all heads of departments, including provisions for the submission of such
nominations, the consideration of stch nominations, and other related matters,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
Lowsiana, in Iegal session convened, that:

Section 1, These procedures shall apply to the confirmation of appointees to heads of all
departments created by or under the Charter unless otherwise specified by the Charter or state law.

Section 2, The Mayor shall submit a nomination for appointment to a department head
position to the Monroe City Council no later than sixty (60) days after a vacancy in such
department head position arises.

Section3.  The Monroe City Council shall act on the nomination no later than thirty
(30) days after the nomination is received.

Section 4. If the City Council confirms the appointment by majority vote, the
department head so confirmed shall be eligible immediately to fill the position.

Section 5.  If the City Council declines to confirm the appointment by majority vote,
the Mayor shall submit a new nominee within sixty (60} days in accordance with the procedures
set forth herein, the City Council shall not consider any re-nomination of the disapproved nominee,
and the disapproved nominee shall be ineligible to serve in that department head position, on an
interim basis or otherwise, unless approved by the City Coungil.

This Resolution was submitted in writing and was then submitted o a vote as a whole, the
vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of August, 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK



RESOLUTION
STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE

The following Resolution was offered by Mr. /Ms. who moved for jts
adoption and was seconded by Mr. /Ms.

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF SARAH M. SMITH TO THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE SOUTHSIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, La. R.S. 33:2740.51 authorizes the City Council to appoint three members to
the Board of Commissioners of the Southside Economic Development District (“Board”) for a
three-year term;

WHEREAS, Preston Hopkins was appointed to the Board by the Monroe City Council on
January 10, 2023 (Res. No. 8420) to serve a three-vear term;

WHEREAS, Preston Hopkins has resigned, effective August 7, 2024;

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint Sarah M. Smith, a qualified elector of
Ouachita Parish, to the Board of Commissioners of the Southside Economic Development District
to fill the unexpired term of Mr. Hopkins.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
Louisiana, in legal and regular session convened, that Sarah M. Smith, be, and is hereby, appointed
as a member of the Board of Commissioners of the Southside Economic Development District for

the unexpired term ending on January 9, 2026.

This Resolution was submitted in writing and was then submitted to 2 vote as a whole. The
vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of August 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK



RESOLUTION

State of Louisiana
No.

City of Monroe

The following Resolution was introduced by who moved for its adoption and
was seconded by

RESOLUTION GRANTING AN EXCEPTION TO THE OPEN CONTAINER ORDINANCE TO
ISAAC KING-JUSTA COWBOY RODEO ASSOCIATION FOR THE BAYOU BLACK OPEN.
RODEO AND TAILGATING PURSUANT TO MONROE CITY CODE SEC. 12-231 D (OPEN
CONTAINER ORDINANCE), AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, Isaac King-Justa Cowboy Rodeo Association applied to the Monroe City
Council pursuant to Monroe City Code Sec. 12-231 D, for a special event permit, “the Bayou Black
Open Rodeo and Tailgating” on the Civic Center Complex, scheduled for August 24, 2024 for the
purpose of obtaining an exception to the Open Container Ordinance for said event, and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of City of Monroe, Louisiana,
in legal session convened, that Isaac King-Justa Cowboy Rodeo Association, be and is hereby
granted a permit for a special event, “the Bayou Black Open Rodeo and Tailgating” on the Civic
Center Complex, scheduled for August 24, 2024. The security and crowd control is being
coordinated through the Monroe Police Department. This Resolution shall act as an exception only
to the Open Container Ordinance for said event Pursuant to Menroe City Code Sec. 12-231 D.

Resolution having been submitted in writing was the submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote
thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of , 2024,

CHAIRMAN

CITY CLERK



Carolus Riley

From: Kwasic Heclkard

Sent; Wednesday, August 7, 2024 4:19 PM
To: _ Carolus Riley

Ce: Melissa Thaxten

Subject: Bayou Black Open Rodea Tailgating
Attachments: Rodeo Tailgating permitpdf

Good afternoon,

This will need 1o be placed on the city council’s agenda for an open container exemption tetter. | don't
know if the certificate of insurance they provided the Monroe Civic Center covers the aicohol abitity. Melissa
would you please check to see. If not, they will need to have it added, 'm sure.

POLICE DEPARTMENT

CITY OF MCNROE

e USSR I PR o TR NSO P Fendi s py
ol Kwasic Heckard Putiic-Madin Relations
g SR 1 Ot [N u¥nd S i SR E R CREFTT ST o
Office. {318} 812-0388 Ol (578 Z37-7275



i
ACO#RD\ DATE [MMCDIYY YY)
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 08/01/2024

R 834

THIS CERTIFICATE 13 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY ANE COMFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFGRDED BY THE POLICIES
SELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S}, AUTHORIZED

REFRESENTATIVE CR PROBDUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATICN 18 WAIVED, subject ta the terms a2nd ¢conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confar rights te the certificate helder in fieu of such endorsemeni(s}.

PRODUGER Hearod-Lyons insurance Group EEE:':—{;W Blizabeth Brown FAX
1823 N Parkerson Ave Suite C (AL, B, gy 3375142153 | ZE ey, 3575142173
chWIey, LA ?0526 ADDRESS: e[izabeth@hIinsurancegroup.com
License §: 439408 INSURER(S) AFFORTNG COVERAGE NAIC &
msurera:  Western World Ins. Co.
INSURED INSURER B :
JUSTA COWROY ASSOCIATION INSURER € :
£924 INDIAN MOUND RD INSURER D :
SAINT FRANCISVILLE, LA 70775 INSURER E :
INSURERF :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NHUMBER: 9598493947377

REVISION NUMBER:

.}

THIS 8 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LESTED SELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TD THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERICD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY GONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BESCRIBED HEREM 15 SUBJECT TO ALE THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR AGDLISUBH FOLICY EFF | FOLICY £XP
1R TYPE OF INSURANCE sg | mnf POLICY NUMBER (MM YYY} | IMMDOYYYY LTS
A | X | SOMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABRITY NPF6138139 0872372024 | 08/26/2024 | EACH DCCURRENCE ] 1,000,000
o £ TED
| erams-mace OGoUR PREMISES {Eg occurrencey [ & 100,000
MED EXP {Any omie porson) ] 5,00&
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY [ § 4,000,080
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 2,000,600
X} poLicy e Lot PRODUCTS - COMPIOP ASG | 3 Included
OTHER: $
AUTOMGBILE LIABILITY COMBRED SINGLE CMT | g
&N AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per persan} | S
| owneD SCHEDULED -
AUTHE ONLY Aos BODILY INJURY {Por accident)| %
HIRED NON-OWNED PROUPERTY DAMAGE g
|| AUTOSONLY | AUTDS ONLY | [Per sccidant)
i §
UMBRELLA LIAE acelR EACH OCCURRENCE %
EXCESS AR CLAINSMADE ABGREGATE 3
DED l l RETENTICNS - [ 5
WORKERS COMPENSATION FER IS
AND EMPLOYERS' LABILITY Yin St | 52
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNSREXECUTIVE £.L. EACH ATCIDENT 5
OFFICERMENEBER EXCLUDED? NIA
{Mandatary in NH) E L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE §
i yes, describe under
DESERIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E1.DISEASE - POLICY LA | &
-
DESCRIPTION OF CPERATICNS | LOCATIONS F VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional R k= Schudule, may be Hf tore spaca 1s regquired}
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Monroe Civic Center
PO Box 123

MONROE, LA 71210-0123

| SHOULD ANY OF THE ABGVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVEREC IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REP

ENTATIVE

o

{EHB)

ACORD 25 {2016/03}

" &¥1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD nawme and logo are registered marks of ACORD  Printed by EHB on 68/01 2024 at 10:13AM




AO
f A AN

‘,‘é’_ éf ‘:-"}{.‘_5,.
FROM THE OFEICE OQF
MAYQR FRIDAY ELLIS

August 7, 2024

To Whom It May Concern:

It is my understanding that Justa Cowboy Rodeo Association will be hosting
an event, “Bayou Black Open Rodeo Tailgating” on Saturday, August 24, 2024,
from 12:200pm to 7:00pm. The event will be at the Monroe Civic Center located ot
4071 Lea Joyner Memorial Expressway, Monroe, Louisiana, 71201. Alcohol will be
served qt the event.

Justa Cowboy Rodeo Association will apply for the required special event
permit issued by the state. The City of Monroe has no objection to said activities.

Sincerely,
15
{ f”/"m
e
:
Friday Ellis
Mayor
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 318-329-2310
P.O. BOX 123 318-264-4892

MONROE, LA 71210 MONROELA.US



RESOLUTION

State of Louisiana
No.

City of Monroe |

The following Resolution was introduced by who moved for its adoption and
was seconded by

RESOLUTION GRANTING AN EXCEPTION TO THE OPEN CONTAINER ORDINANCE TO
ADVANCION CHARITY FOR THE ANNUAL UNITED WAY GOLF TOURNAMENT
PURSUANT TO MONROE CITY CODE SEC. 12-231 D (OPEN CONTAINER ORDINANCE),
AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the Advancion Charity United Way Golf Tournament applied to the Monroe
City Council pursuant to Monroe City Code Sec. 12-231 D, for a special event permit, “The Annual
Advancion United Way Golf Tournament” at the Chennault Park Golf Course, scheduled for
September 20, 2024 from 8am until 7pm for the purpose of obtaining an exception to the Open
Container Ordinance for said event, and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of City of Monroe, Louisiana,
in legal session convened, that the Advancion Charity United Way Golf Tournament be and is
hereby granted a permit for a special event, “The Annual Advancion Charity United Way Golf
Tournament” at the Chennault Park Golf Course, scheduled for September 20, 2024 from 8am until
7pm. The security is being coordinated through the Monroe Police Department. This Resolution
shall act as an exception only to the Open Container Ordinance for said event Pursuant to Monroe
City Code Sec. 12-231 D.

Resolution having been submitted in writing was the submitted to a vofe as a whole, the vote
thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of , 2024,

CHAIRMAN

CITY CLERK



Bl Baw 153}

3 E
ALY E @ POLICE DEPARTMENT | 700 woud Strest
ervermonmox 1 ©  CHIEF VICTOR ZORDAN e e e

Fax: 3B-525- 2510

To: Chief Victor Zordan
From: Cpl. Kwasic Heckard

Re:  United Way of NELA

To whom this may concern,

The United Way of NELA is hosting the Advancion Charity Golf Tournarment on Friday,
Friday, September 20, 2024, at the Chennault Golf Course. The event will be from 8:00
a.m.-8:00 p.m. Alcohol wilf be consumed at this event. They're expecting 300-400
participants for this event. They have already obtained their no objection letter tc apply
for the ATC permit for the event. | will have to get It placed on the city council’s agenda
for the open container exemption letter.

Respectfully subrnitted,
Cpl Heckard




E3

' kol

A i

\CORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE PST

. £ O5/2552024

1S CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A TIER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RHEH UPCN E CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THI

?ﬁg@?ﬁ?ﬁmi%sog?r AFFI%&%@I&( ﬁ_ %%%%L‘f AMEND, EXTEND QR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.
NSERA TE A CONTRALCT EETWEEN THE ISSUINS INSURER , AUTHORIZED

R PRODUCER, AND THE CTiFICATE HOLDER, = REPRESENTATIVE
MPORTANT: H tie carliticate Howmer 58 an AD0I T ONAL TS he policyd
SUBRDGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, cartain

T ave ADDICIONAL TNSUREE Srovisions or be sncorses. i
clicies may require an endorsement, A statement on this

serlificate dees not confer risghis to the cerlificate holder In Hay of such endorsementtss,
= L

PRODUCER © * Mass Merchandising Underwriing
f_ﬁtz t:is;;rﬁ;gsx %fvoal;p' e, }Emi e, By, 1-B00-426.2889 TAe na 10604595108
-MATL ) : - )
A ADOREES: infu@sportsinstrance-kk.com
Fort Wayne 1N 4680 o
CUSTOMERIR:; .. . .
. ) _ WSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIG %
INSURED INSURER A AIG Spadalty Insurance Company 26833
United Way of Northeast LA inc INSURER B:
1201 Hudson Lr -
Monroe, LA 71201 INSURER C:
A Member of the Sponts, Leisure & Entertainmant RPG INSURER B:
INSURER E-
. . _ ~ ISURER £
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: WO02705685 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED
NOTWITHETANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITICN OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPEST TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY 2E
ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 18 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF
SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED EY PAID CLAIMS.

WEEF YW —— FOOCYERE | POLGTEXF,
(TR TYPE OF INSURANGE {msa | wyp POLICY NUMEER | IMMIDDATY) | MMIDDIYRYY | Hmrs
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X IYAPGOUOIS34LBE200 § OR20/2024 CRIZ2024 | BAcH OCCUBRENCE 1,000,000
CLAMS- 1201 AMEDT 1201 AM  [HRRACE TP RENTES -
Bt GecLR PREMISES {Ea Occurence) $1,000,000
. “MIED ENP [Ary one person) 5,000
. - PERGONAL & ADY INILIRY $1,000,600
) ‘GENERAL AGGREGATE $5,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMT APPLIES PER: | ; PRODLCTS — COMPIOF AGG $1,000.000
rotiey [ 588 [TJwe PROFESSIGNAL LIABILITY '
UTHER: : i LEGAL LIAB TG PARTICIPANTS %1,000,600
AUTOMOBRELMBLTY | | i COREINE Eﬁ-n-&hmém_l_m I
LAY AT ? BODILY INJURY (Per parsen)
oy oS ApaED SCDILY INULIRY {Per acrident)
3 HIRED HON-OVWNED PERTT DR
AUTOS OMLY AEITOS oMLY :ifer accidenty
NOT PROVIDED WHELE IN HAWAI i :
UMBRELEAMRR | | GCCUR : ' EACH OGCURRENCE
| EXCESSLAB | CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE
~ loen || meTENTION I '
WORNERS COMPENSATION AND NIA j j —TPER OTHER
EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ___§ STATUTEL__E
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNERY Y1 El EACH AGCEIENT
EXECUTIVE OFFICERMEMEER
EXCLUDEDT {Mandatory In NH D et DSEASE ~EA FMPLOYRE
Iyas, deseribe sradfer DESCRIPTION -
O O ERATION ke o . i Bl CISEASE ~POLICY LIMT
A | MEDICAL PAYMENTS FOR PARTICIPANTS | SYAPGU001334486200 08202024 OH21/202¢  § PRIMARY MEDICAL
_1201 AM EDTE .1213‘[ AM EXGESS MEDIGAL . $25,000
DESCRIPTIGN OF GRERATIONS [ LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 104, Additional Remarks Scheduic, may be attachad if more space is raquirad) i

Sexua) Abuse Liabifity - $1,000,000 aggregate {inchuded above) f $250,000 each cccurrence {included above),

Legal Liability to Pardicipants {LLP) limii is a per occurrence limit,

Event Name: 12th Annusl Advancion Unkied Way Golf Toumament, Event Type: Event Date: 09202024 fo 08/20/2024

Evert Location: Chennault Park Golf Cours, 8475 Milthaven Rd, Monroe, Loulsiana 71203

The certificate holder is added as an additional insurad, but only for [ability caused, in whale or In part, by the acts or omissions of the named insured.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER T CANGELLATION _ _
Advancion Corporstion T TSHOULD ANY OF THE ABOV SCRIBED POLIGIES Bk CANCELLEL HEFG
35§aff_'§" erporEton THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL RE DELIVERED N
Stertington, LA 71280 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

(Co-promo“ter} AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Coverags is anly axiended to 1.8, everts and activities, .
* NOTHCE TO TEXAS INSUREDS: The [esuwrer for the purchasing group may not be subject o all the insurance laws and reguizfiions of the Shate of Texes

&0 & 18232015 ACORE CORPORATION. All rights reasryed,
ACORO 25 {2 } The ACORD name and oge are registered markes of ACORD




POLICY NUMBER: 9YAPGQ0013344858200

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 26 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED
PERSON CR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE
Name Of Additional Insured Person{s} Or Organizationis}
Advancion Corparation
350 LA-2

Starfington, LA 71280

Named Insured:  United Way of Nartheast LA Inc

information reguired fo conplete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in fhe Declarations.

A. Saction Il - Who Is An Insured is amended fo include B, With respect io the insurance afforded fo these

as an additional insured the person(s) or organization{s)
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to Hability
for “bodily injury®, "property damage™ or "personal and
advertising injury” caused, In whole or in part, by your
acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those
aciing on your behalf

1.  In the performance of your angoing operations; or

2, in connection with your premises owned by or
rented to you,

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additonal insured
only applies to the extent permitted by law; and

2. [f coverage provided o the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additiomal insured will not be
broader than that which you are reguired by the
contract or agreement to provide for such additional
insured.

additional insureds, the foliowing is added to Section HI
— Limits Of [nsurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured s required
by a coniract or agreement, the most we will pay on
behalf of the addiional insured is the amount of
insurange:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Awvailable under the applicable Limits of [nsurance
shown ir the Declargtions;

whichever is less,

This endorsemant shall not increase the applicable
LEmits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

CGE202604 13 @ Insurance Services Office, Inc,, 2012 Page 1 of 1




'2024_Advancian United Way Golf Tournament

Hello Fellow Gelfers and Fans of Fun!

It is time to make plahs for the 12th Annual ANGUS Chemical United Way Golf Tournament. Over
the past 11 toumaments, we have raised over $275,000 for the Northeast Lonisiana United Way! Last
year we raised over $26,000!

This was not possible without the voluntary support and donations from our sponsors. You made 2
huge difference in the success of the tournament and we are asking for your support again.

Just like previous years, we will have door prizes, a silent auction, and all of the food and drink you
could want! So mark your calendars! This year’s event will be on Friday, September 20, 2024 at
Chennault Park Golf Counrse in Monroe. The tounament will have 2 FLIGHTS with a shotgun
start at 8 AM and 1 PM. Prizes will be awarded after the tournament,

Included in this email is a copy of the registration form. Ihope that your company will consider
helping us raise funds for this worthwhile canse by making a donation to the tournament. As you are
aware, this is strictly voluntary. Donations can be in the form of sponsoring a team, donating door
prizes, or becoming a Title sponsor by selecting one of our Sponsor Bundles!

If you have any questions about spensorships or anything else, please call me, Adrienne Sharp (318-
663-5237), or Libby Adams (318-665-5379). The golf committee can also be reached by email at
asharpidiadvancionscisnces.com.

Ilook forward to hearing from you about your voluntary support of this community event and seeing
you on the course on September 20th.  Please respond as soon as possible; teams are reserved on a
first come first serve basis and the deadline for sign up is Wednesday, August 28th. Spots are limited
so please be sure to sign up early!

I know that together we will make this a successfid event again.
Sincerely,

Adrieome Slanp




FROM THE OGFFICE OF
MAYOR FRIDAY ELLIS

March 26, 2024

To Whaom It May Concern:

it 5 my understanding Advancion will be hosting a United Way Golf
Taurnaoment fundraising event on September 20, 2024, fram 800am untif 700
pm. The event will be located at Chennguit Park Golf Course, 8475 Milthaven

Road, Monroe, LA, 71203, Alcoholic beverages will be served at the event.

Advancionwill apply for the required speaciaf event permit issued by the state
The City of Monroe has no objection to these activities.

Sincerely,
Friday Ellls
Mayor
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 318-329-2310
F.O. BOX 123 318-264-4892
MONRCELA.US

MONBCE, LA 77210




RESOLUTION

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.

CITY OF MONROE

The following Resolution was introduced by who moved for
its adoption, and was seconded by

RESOLUTION GRANTING AN EXCEPTION TO THE OPEN CONTAINER
ORDINANCE TO TYRONE DICKENS (K9 OUTREACH BLUES CONCERT AT
CHENNAULT PARK) PURSUANT TO MONROE CITY CODE SEC. 12-231 D. (OPEN
CONTAINER ORDINANCE), AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT
THERETO. '

WHEREAS, Tyrone Dickens applied to the Monroe City Council pursuant fo
Monroe City Code Sec. 12-231 D., for a permit for a special event, “K9 Outreach Blues
Concert”, scheduled for Saturday, September 21, 2024 at Chennault Park at the stage area
inside the park. The exception is from 5:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m., there will be off duty
officers and private security; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Monroe, Louisiana, in legal session convened, that Tyrone Dickens be and is hereby
granted a permit for a special event, “K9 Outreach Blues Concert”, scheduled for
Saturday, September 21, 2024 at Chennault Park at the stage area inside the park. The
exception is from 5:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m., there will be off duty officers and private
security. This Resolution shall act as an exception only to the open container for said event
pursuant t¢ Monroe City Code Sec. 12-231 D.

This Resolution having been submitted in writing and was then submitted to a vote
as a whole, the vote thereon as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of
, 2024,

CHAIRMAN

CITY CLERK




R0 e 1550

PQLICE RDEPARTMENT 00 Wood Street
CHIEF VICTOR ZORDAN Monres, LA RS0 15a1

officer J18-339-F800
fope: 313252610

CHTY OF MOKROE

To: Chief Victor Zordan
From: Cpl. Kwasic Heckard

Re: K-9 Quireach (Blues Concert)

Sir,
Tyrone Dickens fs hosting o Blues Concert at Chennauit Park Saturday, September 21,
2024. The event is scheduled from 5:00-10:00pm. The event will be held at the stage area
inside the park. Alcoho! will be sold and consumed at this event. Thev're expecting 300
patrons to be in attendance. Dickens wants to hire two off duty officers for this event, He
will also have private security working the event. This event will need to be placed on the
city council’s agenda of the open container exemption letter. A no objection letter will be
needed to get the ATC permit for the event.

Respectfully submitted,
Cpl. Heckard



: Y &
ACORD
\-—-/

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE RATE QDDA

O7/18/2G24

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS LUIPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE PQLICIES
RELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If tha cerlificate holder is an ABDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER Mﬁgﬁ?“ Will Maddux
East Main Strect Insurance Services, Inc.  ENE, g (530) 477-6521 LIS Nax
Will Madelux | ADonEss; _Infoftheevernthelper.com
PO Box 1288 INSURER(S) AFFORLING COVERAGE NAIC £
Grass Valley CA 85345 misumen a ;. Lloyds Syndicats 2623 AA-1128627
INSURED  mismer e - Lioyds Syndicate 823 AA-1126623
K-8 Outreach INSURERC : ‘
cfo Tyrone Dickens | INSURERD ;
416 Lakeshore Dr INSURER &
Maonroe LA 71203 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NtMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS [8 TO GERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIDD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OF GONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 18 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS CF SUCH POLIGIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAYE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

If yos, degcribe undar
DESCRIPTION OF CPERATIONS balow

THEA TRODLSUSH] ¥ T
LRI TYEE OF INSURANCE S P POLICY NUMBER | M | n‘;&%‘gy%‘fn [ LS
R covuznmamsnm. LIABILITY i i EacH ggc%mENCE Ys 1.000.000
[ X camsce [ ocou D EGEaC TEIED T 160,000
: Hest Liquor Liahility : : t MED EXP {Any ore person) | § o000
A | Retail Lguer Liability Y | N | EF-FT1324-L3130081 09/21/2024 | 09/22/2024 | rersaneL s s0y bRy 15 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ! 1201 AM | 12:01 AM | GENERAL AGGREGATE & 2.000,000
POLICY .] 1 FEgr [ 1o PRODUCTS - coMpioe ace |5 2,000,000
! | DTHER: ; 3 Deduciible $ 1.000
; T COMETNED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOSILELIABILITY ! {Ea accidenty 5
ANY AUTC ; : BODILY INJURY (Perparson) | §
CWNED ! SCHEDULED ! .
AUTOS OMNLY E_WM AUTOS : : BODILY INJURY (Per accidant)| 5
™} HIRED Tt HON-OWNED ; PROPERTY DAMAGE 5
loud AUTCS ONLY L3 AUTOS ONLY i ; | #Per scetdonty
E $
T .
| UMBRELLALIAE :  gcour ! EACH OCCURRENCE $
i : EXCESS LIAB ! | cLAIMAZ-MADE ABGREGATE 5
H i i
ipED { | RETENTIONS i 5
| WORKERS COMPENSATICN : | PER i TOTH- ¢
| AND EMPLOYERS' LEARILITY vin i i ISTATTE ! _(ER. .}
ANVPROPRIETORIPARTMER/EXECUTIVE i E.L. EACH AGCIDENT ;
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDEDT D HIA =
[Mandatory In NH} ! E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE! §
<

i E! DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

|

b

H

Chennault Park

BESGRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS f VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Addifional Rematis Schedube, may ba atiached f more spaca s required)

[Certificate holder listed below is named as additional insured per aitached GG 20 26 04 13. Aftendance: 200, Everit Type: Concerts - Blues Musiz. Policy
lincludes 2 36 month Extended Reporting Period. Damage to Premises Rented {Other than Fire} included In the Each Occurrence Limit shown above. Location:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CARNCELLATION

City of Menroe
8475 Millhaven Rd
| Bonroe

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABQYE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED EEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELWERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

(i At

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

LA 71203

ACORD 25 [2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and loge are registered marics of ACORD



" Policy Number: EH-771324-0L3130081 CG 20 26 (Ed. 04/13)

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endersement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
Schedule

City of Monroe
8475 Millhaven Rd
Monros, LA 71203

informaticn required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations,

A. SECTION Il - WHO IS AN INSURED s amended fo include as an additional insured the person(s} or organization(s)
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to flability for "bodily injury,” "property damage” or "personal and

adverlising injury” caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on
your behalf;

1. in the perfortnance of your ongeoing operations; or
2. in connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

However:
1. the insurance afforded to such additional insured only applies to the extent permitted by law: and

2. if coverage provided fo the Additional Insured is required by a contract or agresment, the insurance afforded to

such additional insured will not be broader than that which you are required by the contract or agreement io
provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect o the insurance afforded to these Additional Insureds, the following is added to SECTION IH - LIMITS
OF INSURANCE:

If coverage provided to the Additional Insured is required by a confract or agreement, the most we will pay on behaif
of the Additional insured is the amount of insurance:

1. required by the coniract or agreement; or
2. available under the applicable Limiis of Insurance shown in the Declarations;
whichever is less.

This endarsement shall not increase the applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

@ Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012
CG 20 26 (Ed. 0413) {Page 1 of 1}



a2 ‘b.‘ }&
\f%-f‘gk
LA AVA NN
FROM THE QFFICE OF
MAYOR FRIDAY ELLIS

August 6, 2024

To Whom It May Concern:

It is my understanding that K9 Outreach will be hosting an event, “K9
Outreach Blues Concert” on Saturday, September 21, 2024, from 5:00pm to
10:00pm. The event will be held at Chennault Park located at 8475 Millhaven Road,
Monroe, Louisiana. Alcohol will be served at the event.

K9 Outreach will apply for the required special event permit issued by the
state. The City of Monroe has no objection to said activities.

Sincerely,
-}
f “%fﬂ?fm
Fridlay Ellis
Mavyor
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 318-329-2310
F.O. BOX 123 218-264-4892

MOMROE, La 71270 MONRGCGELA . US



RESOLUTION

State of Louisiana

No.

City of Monroe

The following Resolution was introduced by who moved for its adoption and
was seconded by

RESOLUTION GRANTING AN EXCEPTION TO THE OPEN CONTAINER ORDINANCE TO
THE CITY OF MONROE FOR THE ROLLIN’ ON THE RIVERFRONT PURSUANT TO

MONROE CITY CODE SEC. 12-231 D. (OPEN CONTAINER ORDINANCE), AND FURTHER
PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Monroe applied to the Monroe City Council pursuant to Monroe
City Code Sec. 12-231 D, for a special event permit, “Rollin’ on the Riverfront” at the RiverMarket,
scheduled for Saturday, September 21, 2024 from 5:00pm - 10:00pm for the purpose of obtaining
an exception to the Open Container Ordinance for said event, and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of City of Monroe, Louisiana,
in legal session convened, that the City of Monroe, be and is hereby granted a permit for a special
event, “Rollin’ on the RiverFront” at the RiverMarket, scheduled for Saturday, September 21, 2024
from 5:00pm — 10:00pm. The security and crowd conirol will be coordinated through the Monroe
Police Department. This Resolution shall act as an exception only to the Open Container Ordinance
for said event Pursuant to Monroe City Code Sec. 12-231 D.

Resolution having been submitied in writing was the submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote
thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of » 2024,

CHAIRMAN

CITY CLERK



E B Fox 1557
POLICE DEPARTMENT 700 Wood Srimet
Muarree, LA TIHOO88T

CHIEE VICTOR ZORDAN ot 5185293600
Fou B1G-2RE- 2570

EITY OF MONRGE

To: Chief Victor Zordan
Frem: Cpl. Kwasic Heckard

Re: 37 Annual Rollin on the Riverfront

Sir,

The COM s hosting the Annual Rollin’ on the Riverfront on Saturday, September 27,
2024. The event will be held at the Downtown River Market. They're expecting 300
individuals to attend the event. It's a community event so there may be more in
attendance. Alcohol will be sold or censurmed gt this event. The event is scheduled for the
hours of 5:00 - 10:00 pm. Check-in for participating vendors will begin at 3:30 pm. This
event will include arts, crafts, food, vendors, and a mocktail/cocktail competition. This
event will need to be placed on the city council’s agenda for the open container
exemption letter. They're hiring 4 off-duty officers for the event.

Respectfully submitted,
Cpl Heckard



; ?“%;% ’Fj
LKA\

FROM THE QFFICE OF
MAYOR FRIDAY ELLIS

August 8, 2024

To Whom It May Concern:

It is my understanding that City of Monroe will be hosrmg an event, “Rolling
on the River” on Saturday, September 21, 2024, from 5:00p.m. until 10:00p.m. The
event will be held at the Downtown River Market which is located at 316 S. Grand
St Monroe, La 71201, Alcohol will be served gt the event.

City of Monroe will apply for the required special event permit issued by the
state, The City of Monroe has no objection to said activities.

Sincerely,

/ ;f Jwﬁ“m

T Ve

Friday Elfis
Mayor

318-3292-2310
318-264-48922
MONROELA.US

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
P.C. BOX 123
MOMNMRQOE, LA 71210



CITY OF MONROE

TAXATION & REVENUE
CITY OF MONROE, LOUISIANA.
MAYOR- COUNCIL GOVERNMENT

MEMO

To: Carolus Riley
City Council

From: Tim Lewis
Director of Taxation & Revenue

Re: New Alcohol License {For August 13, 2024, Council Meeting}

Date: July 29, 2024

CLASS A — $500 RESTAURANTS (LIQUOR) CLASS E — $500 PRIVATE CLUBS
CLASS B ~ $500 CONVIENT STORES (LIQUOR}  CLASS G — $500 WHOLESALE (LIGUOR ONLY)
CLASS C ~ $75 [BEER ONLY) CLASS H —~ $100 WHOLESALE (BEER ONLY)

CLASS D - 560 {BEER — OFF PREMISES)

NEW ALCOHOL LICENSE

CLASS A (NEW) (1)

1. The Monroe Bayou
5400 Operations Road
Monroe, LA 71203

Owner: Michael Riley

CO —~ CLEARED
SALES TAX CLEARED
DISTANCE REPORT CLEARED



RESOLUTION

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE
The following Resolution was offered by Mr. /Ms, who moved for its

adoption and was seconded by Mr. /Ms.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE NATIONAL MAIN
STREET CENTER, INC., FOR $90,000 IN FUNDING FOR THE THRIVING
COMMUNITIES PROGRAM CAPACITY BUILDING SUBGRANT PROGRAM AND
FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT), through the Thriving
Communities program, provides no-cost intensive technical assistance to under-resourced and
disadvantaged communities to help identify, develop, and deliver transportation projects that
strengthen communities; and

WHEREAS, the City of Monroe was selected as one of 64 communities across the couniry
to be part of the Thriving Communities Cohort and was placed in the Main Streets Community of
Practice, which focuses on Tribal, rural, and small-town communities and the interconnected
transportation, community, and economic development issues they face; and

WHEREAS, the USDOT selected National Main Street Center, Inc. (“NMSC™) to serve
as a Capacity Builder, which provides technical assistance and subgrants to communities in the
Main Streets Commrunities of Practice; and

WHEREAS, the City applied for and NMSC approved a grant to the City of Monroe in
the amount of $90,000.00 to hire artists to engage the public in mobility safety planning for the
Downtown Art Alley to South Second corridor area by developing and installing murals; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to accept the grant and authorizes a designated city
representative to execute any and all documents necessary to accept and carry out the grant.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
in its legal and regular session convened, that a designated City representative is hereby authorized
to accept the Thriving Communities Program Capacity Building Subgrant Program funding in the
amount of $90,000.00 and execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the grant
agreement with the National Main Street Center, Inc.

This Resolution was submitted in writing and was then submitted to a vote as a whole, the
vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of August 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK



AT
\

Daank
A

National Main Street
Center

A ubsidizry of the N
National Trust for Historic Preservation

July 28, 2024

Meghan Risinger
400 Lea Joyner Memorial Expressway
Monroe LA 71201

The Department of Transportation (DOT)’s Thriving Communities Program (T'CP) Capacity
Building Subgrant Program: Grant to [City of Monroe]

Dear Meghan:

Your application for a DOT TCP Capacity Building Subgrant has been approved. This project is funded bya
federal grant from the Department of Transportadon (*DOT®) through the Build America Burean.
Acceptance of this grant is an indication of your willingness to conduct your project in conformance with the
following terms and conditions of this agreement (the “Agreement”) listed below:

1. Grant and Budget. The National Main Street Center (NMSC), Inc. (the “Grantor™) has awarded a
grant to [ City of Monroe] {the “Grantes” or “Subrecipient”) in the amount of $96,000.00 {Ninety
Thousand and 00/100 Dollars) of federal funds for the purpeses stated in Section 2 (the “Grant”), The
Official Award Notice for the Grant is attached as Exhibit A,

2. Use of Grant Funds. Grantee shall use the Grant solaly for the following purposes {the *Grant
Project™):

Hire artisi(s} to engage the public in mobility safety planning for the Downtown Art Alley to South Second
corridor area, by developing and installing murals.

a.

Axty changes in the purposes of the Grant Project must be approved by Grantor in advance, in
writing. Grantee should contact the National Main Street Center, Inc, (by email to Magdalena
Gillespie at mgillespie@mainstreet.org or by calling 737.295.1926) 1o discuss any proposed changes
to the Grant Project.

Unless otherwise agreed upon in writing by Grantor, Grant funds must be nsed 1o achieve the Grant
Project as described above and as otherwise outlined in the Grantee’s underlying DOT TCP Capacity
Building Subgrant Program application that was submitted for the Grant (the “Application”} and
the work, services, and deliverables described therein, incorporated by reference into this
Agreement.

The payment of funds to Grantee under the terms of this Agreement shall be contingent on the
receipt of such funds by the Grantor from the applicable federal funding source and shall be subject
to Grantee’s continned eligibility to receive funds under the applicable provisions of federal laws
and the Notice of Award. If the amount of funds that the Grantor receives from the federal funding
sourees is reduced, the Grantor reserves the right to reduce the amount of funds awarded under, or
to terminate, this Agreement., NMSC reserves the right to deny payment for Grantee’s expenditures
for allowable expenses where involces and for other reports are not submitted properly or by the
noted deadlines. .

3. Compliance with Laws.

.

b.

Grantee agrees to comply with all laws, siatutes, ordinances, orders, rules and/or regulations
applicable to Grantee, Grantee’s business, organization, and the Grant Project,

OM3 Circalars and Other Regulations. Grantee acknowledges that this Grant is subject to the
following Federal regulations which are incorporated by reference into this Agreement (full text can
be found at http:/ fwww.ecfr.gov):

i, Adminjstrative Requirements:> CFR, Part 200 — Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, in its entirety;

83 W, Jackzon Boulevard, Suite 350, Chicago, [L 80504-2584
& mainstrest@savingplaces.org p 312,610 5613 # 222588 8050 wwrw.nzinsireet.org



C.

ii. Determination of Allowable Costs: 2 CFR, Part 200 — Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Subpart E.;

ifi. Audit Requirements: 2 CFR, Part 200 — Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principies, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Subpart F.;

iv. Code of Federal Regulations/Regulatory Requirements:

1) 2 CFRPart 182 & 1401, “Government—wide Requirements for a Drug—Free Workplace”;

2} 2 CFR180 & 1400, “Non~Procurement Debarment and Suspension®, previously located
at 43 CFR Part 42, “Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (no proenvement)”;

3) 43 CFR18, “New Restrictions on Lobbying”;

4) 2 CFR Part 175, “Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 20007

5) FAR Clause 52.203—12, Paragraphs (a) and (b}, Limitation on Payments to Influence
Certain Federal Transactions;

6) 2 CFR Part 25, System for Award Management {www.SAM.gov) and Data Universal
Numbering System (DUNS); and '

7) 2 CFR 200.331- 200.333 “Subrecipient Monitoring and Management”;

8) 2 CFRPart 170, "Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation.”

Federal Funding and Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and Reporting
Subawards and Executive Compensation. ’

i. Grantee acknowledges that this Grant is subject to FFATA teporting requirements, as
applicable, and agrees to use the FFATA Subaward Reporting System located at
wiww.fsrs.gov.

ii. Grantee must report all subaward and executive compensation data pursuant to the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transpareney Act (FFATA) of 2006 and associate
amendments {P.L. 109-282, as amended by section 6202(a) of P.L. 110-252 (see 31 U.S.C.
6101 note)). Refer to www _fsrs.gov for more information.

Prohibition on Text Messaging and Using Electronic Equipment Supplied by the
Government while Driving, Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership on Reducing Text
Messaging While Driving, introduces a Federal Government—wide prohibition on the use of text
messaging while driving on official business or while using Governmeni— supplied equipment.
Grantee is encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving
company-owned or -rented vehicles. Grantee agrees to the certifications related text messaging
while driving set forth in Exhibit F.

Drug-Free Workplace Requirements. Grantee agrees to the certifications related to
prohibitions on trafficking in persons set forth in Exhibit F.

Prohibition on Trafficking in Persons. Grantee agrees to the certifications related to
maintaining a dreg-free workplace set forth in Exhibit F.

Seat Beli Provision, The Grantee is encouraged to adopt and enforce cn—the—job seat belt use
policies and programs for their employees when operating company—owned, rented, or personally.
owned vehicles. These measures include, but are not Hmited to, conducting education, awareness,
and other appropriate programs for their employees about the importance of wearing seat belts and
the consequences of not wearing them.

Grantee Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights.

i. This Federal Award and employees working on this finaneial assistance agreement will be
subject to the whistleblower rights and remedies in the pilot program on Grantee employee
whistleblower protections established at 41 U.8.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National
Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112—239).

il. The Grantee shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the
workforee, of emplovee whistieblower rights and protections under 41 U.8.C. 4712.



fii. The Grantee shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph {c), in all
subawards or subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold, 42 CFR § 52.203—17
(as referenced in 42 CFR § 3.008—q).

1. Conflict of Interest. Grantee agrees to avoid conflicts of interest in its responsibilities under or
with respect to this Agreement and establish internal controls that include, at a minimum,
procedures to identify, disclose, and mitigate or eliminate identified conflicts of interest including
but not limited to potential conflicts of interest that may arise in the procurement of supplies,
equipment, consiruction, and services as provided for under 2 CRF 200.318.

J- Prohibition on Certain Confidentiality Agreements. Section 743 of Division E, Title VII of
the Consolidated and Further Continuing Resolution Appropriations Act of 2015 (Pub. 1. 113-235)
prohibits the use of funds appropriated or otherwise made available under that or any other Act for
grants or cooperative agresments to an entity that requires employees or contractors of such entity
seeking to report fraud, waste, or abuse to sign internal confidentiality agreements or statements
prohibiting or otherwise restricting such employees or contractors from lawfully reporting such
waste, frand, or abuse o a designated investigative or law enforcement representative of a Federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

K. Compliance with ADA and ABA. The use of federal funds to improve public buildings, to
finance services or programs contained in public buildings, or alter any building or faclity financed
in whole or in part with Federal funds (except privately owned residential structures), requires
compliance with the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, and the Architectural Barriers Act (ABA). Work done to alter the property should be in
compliance with all applicable regulations and gnidance.

4. Agreements with Conivactors & Consultants. Agreements executed by the Grantee include the
contract provisicns set forth in Appendix IT to 2 CFR part 200, as applicable to the contract. The
Grantee must submit specific procurement documents for review to the Grantor prior to entering into
agreements with contractors and consultants, The documents include but are pot limited to
solicitations, specifications, contract agreements and any other document requested by Grantor.

5. Funding Documentation. Grantee shall deliver to Grantor all of the following prior to Grantor
disbursing any srant installments:

a. A completed Grant Application from Graptee, including 2 Project Budget (Exhibit B) and Project
Completion Schedule (Exhibit C);

b. A copy of executed contracts between Grantee and subcontractors for the Grant Project and/or final
pricing quotes as applicable;

¢. Acompleted grantee risk profile questionnaire and single audit form {see Section 11);

6. Schedule. The terms of this Agreement will commence upon execution by both parties. Administration
of the Grant will follow the process described herein.

a, Grantee agrees to provide the following reports.

i. Thefirst installment of 30% of the Grant ($27,000.00) will be paid within thirty (30) days
following receipt by the Grantor of this fully executed Agreement and any required
documentation.

ii. The second installment of 50% of the Grant {$45,000.00) will be paid within thirty
(30) days after the Grantee has submitted 2 PROGRESS REPORT which demonstrates the
Grant Project is 50% complete per the schedule (the “Completion Schedule,” see Exhibit C)
agreed to by the Grantee and the Grantor, and with the terms stated in the Application and
this Agreement. The Grantee will also have to submit a general spending ledger and
receipis 1o verify that praject spending matches the Grant Application.

iii. The third and final installment of 20% of the Grant ($18,000.00) will be paid within thirty
(30) days after the Graniee has submitted 2 1200% COMPLETION REPORT which



b.

demonstrates the Grant Project is 100% complete per the Completion Schedule. The
Grantee will also have to submit a general spending ledger and corresponding receipts to
verify that project spending matches the Grant Application.

Grantee will have twelve (12) months from the subaward date provided in Exhibit A. (the
“Completion Date”} to complete the Grant Project. If the Grantee fails to complete the Grant
Project by the Completion Date or if the Grantee does not meet Teporting requirements or project
milestones, NMSC and DOT will determine in their sole discretion whether extend the Completion
Date deadline (see also Section F on rights NMSC and DOT reserve to ask for allocated grant funds
to be returned to the Grantor). .

Please Initial Here

7. Reporting.

a.

d.

e.

Grantee agrees 1o submit a PROGRESS REPORT and a FINAL REPORT (see forms attached as
Exhibit D and Exhibit E} from the time the first installment of the Grant is funded unil sach time
as the Grant Project is completed. Reports must be submitted electronically, and the reports shail
describe all progress expenditures made from Grant funds and shall report cn Grantee’s

compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The last of these reports will be the FINAL
REPORT,

For the Progress Report, the Grantee will report on several specific metrics, including: local dollars
raised or leveraged as a result of the Grant; new partnerships created as a result of the Grant;
progress made toward Grantee’s TCP iransportation project; and community impact as it relates to
the grant project goals. Grantee will also submit a general ledger of spending on the project to-date
and copies of payments or receipts ag applicable.

For the Final Report, the Grantee will report on several specific metrics, including: local doliars
raised or leveraged as a result of the Grant; new parterships created as a result of the Grant;
progress made toward Grantee’s TCP transportation project; and community impact as it relates to
the grant project goals. Grantee will also submit a general ledger of spending on the project to-date
and copies of payments or receipts as applicable. Grantee will also submit before and after images
or copies of any publications or programming produced using the Grant, if applicable.

Copies of all related reporting forms wil! be made available in electronic format to the Grantee. The
reports received from Grantee will be submitted by the Grantor to the DOT's Build America Bureau.

Reporting Deadlines. The following reports are due as set forth below:

Report Type Due Date

Progress Report 1/10/25

Final Report 5/2/25

Please Initial Here



8.

10,

11,

i1z.

14.

15.

16.

Minimum Wage Requirement. The Grantee shall pay to workers, while performing in the United
States, and performing on, or in connection with, this Agreement, a minimum hourly wage rate
determined by the Secretary of the Department of Labor on an annual basis.

Labor Rates. This Agreement incorporates the labor rate submitted in the Grantee's cost estimate,
These rates are used for the purposes of determining reasonableness of direct labor costs, in accordance
with 2 CFR patt 200, including 2 CFR 200.404. All direct labor costs under this Grant require DOT
approval.

Travel Costs. Travel costs under this Agreement must be considered reasonsble and otherwise
allowable only to the extent such costs do not exceed charges normally allowed by the Subrecipient in its
regular operations as the result of the Subrecipient's written travel policy. If the Subrecipient does not
have written travel policies established, the Subrecipient and its contractors shall follow the travel
policies in the Federal Travel Regulation and may not be reimbursed for travel costs that exceed the
standard rates. All charges for travel must conform to the applicable cost principles and receive prior
approval from Grantor, '

Publicity of Grant Support and Communications.

A Grantee shall not publicize or otherwise circulate promotional material (such as advertisements,
sales brochures, press releases, speeches, still and motion pictures, articles, manuscripts or other
publications) which states or implies governmental, departmental, burean, or government
employee endorsement of a business, product, service, or position which the Grantee represents.
No release of information relating to this award may state or imply that the DOT approves of the
Grantee’s work products or considers the Grantee’s work produet 1o be superior to other products
Or Services,

B. Grantee must obtain prior Government approval for any public information releases concerning
this award which refer to the DOT or any bureau or employee (by name or title). The specific text,
layout photographs, ete. of the proposed release must be submitted with the request for approval.

Intellectual Property. Grantee agrees to provide the DOT a royvalty-free, nonexdlusive, and
irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use items purchased with Grant fands or work
products created under the Grant, in whole or in part (including creating derivative works), for federal
government purposes and o authorize others to do so.

Inspection and Requests for Documentation. Grantee agrees to permit representatives of the
Grantor, with reasonable notice, to inspect the Grant Project to ensure that the work is progressing as
planned and that the Grant funds are being used for the purposes stated herein. Grantee agrees to allow
reasonable access lo the project site for consultants and contractors engaged by the Grantor for the
Grant Praject, Upon request by Grantor, Grantee agrees to provide all documentation related to the
Grant Project for Grantor’s inspection.

Audit Requirements. Non-Federal entities that expend less than $750,000 for a fiscal year in
Federal awards are exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year, but records mnst be available
for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, passthrongh entity, and General
Accounting Office.

Records. All Grantee financial and programmatic records, supporting documents, statistical records, _
and other records related 1o the Grant shall be maintained and available for access in accordance with 2
CFR Part 200.332—200.337.

Breach.

a. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including, without limftation,
any failure to:

i. meet the deadlines and submittal of related forms as specified in this Agreement:

ii. obtain the Grantor’s written approval of any proposed changes in use of Grant funds
before implementation; or



17.

18

19.

21.

22,

23.

iil. complete the Grant Project as described in Section 2

shall nullify the Grant with the expectation that all fands paid to the Grantee shall be returned,
along with reasonable accrned interest, to the Grantor.

b.  In the event that Grantee violates or fails to carry out any provision of this Agreement, including,
without limitation, failure to submit reports when due, Grantor may, in addition to any other legal
remedies it may have, refuse to make any future grants or payments of this Grant to Grantee and
require the repayment of any funds that have already been paid. Grantee agrees, in the event of
breach, upon the request of Grantor, to return any and all payments to Grantor within thirty (30)
calendar days of receipt of a written demand of repayment from Gramtor or at another date and/or
in increments as approved in writing by Grantor. In accepting the Grant funds, Grantee agrees to
any and all costs associated with returning Grant funds to Grantor, including, but not limited to
Teasonable attorney’s fees.

Lobbying and Political Activities. Grantee shall use no portion of the Grant o participate in any
political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office, or to support attempts
to influence legislation of any governmental body other than throngh making available the results of
non-partisan analysis, study and research, to induce or encourage violations of law or public policy, to
cause any private inurnment or improper private benefit to ocenr, nor fo take any other action
mconsistent with Section 501(c)(3) of the Code. Grantee agrees to the certifications refated to lobbying
set forth in Exhibit F.

Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters. Grantee agrees to the certifications
related o debarment, suspension, and other respensibility matters set forth in Exhibit F.

Delinguent Tax Liability or Felony Conviction. Grantee agrees to the certifications related to
payment of tax liabilities and felony convictions set forth in Exhibit F,

Non-Diserimination. Grantee agrees to not diseriminate against any contractor, subeontractor,
employee, or applicant for employment because of actual or perceived race, color, national origin, creed,
age, gender, marital status, sexual orientation, religion, mental and physical disabilities, sex {including
pregnancy), personal appearance, gender identity or expression, family responsibilities, genetic
information, matriculation, political affiliation or veteran status. Grantee agrees to the certifications
related to compliance with various statatory and regulatory authorities prohibiting diserimination set
forth in Exhibit F. )

Change in Status. Grantee shall notify Grantor immediately of any change in (a) Grantee’s tax-exempt
status, or (b} Grantee’s execntive staff or key staff responsible for or instrumental to achieving the Grant
puIposes.

Financial & Legal Responsibility; Indexmification and Hold Harmless. The Recipient is
legally and financially responsible for all aspects of the activities fanded under this Agreement,
including funds provided to contractors (including consultants) and subrecipients as referenced in 2
CFR 200.332. The Grantee hereby agrees 10 defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Federal
Government, the DOT, and the National Main Street Center, Ine. from any act or omission of the
Grantes, its officers, employees, menbers, participants, representatives, or agents (a) against third .
party claims for damages arising from one or more identified activities carried out in connection with
this Agreement, and (b) for damage or loss to government property resulting from such an activity. This
obligation shall survive the termination of this Agreement. :

Force Majeure. Either party may terminate or suspend its cbligations under this Agreement it
substantial performance of such obligations is delayed, prevented, or rendered impractical by an event
beyond the party’s reasonable control and without its fault or negligence, including, but not limited to:
acts of God, acts of war or the public enemy, terrorism, fires, floods, epidemies, quarantine restrictions,
strikes (other than own employees), freight embargoes and unusually severe weather, laws, regulations
or orders of governmental awthorities, curtailment of transportation facilities, or other emergency
making it illegal, impossible or impractical to perform this Agreement as planned.



24.

Confidentiality. The Grantee shall maintain in strict confidence any Confidential Information of
Grantor that the Grantee reviews, receives, or acquires in the performance of this Agreement. Grantor
will make efforts 1o cleatly identify, preferably in writing, any Confidential Information. “Confidentisl
Information” means, subject to the limitation set forth below: economic and financial information,

sales and marketing plans, information and materials obtained from interviews or suTVeys, peraonnel
information, membership and donor lists, business procedures, solicitation or contact methods, and any
other information regarding the business of Grantor. Confidential Information does not include
information that: (i) is or becomes available from public sources through no wrongtul act of the
Grantee; (0 is already in the Grantee’s possession prior to the date of this Agreement without an
obligation of confidentiality, except for information disclosed during discussions related to this
Agreement; (iif) is rightfully disclosed to the Grantee by a third party with no obligation of
confidentiality; (iv) is independently developed by the Grantee; or (v) is required to be disclosed
pursuant to any court or regulatory order served on the Grantee. The Grantee may disclose Confidential
Information to its accountants, counsel, and other financial and legal advisors who have a need to know
for the purpose of this Agreement and who are obligated to maintain the Confidential Information in
acecordanece with the terms of this Agreement. The Grantee shall not publicly release any information
concerning Grantor or any subject relating to this Agreement, unless approved in advance and in writing
by Grantor. This approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

Representations and Warranties. Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:

a. Grantee is a non-profit organization, that it is a tax-exempt organization purstant to Section
501(c}3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code™} and is in good standing, or a government
entity;

b. if Grantee bas previously received financial assistance from Grantor, that all grant requirements
were satisfied or are current as of the date of this Agreement;

c. that the representative executing this Agreement has the power and authority to bind the Grantee
to the terms stated in this Agreement;

d. that the Grantee has no potential conflicts of interest with the DOT or Grantor.

Please Initial Here

26. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by the Grantee witheut the prior written approval

27,

28.

of the Grantor.

Governing Law. This Agreement is made in and will be governed by the laws of the District of
Columbia.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior oral or written understandings or
communications between the parties and constitntes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to
the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be amended or modified exceptin a
written document signed by both parties.

Please acknowledge your acceptance of this Agreement by signing and returning the original of this letter to:

Magdalena Gillespie

National Main Street Center, Inc.
53 W. Jackson Bhad,, Suite 350
Chicago, IL 60604

Please direct questions regarding this Grant or your reporting requirements to the National Main Sireet
Center, Ine., at mgillespie@mainsireet.org or by calling 737.205.1026,



By signing and returning this Agreement you acknowledge that these Grant funds will be used expressly for
the purposes described herein and are subject to the conditions contained herein.

7/28/2024
Erin Barnes ' Date
President and Chief Executive Gfficer
National Main Street Center, Inc.
AGRELED AND ACCEPTED BY:
Signature Date

Name:Stacey Rowell
Title: Director of Administration

Organization/Business: City of Monroe



EXHIBIT A
OFFICIAL AWARD NOTICE
National Main Street Center, Inc.

Action: Subaward
Date of Action:  7/28/24

SUBAWARD INFORMATION
Federal Award ID Number (FATIN)
Date of Federal Award to NMSC
Subaward Date 7/28/04
Subaward Recipient City of Monrce
Subaward Recipient DUNS None
Period of Performance 7/28/2024~ 6/2/2025
Budget Period of Performance 7/28/2024 — 6/2/2025
CFDA Number
Subaward support R&D? No

Subaward Project Title Monroe Mobility Murals

Grant funds will be used to hire artist(s) to engage the publicin
mobility safety planning for the Downtown Art Alley to South
Second corridor area, by developing and installing murais:

Subaward Project Description

Program and Office Department of Transportation Build America Bureau

Funds Obligated by this Action £90,000.00

Total Ontright Subaward. Amount $00,000.00

Total Féderal Matching Funds o

Total Subaward G0,000.00

Indirect Cost Rate 0%

POINTS OF CONTACT

ROLE NAME

Grantee Recipient Administrator Meghan Rl.s%nger .
Meghan. Risinger@ci.monroe.la.us
Magdalena Gillespie

NMSC Administrator Sg A orA oL e
mgillespie@mainstreet.org
Bethany R

NMSC Project Director By Sogers

brogers@mainstreet.org

This subaward is made possible by an award granted to National Main Street Center, Inc. by the Department
of Transportation (DOT). All awards, including this Subaward, are subjeef to 2 CFR. Part 200 Uniform
Administrative Reguirements, Cost Principles, and Avdit Requirements, and the General Terms and
Conditons to Organizations and the Historic Preservation Fund Grant Manaal.

In accordance with 2 CFR § 200.303, subrecipients must have internal control policies and procedures in
place to manage the subaward. These policies must address the effectiveness of operations; reliability of
reporting; and compliance with applicable federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the
award. Per 2 CFR §200.331, the National Main Street Center, Ine. will monitor the activities of the
subrecipient as necessary to ensure that the subaward is used for authorized purposes, in corzpliance with
Federal statutes, program reguirements, regulations, and terms and eonditions of the subaward; and
subaward performance goals are achieved. Acceptance of this subaward also serves as agreement to allow
DOT, NMSC, and their auditors, access to the subrecipient’s records and financial statements as necessary.



EXHIBIT B
PROJECT BUDGET

Community: City of Monors, Louisiana
Project Name: Monroe Mobility Murals
Project Costs

=
B
1

Ttem

Units

=
g

Artist(s) Services i Complete Mobility Murals

[+

Total Costs

37 ITA TN PRAFEN TV PN FUN O DO PN PO L, -

EXHIBIT C



COMPLETION SCHEDULE

MSA TCP Capacity Building Sub-Award Program
Sub-Award Comprletion Schedule

Community: City of Monroe, Louistana

FiDatelof TaskCamplerioh ] fercentape Camplet

December 31,
murals for engaging the public in mobility planning, 12024
including guidance on durable materials and best

practices with support from TCP technical assistance

parthers.
0%
Mural(s) completed, based on determination of May 15, 2025
available budget and priority locations.
100%
TCP Capacity Building project is complete and Final Report is submitted.

Date: May 25, 2025

100%



EXTHBIT D
PROGRESS REPORT FORM

Natiomal Main Street

?*&i? Certer
g

ek i1y el
BaRgoal Yiil e Mumar Yoesesitisn

THRIVING COMMUNITIFS PROGRAM SUB-AWARD

Progress Report

Date:
Comitnunity:

Praject Name:

Please list mifestones completed
Refer to Completion Schedule for milestones.

ltemized Project Expenditure
Please fist ftemized expensas here ond submir aft correspohding receipts as attachments, (Note: Bemizeotions can
be peneral, Le., tonsuftant fees, salaries, indirect costs, ete).

! ltem: Cost Expended to Date:

Total:

Dollars leveraged

Please iist by source and value of funding opportunities identified, additional public or private funds feveraged for
fdentified transportotion-related grojects, and/or dofiars raised or levercged in cannection 10/95 o resuft of the
Thriving Communities program, including doflors not previously identified.

This project is supgorted through the LLS, Department of Tronsportution Thefving Communitios program ta hefp previewsly
identified ribal, rural, and smafi-town commenities gcross the country aress historic funding opportunities provided by the
President’s Bipartisan Infrastructire Low [BIL. For mare information about the Thriving Cortmunities Progrom, pledse

visit the pragrom webslte,




N 8’ National Main Street
s S Center_
g

Mew Partnerships Created
Please fist any new partnerships created in connection tafds ¢ result af the Thriving Communities program.

Corumuthity lmpact {Note: This question will be taflored to your commumity’s specific grant project
and goals)

Where applicable, pleuse fist any community engagement events held with the number of publfic participants,
describe public awareness impacts, andfor list the number of engagement strotegies developad end executed o5 g
resuft of the Thriving Communities progrom.

Prograss towards Goals
Please fist advancements towards identiffed goals in the suboward proposal.

Goal Progress

Goal#1:

Goal #2:

Goal #3:

Do you need to make any changes to your project timeline or completion schadula?
If ves, please describe,

Signatura: Date:

Mame:

Title:

This projert is supported through the LS. Department of Transpartation Thriving Communities program te help previoushy
identified tribal, nuvel, ond simoll-town communities acrass the country ancess Ristoric funding opportunities provided by the
President’s Bipartlsan infrostrocture Low [BILL For more information about the Thriving Communities Pragram, please

wisit the progrom website,

EXHIBIT E




FINAL REPORT FORM

?‘ ‘ % Nationat Main Street
Faph con

Batirnal Yol fer Plckaric Presesvation

—_—eee— THRIVING COMMUNITIES PROGRAM SUB- AWARD

Final Report

BDate:
Community:

Project Name:

Pleasa list milestones completed
Refer to Completion Schedule for milestones.

Budget raconciliation

Please list the projected cost of the groject as stated in your subgrant ogreement and the actued cost of the project
based on your profect receipts. (Note that you wifl elso be asked for itemized project expenses and receipts witt
need to be uploaded vith your report).

Projected Froject Cost: §
{As defined by the subgrant agreement)

Actual Project Costz S
{As defined by the recefpts, Incfuding consultant fees, safaries, indirect costs)

Hemized Project Expenditure
Flease fist ifemized expenses here apd submit alf carresponding receipts as attachments. (Note: ftemizations con
be general, i.e, consuftent fees, solaries, indirect costs, etcl.

ftem: Budgeted Cost: Actul Cost:

TFoiaf

This praject Is supported through the U5, Department of Trensportation Thriviag © Witles program to kelp previously
Identificd tribal, nreal, and smalftown corymunities ncross the countey atesss historic funding opportunities pravided by the
Presiclent’s Bippartisan fafrastractuce Levw (BIL), For move informuation abeut the Theiving Communities Progrom, please

visit the progrory website,




National Main Street

o
[ p= Cetlter
?ﬁg @é @ sthadelaly o s

aptiein] Trist for Historle Preserasion

Dollars Leveraged

Please list by source and value of funding opportuaities identiffed, additienal public or grivate funds leverqged for
identified transportation-refated projects, and/or dofiars roised or leveraged in connection tofas o result of the
Fhriving Communities program, incading dollars not previously idemtified.

New Partnerships Created
Flense list any new partnerships created in connection tofas « resuft of the Thriving Carnmunities project.

Comnmunity Impact {Note: This question will be tailored to your community’s specific geant project
and goals) :

Where qpplicable, please list any communily engogernent events held with the number of public participgrrts,
Jescribe public awareness impucts, and/or fist number of engagement striteyies developed end exscuted as o
resuft of the Thriving Comrumities program.

Progress towards Goals
Please fist advancernents towards identified goals in the subaword proposel and any maintenance strotegies that
_have been developed to supgort the goals of the coramunity. (i.e., How you plan to keep the MORENiuN going.}

Goal Progress Maintenance Strategy
Goal #1: ’

Goal #2:

Goal #3:

This project Is supparted through the 1S, Dapartment of Trapspartation Thriving Corvirunities program to help previously
iddentified tribed, rurad, and smoli-town comenities across ihe country access Mistorle funding opportunities provided by the
FPresident’s Biportisarn infrostructure Lony {BIL]. For more infarmation about the Thriving Commurities Pragrars, please

visit the progrom wefisite,




National Maln Street
Center

& Ukl iy e
Hakiodal Trust i Hureie Presatvattan

Major Sucesses ar Chstacles

What were the mafor successes or ohstacfes you faced in implementing your subaward project (if ony) and what
additional assistance {from partner organizotions, the community, US DOT, et} would have benefited your
organization?

Quete/Remark on Impact of Program

Flease provide a quate/remark thot describes a tore when your community sow o positive Impact becquse of the
program. £x: how the progrom leveraged commanity suppart or callaboration, developed comprehensive
transportation profects that incrensed mobility, reduced poliution, expapded ffordable tronsportation aptions, or
Jourd connections to the resources they need to help them. (Note: this quote may be used by DOT and/ar MSA in
publicetions or other sociaf media).

Signature: Oate:

Mame;

Title:

This praject s supported through the (1.5, Department of Transporkation Thriving Communitfes program e help previcsly
ideptifted tibal, rural, and smalhtows communities atross the country access historfe funding epportunities provided by the
President’s Bipartison Infrastructure Law {BIL}, For more informuation about the Fhriving Communitios Progrom, please

visit the program website,

Exhibit F




FEDERAL ASSURANCES

LS. BEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND FEDER AL ASRURANCES

Attachment I
CERTTFICATION REGARINNG DEBARMENT
SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATIERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

2 C.F.R. Parts 180 and 1260

Thess assummess and certifications wre applivable 1o alf Federst-aid construction contracts, disipn-build contrcts,
subsconiraets, lower-tier subconteacts, purchase osders, lewse apresments, consultart contracts or any other
covered oansaction requiring DOT approval or that is estimated 0 cost $25,008 o more ~ 23 defined a2 C.FR.
Purts 180 and 12400, '

By signing and submitring the Technical Applicetion and by enteving into this spresment under the Y 2622
Thnving Communities program, the Recipient is providing the asstwances and certifications far Firss Tier
Participants and Lower Tier Pucticipants in the FY 2672 Thriving Communities, us st o below,

1. Instructions far Certification  Fivst Fler Purticlpsots:
& The prospeetive fiest ter participant is providing the certification set one below,

b The inabifity of 2 person to provide the certification set ont below will et mecessarily resul in Jendal of
participation in this coversd transmetion, The prospective first ter participant shall submit an explanarion of why
it connst provide the ountification sst out below. The certificaion o explanution will be considernd i counection
wills the department or agency’s determinstion whether to enter Into tiis transactions, Horwevee, Baiture of he
prospective first ther participan to famish 3 certification or an explanation shall Ssqualife such x pecson from
participation in this tmmsaction.

€. The certification In this clse I 2 materfal reprosentetion of fact upen which relionce was placed whent the
commeting ageacy determined v enter ints this transaction. T3 s Soter dotermtined that the prospective
pesticipan knowingly rendered an erronpous cevtification, in addition to ather cemedies available o the Federal
Guovernment, the contracting agency may terminate thie tmnsaction for cause of default,

o The prospective fiest tier participant shall provide immediate written notice 1o the sootracting apemoy
whom s propasal is submitted i any Y the prospective Fost ther partieipart leens that s certification wis
eoneaus when submitted or has become srroneous by reasor of changed circumstances.

©. Fhe terms “covered emmsaction.™ “eivil judgment ® “debarred,” “suspended,” “incligible,” “pariitpan,”
“person,” “principel,” and “vehmtarily excloded,” as used i this dause, are deBned i 2 CFR. Pags 150 and
1200 “Frst Tier Coverod Transoctions” sefirs t any covered teansection betwsen 3 Recifent or subrecipient of
Federsd funds and » participant {such as the prime or genetad contract). *Lower Tier Covered Transactinns” refers
to any covered trunsection under & First Ther Covered Transection fawch a8 subcontracts). “Fiest Tier Participant”™
refers by the pasticipant who has sotered into 2 covered tramsaction with a Recipiont or sulesipiont of Federaf
fumds [such 2s the prime or geoval contractor]. “Lowey Tier Participant™ refies o any participant who has snnered
inte a covered transaction witls 3 First Tier Partioipunt r ather Lower Tier Participants {such as sabcontrustors
and supplicss).

f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by subsvisting this propasal thee, should e proposed covered
transaction be entered toto, 1t shall not knowingly enter mto any lower Her covered transnction with 2 person who
is debarred, suspended, declared ineligihle, or vohambtarily excluded from perticipation in this sovered ranssction,




unless suthorized by the depastment e aggency entering fnto 2his iransaction.

. The prospeetive first ter participant further agrees by submitiing $is proposel that it will fnclude the clause
tithed “Cortification Regardimy Debarmest, Suspeasion, Insligfilite and Voluntary Frelnston-Lowes Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by the department or contracting agency, eniering into this coversd transmction,
without modifieution, in all Jower ter coverad trusactions and in 2l soliciiations for Mrwer er covered
tramsactions exosedng the $25 0080 Breshold,

b A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon & certificasion of # prospoctive participent in a tower
tier covered imnsaction that is not debarred, suspended, meligible, or voluntarily excluded from the coversd
trznsaction, unkess it knows that the cectification is errancons. A participant is responsible for eosuring that its
principais are not suspended, debarved, or otharwise Ineligibhe to partieipate in covered mansactions. Te wirify fhe
chigiblity of its principals, as well as the eligihility of amy Jower Ger prospective participanis, sach participant
ey, Bt i not required w, check the System for Avaed Manapemont website SpsSvnwsem woefd which 1
comnpiled by the General Services Adminigtration,

i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be consteued t require the establishment of 8 system of records in
ander to render In good Gith the cerification required by this clause. The knewledse and inficmation of the
pruspective patticipant s oot requiced to exceed that which s normally possessed by o prudent person ia the
orcioary course of business deatings,

J- Bxcept for transactions suthorized under paragraph (£ of these instructions, if 3 paxticipant in a covered
transaction knowingly extors futo o lower tier covered ransaction with  person whe is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or veluntarily excluded Som partielpation in ihis trmsaction, in sddithon 1o oter remedios avaiiabie 1o
the Fedary! Government, e deparionnt of ageney may torminate s transaction for sause or defirgle,

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility aod Veluntary Exclasion - First Ther
Participants:

a. The grospective fivst tier participant certifies to the best of its koowledge md bolief, that Bt and its
principals:

{1} Are not presently Jebrrred, saspended, proposed for debarment, declared invtizible, oe voluntarily
excluded from pasticipating in coversd transactions by any Federad depastment o agency;

{2} Have not within & three-year paviod proceding this proposal been conviered of or had  civil judgmest,
nchuding & civil setfernent, rendered against them for corenitsion of fraud or 3 wriminel offeose in
connection with uhisisiog, stiemnpting te obain, or perfrming & public (Federal, State or locad) ransaction ur
contrast ymder o public transaction; vielation of Feder! or State antitrust stanes or commisaion of
embeezfornent, theft, forgery, bribery, lsification or destnxction of records, making fides strements, or
recelving sioien propesty;

{3} Ave not presently indivied for or ntherwise crimizally or oivilly charped by & govertmental emity
{Federal, Bate or lowl} with commission of any of the offenses erumerated ta paragraph {a}{7) of this
cerification: and ’

{4) Have not within 2 three-year period preceding this seplicetionpropasel had sie or mess public
tarmctivas {Federsd, State or focel) torminated Tor cxuse or defntt.

& Whers fhe prospective pasticipant i anable to certify fo any of the staternents in this centification, such
prospective participent shall attack an explrmtion to this preposal.



I Instructionz for Cortifiextion - Lower Yier Participants:

{Applicable toalf subcontmets, purchase orders wid eiher Jower Her transactions requiring prior DOT eporoval o
wstimated to cost 525,000 or more - 2 CFR. Paris 180 and (200}

a. The prospective lower ey participent i providing the wertification set o below.

b, The certification n this cluse is & matecial representaiion of fact upen which seliance was placed when tis
transaction was aotered tute. If i is later determinad tht the prospective lowar tier participant kaowingly
rendered an aoneous cortiieation, i additfon te other remedies svailable 1o the Federal Government, the
department. of sgeney with which this transaetion ovigimated may pursue wveilable ramedies, including
suspension andfor debarment.

¢. The prospeative Jower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice fo the person @ whick this
propesal is submitted i m sny tme the prospective lewer ter participant leams that #s centifivation was
srroneons by reason of changed cincumstances.

d. The termy “oovered ransection,” “eivdl settlerment,” “debarred,” “upspended.” “ineligible,” “partivipant,”™
“person,” “principel” ned “volumterily wichided.” as used o s lause, e defiped In 2 CF R, Pots 180 and
E200. You anxy contact the parson to which this proposal is submined fir assistence o obradntug » copy of those
vegulations. *Firgt Tier Covered Transections™ refiess o sary covered transoction betwestia Regipient or
subrecipient of Federal funds and 2 participent {such a3 the prime or general contret). “Lower Tier Covared
Trapsactions” refies to any wovered tmansaction under 3 First Tier Covered Transaction (such s subcomiract),
“First Tier Partopant™ refiry b the participant whi bes entered inte 8 coversd mansaction with 2 Reciptent or
subrocipient of Federal finds (soch as the privee or generd commeter), “Lower Tier Participot™ refers any
participunt whe hos entered into 2 covered trumsaction with o First Tier Panticipant or other Lower Tier
Panicipants {such as subtomiractors and suppliers).

¢. The grospective lower tier participa agress by submilfing this propasal that, shanld the proposed soveesd
transnciion be entered inte, i shalt not keowingly enter into any lower ther covered tmnsaction with & peoson who
is debamred, suspeadod, declaved ineligible, or volentardy excluded fiom participation in Sis covered iransaction,
unless amtheried by the departmentt or ageey with which this tansacrion arfgimeed,

£ The progpecBve Bower Her mtivipant forther agrees by submiting this propess? st 1wl nelode this
elause thal “Centification Regacding Debarment, Stspension, Ineligibility wnd Yolantary Exclusion-Lower Tier
Covered Transection,” without modification, in ali Jowes ter covered tramsactions and in 27 solicifstions fe
lonser tar cavered tninsactions exceeding the $29.000 threshold )

£ A participant i 4 cpvered sransaction may rely upon 3 cerdfeation of o prospestive participant in 2 lower
thor coversd mamsaction that is not debareed, suspended, inelinfble, or volunterily sxclnded Fam the covereg
ranssetion, wikess i knows that the certification is erroneous, A participant is responsible for ensuring Ut its
principals are ot suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible w participate in coversd msactions. To verify the
cligibality of its principsls, a6 well a5 the eligihility of uny lower tier prospectivr purticipants, cach pardicipant
wnay, Bug is mot requined to, cheek the Svstem for Award Manngement website (hips it s, sowd which ia
compiled by the General Services Adminisration.

b Nothing contaimed in the forsgoing shall be constawed to reguive establishment of 2 systern of records in
order o render ia good fxith the conification required by tiis clanse. The knowledge and imforsmation of
participant is mol required to exceed syt which & normally possessed by = prodent persont b the osdinary course
of business deadings. ’

1. Exvept for transactions authorized under paragraph ¢ of these instroctions, s garticipant in a coversd



transactiva knowingly eoters inte a lower Ser covernd trancaction with a porson whe i3 suspended, debarred,
insligible, or voluniarily excluded from pasticipation in s Sransaction, i addition to other remedies availshle ta
e Feders! Government, e departmient or agerey with which this tansaction seiginated may putsue svailabl
remedies, ncluding suspension andior debarment.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspensior, Toeligibifity and Viduntary Exclusion — Lower Tier
Partivipants:

b The prospective fower Her prrticipant contities, by subsmission of this propodsal, that nejther & nor is
principals is presently debarred, sespended, proposed for debarmsent, declased inchipible, or volentarily exchuded
frown participating i coversd transactivns by any Fedorat departoeat o aganey.

£ Whers the prospective lower tier partisipast Iy unable 1o cortif 1o any of e setments in tis
sertification, such prospective participant shall altack an explamation to this proposal.

By sigeing this ASSURANCE, the Recipient sgrees to comgply with 2 CFR. Parts 130 and 1200 and the requirenenis
listed above.

{dame of Reciplend}

By

{Sigmature of Authodeed Offieial)

DATED




Probibiton. i
(1) the SAM entry for am ermity indicates that the entity bas o Tax Delinguency or o Federal Comviction;
{2} 4 entity provides s affiemative peeponse 1o sither vertiGeation = section 3or

{33 u0 endity’s vertification under section 3 was insccumte when made or became inacenrate aafter bt
mads

then 2 Participant shall not enter or contimse 5 Ooversd Transwetion with that enlity nrdess the USDOT has
determined i weiting thet suspension or deburmens of that enlity are not pecessary to protect the ntereits of
the Government.

Manduiory Noeties (o the USHOT.

{a} I the SAK entry for o Participant mdicates that the Participant has 2 Tex Deetingueney or & Feloay

Conviction, the Recipient shall potifi the USDOT in weriting of that eniry,

{b} ¥'x Participant provides an affinmative sesponse to either cartification i section 1, the Revipient shall
notify the USDOT in weiting of that affinmative response.

{c} E the Recipiant knows thet x Patticipant™s ceetiBeation under section | wis inaccurste when made o
Berame naccurate affer being mady, the Recipient shall notify the LSDOT in writing of that TR CUTRCY.

Flew Dawn. Forall Covered Transaetions, inchufing a8l Siers of subcontracts and subawards, the Resipient
shall:

{1} requie the SAM check in section 2

{2} reguive the centiffeation: in seeton 3

€3} include the prohibdition fn section 4; and

{4} requive olf Parduipants o notify the Reciplent i writing of sty informetion that wouoki reguire e
Reciplent v notify the USDOT under section 5.

By signing this ASSURANCE, the Recipiect also agrees 0 vomply with USDOT Onder 4200.6 and the Tequirernenty
Hsted above.

{Name of Reciplon(}

By

{Signnture of Authorired 7ot}

DATED




Attachrnent 3
RECIFIENT POLICY TO BAN TEXT MESSAGHNG WHILE DRIVING

{u} Defintions. The following definitions are intended to be consistent with te definitions By DOT Order
902,18, Text Messaging Whils Driving {Dec, 30, 2009) and Bxecttive Order 13513, Fodacad Lendership on
Reduring Te Messaging While Driving {Oct. 1, 2009). For clarification purposes,, they mmay expind upon the
defitions in the sxeonive onder,

For the purpose of Attachenent £.3, *Motor Vebicles” meins any vebicl, self propelied o drews by mechanical
puwer, designed and operated principally for use on & Toval, State or Federad soadway, but docs aot include 2
mikitary design motor vebicks or any other vehicls excluded under Fedoral Managerent Regulation 100-34-18,

For the purpose of Attachment 5.3, “Driving™ mesms aperating & motor vebicle on a soadoray, ineluding witile
temporarily stationary becawse of trafiie conpestion, a traffie signal, 4 siop sign, another ke e contred device, or
otherwise. It does not bochuds being in vour vehicle {with or without the mator rumning} i o focation off the
roadhwry where it i safe and fogal fo remain statonary.

For the purpose of Attachment 5.3, “Text messaging™ micuns seading from or entering dat o sy Iundheld o
other eleotronis deviee (inchading, but not limited &, coll phomes, navigtional tools, haplop computers, or other
electronic devives), incloding for the purpose of Short Message Service (SMS] raxting, e-matling, Erstant
messaging, ehinining oavigationad information, or engaging in any other form of slectromic duta retrieval or
shectronic data communrdcation. The tenm dies not inclide te vee of = coll phone or ather electzonic device for
the Imnsted purpose of enfering @ telupbone nusber to make s cngoing call or answer an incomdng cell, undesy
thix praciics is prohibited by State o focal Iaw, The term also does not include glancing f or liskeming to a
navigational deviee thag & secured in a commercially desipred bolder affixed 1o the vehicle, provided that the
destimion and route azs progrosuned inte the devies either before deiving or whils stopped in & Jocation off the
roadway whete it i safe and eyl to remadn sationary.

For the purpose of Attpehment 5.3, the “Covernment™ imchedes the Thited Stotes Gevrttument and State, lovad,
and tribal sovermments at 2} levals.

iy Workplyee Safery. In soccerdance with Exvontve Oeder 13513, Fodera Leadership oo Reducing Text
Messagng Wiile Drriving (Ort, 1, 3009) and DOT Order 3902, 10, Text Messaging While
Driving (Dee, 30, 20893, the Recipdent, sifrecipients, contracters, and subcostrastors are encousiged ta:
{1} adopt and enforce workplace safety poliches to decreess crashes coused by distracted drivers
including poliches o ban text messaging white debving—
) Company-owned or -tented veldeles or Government-owned, esed or rented vebicles; or
(0 Privately-owned vehicles when on official Government business or shen performing any
work for or on belnif of the Government_

{2} Conduct workplace safety infiatives fo x manner commensurate with te size of the business, such
{1} Egublishoment of new mles and programs or re-cvaluation of axisting programs o probbit foxt
messaging while deiving: and

{itf  Education, wwareness, s other outreacd to erophrvess showt the safety risks associated with
texting while driving, :

i<} Subawands and Contracts, To the extent permitted by Jaw, the Recipien! shall insert the substance of this
exhibil, including this paragraph (o}, i 2l subaveards, contracts, and subcontacts under this award that excesd the



micro-purchase threshold, other than contracts and subeoniracts for the acquisition of commerciaily available o
the-shed{ feme.

By signing this ASSURANCE, the Recipient slon agrees fo cumply fand reguine any sub-recipicnts, contractors,
sucecssors, gansierees, endfor assigrees b comply) with alt applicable provisions i DT Crder 3902 11, Text
Messaging Whilc Driving {Dee, 30, 2009% and Execotive Order 13513, Federnl Leadership oo Reducing Texs
Mussaging While Ddving.

{Name of Reciplens)

By

{Sipmmture of Authorized Offtcial}

DATED




T

Il

o

Astachenent 4
CERTIFICATION BEQARDING DRUG-FREE WORK-PLACE REQITREMENTS

i. The Reciplent namad B this sgrenment eonifies that it w3t establish and cantitoe
provide o drog-fres workpiace by:

Pobiishing 3 staternent notifidng etmplovors thet the exdendit nunufacture, distribution, dizpemsing, possessivn, or wee
of & controfied subsinnce is prodilited in the Applicant's workplace amd spenifying the wetfons that will be mhex
against emplovee for violation of sneh probibition;

Esubiishing sn cogoing drgg-fie swarcness program 1w infomm etnployess shott-

The denigeors of doug sbuss i the workplsoe;

The Applicants policy of maintdoing 3 degs-free warkplan

Any gvaifable drop connseling, raabilimion, and smplives sasistence programs, end,

The pemaitios that may be mposcd upos smaioress for drug abusy vielktons necurning i the workolace;

e

haking it 4 requirement that cnc employes bz be engaged in the performance of the grant or OIS SErcement by
ghven 3 copy of the smrmaent requined by parageaph (o).

Notifying the emploves in dhe satovnent cequired by paragraph fal that, 25 8 condidon of weopfovreess undes the
£ran or cooperarive sgrepnient, the ameloyos will--

L Ablde by the soes of the statement: snd,
2. Wonify the cemplover in wiiting of his or hey convicrion for 3 vialation of 2 eriening® drug statue vecusting in the
wrkplare te laker tan vy §37 colencer days afier ssch conviction:

Notifyrbng the Fuderol ageney bn writhag, within son 118} cabendar dave after recedving notdes undes subpargraph W5
fram an ernploves ar ofherwise seeciving aohut avtice of such convietioe, Eoplwvees of eomviensd emplovess sust
provide nunice, inthiding posftion tide, 3 overy project officer ar other designes on whose Prodest aerivine the
cotivictad emtployee was working. Motice shalt nelude the idowtification nemberis) of enck afored grost or
ceopeTative sgreentent.

Takimg one of dre following aetons, within Siry (387 clondar S af reeniving Dotier coder submaranrash {8,
wilh respact i gy coplavos who 15 30 eotnvictode.

1. Tuking appropriate personnet antion ageing such s employoe, wp to end inchading erminstion, consistent with
the rapsiresncits of the Rehwhilioson At of 1973, a5 amendod: ot

2. Requiriag such etapliyee te partivipete satisfhonily i o drog sbuse sesistanes or rebebilitanion program
approved for sueh purpeses by g Foderst, Sote, of loon! Sealth, low enfurcement, or ather APPIDEEAN S0

Making a good fdib offut i conrinve 1o ntsiruin 2 Frog-Foe workplars Srough inprhementativg of parsgrephs 223,
b, ek 3, (ef, andd (91

2. The Applicants hendquartens & fecated 2 the followbsy address. The addrenges of 81 workplaees psintained by
she Applivant are provided on an scootpenying s

{8 pratere of Avthorized Offickal) {Frazcy




Attachment 3
TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS

ICFR PART ITS
& Provisions applicable to a recipient that is ¢ private entite

I. You as the recipient, your employees, subrecipients under this sward, and subrecipionts’
employess may not-—-

i Engege bn severe forms of tafficking in persons during the period of time that thy sward s in
effzer

L. Procure 3 commervial sem ant during the period of time hat the sward is in effect; o

tH, Use Foroud fabor in the performance of the mward or sohawerds ondes the

awd,

2. W as the Fedorad awarding ageocy smay wnilatorsily terminate this award, without penatty, Hyow or
3 subrecipient that is a privaie entlty —

i. ds determined to bave violsted & rohibition in puwagraph &.§ of thiy averd teem:

H. Has wn emplover who s determined by the apency o8icis authorized i terminate the awerd
1 have violated a prohibition in paragraph 2.1 of this awnrd term throogh conduct that i eithee—

A Associzted with performanes under this sward; o

B. fimpated to you or the subresipient oing the standerds and due process for bnputiog the
conduct of an mdividual to 2o orgenization that are provided in 2 CFR past 180, “OME Guidelines
to Ageacics on Govermmentedde Deherment and Suspension (Nooprocursment),” a5 aplemented
by our sgency a2 2 CF R, part 1300,

b. Proviston apglicable ta & recipient ether than & privite ensity, We gs the Foderal swarding apency may
wnilareradly sermoinme this aweed, withous ponalty, if a subreciplent that & 2 privars soidt—

1. Is determined to huve vieleted an spoticable prohibition in parugraph s § of this award term or

: 2. Has an etnployee who is determined by the apency officis! authorized 1o torminate the avward to have
vintsted ar applicshle probibition in paragreph a.f of Sis swerd wrm throueh conduct that is either—

1. Sasocisted with performance under this awasd, o

H. fmputed to the sibrecipiont usiwg the standards and dee process far mputing the conduct of an
indivitue! in 20 organization that sre providedd in 2 CFR port 180, “OME Guidelines to Agencies or
Governentwide Deburment and Suspension (Nonprocurementy,” os implasented by atr amency 21 2
CFR pan 1200,

€. Provisions applicable i sry recipiern.



L. ¥ou must imform us immediately of amy information you reecive fom sy source alleging a



viokation of a prohitition in paragraph .1 of this sward torm.
2, Qur right to torminate unifsterally that i described in paragraph a2 or b of s scction:

L Implements section 108} of the Traffoking Victims Protectivn Act of 2000 {IVEAY as
srmended (22 1180, F1040e)), and

. Is im addition to off other remedies for noncompliance that are mvailable to us noder this sward,

3. You must include the mquirements of paraygraph a1 of this award tesm in sy subawan] yow
malis 0 a private entity.

4. Definttiens. For porposes of this awand ey
1. “Employes” means either:

i. Anindividual employed by you or a subrecipient who is vogased in the performance of
thie prodocd o program under this aweard: or
#. Annther person omgaged in the performanse of the projest ar progrom under this swand mod

mot compenssted by you inchading, but not Yanited to, 1 volumterr or individus? whese services sv
comtribated by a third party es an idind contibusic: towasd cost sharing or matching Tequironeenis.

2. “Forced labir™ means jabor phtained by any of the foltowing methads: the recraitment, harboring,
wransportaton, provision, or obtsining of & porsan for fuber or services, tromeh the vse of force, Froud, ar cosrcion
for the purpase of subjection to nvolustary servitude, ponungpe, debt bondage, or Savery.

3 “Privars eotity™

& Means any wntity other than o State, loeal govesnment, Indian e, ot foreign poblic entity, as
thase torms are defined in 2 CFR 17825,

H. fnclades:

A A nonprofit orssmimtion, including any sonprofi institution of oher eiunation,
hospital, or wibal ovgantestion piher thun one included e e definiton of Indisn ke a1 3 CFR
[yteti-3

B. A for-profit srganization.

4. “Sevare formas of trafficking in prrvons,™ “commerciel sex act” snd “coercion” fuve the meanings
given Ak section 103 of the TVEA, as mended €22 .80, T3,

3. "Recigient” and “sibrecipiont™ inchide for-profit entities for the purpose of Attachoens 5.5 onfy.

By signing this ASSURANCE, the Revipient cortifies that ithas read and snderstands the provisions listed
above.

{Signahire of Avthorized Official) {latc}



Attachment 6
LOBBYING

£F the applivant wilt apply for & grons or cesperarive agresment seceedey SINRO00, ew 2 foak, Bne of credis, foan
gurantes, 4 foaw dsurance exoeeding 5353000, it meaxt make the Faffawing certificarion and, i nppficable, moke &
disclosure regarding the agplicans's labbying aetivities. This rertifloation is required By 38 CF R § 30110 and app. A 1o
hat pat,

This corvification dogs not apply io an apeiizant that is an Indiar Teibe, Indian organiatioe. or an fudion wibed
erganization cxempt from the requirementy of 3% CER. Peve 30,

Certificatine for Canteacts, Geants, Losas, and Couperstive Aprecments.
The undersigned cortifics, o the best of bis of her knowlodge and befiet, that

No Federal spproprisred funds heve boen peish or will be paid, By or ow behalf of the smdersizned., o any porson fr
inffucncing or attempting to infhuence an officer ar emploves of an speney, & Member of Coegrass, sn offfcer or emploves
of Congress, ovan employes of 8 Menther of Congrusy in commestion with the wwarding of any Pedersd contracy, the msking
of any Federal gront, the meicing of 2oy Fedora? loax, the eatering imo of way covperative agreament, and the exrension,
antinuation, reesel, amendment, or seoditieation of ay Fesdera! contrart, grunt, baum, oF pooperRlive agromment,

1 sy fands other thas Federal spproprivted Simds have boen paid or will he paid to any person &w influencing or sueosting
1o infiuence 5 offieer or employes of any sgeney, & Momber of Comgrose, an aifices o cmploves of Congress, o an
canployee af s Member of Congress fo comeetion with this Federsd contrees, grant, loun, af coaperiive aEneemen, the
undersizned shall complere snd submit Stenderd Forme-LLL, “Disclesuse Form te Repoet Lobbying, ™ in accondanee with s
msiruetons.

The emdersigned shaB requive that the lmguage of s cartfiostion be included i the award dosuments S adl sbawards at
all tiees {including subcontracts, subgroms, and conwacts under Frams_ leans, and cooperative sgroemmernis) sod that all
suhrecipiets shall costify and disclose scoordiugly.

This certiffeation is 3 marerial represeatation of feet upwn witick roliznes was plared wher s ranzaction wey made or
ettered into. Submission of this eortification i & proreguisite for making or entering fnde s trananction fmpased by seotion
1352, tithe 31, UE. Code. Any povson wha $ils to fle the roquired certifieation shall be subdect w8 ciell penaty of ot less
Whas 510,000 and not mere than $T00,000 for cackh wuch faflure.

Statemuvnt for Loan Guarantees and Loan nswrsoee,

The undersigned sty to fhe best of his or et kowdedge and belief, thar

I amy fands have been paid or will e pubd w any persen for infhuencing or stempting  infhience an offfoer or emplaves of
any ageny, & Member of Congrese. a officer o spiployee of Congrass, or a2 armsoyee of & Memier of Corgress iy
conpeation with this commitrnen providing for the United States &y insure o muamstee 2 Feany, the undessioned shalt
caenplete and sehmit Standard Form-L 1L, “Dleciosore Form to Repor Labbying ® in sccerdence with i insractions,
Suhmizsion of this statwment s o prevequisite for maliing or sntering bnto this wensaction tmposed by seetion 1352, tite 31,

ULS. Cade, Any person wh fails tn e the required smterment shall be subbect to 2 oivit penadee of oot Jess than 530,600 and
not o thar $T00.000 for cocd such failire.

Signature of Althorized Offtcial | DATED




ATTACHMENT 7. NON-DISCRIMINATION ASSURANCES

Standard Title VENon-Dscrimination Assurances

DOUT Oeder No, 105024

By sigming and submiting an application and by entering isto this agreemment wnder e FY 2022 Thriving
comnunities Program, the Recipiens HERERY AGREES THAT, a5 » condition to reoeiving any Fadersl
Bnancial asststance from %e LA, Department of Transpartativer DOTY, throueh the Build Americs Bursan it is
subjert 1o aad will conply with the Slvwing:

«  Fitle VT of the Civ Rights Act of 1964 (42 LLRC, § 20006 of sog., 78 st 257), {prohibite
diserimination ow the basts of rce, color, sationa) origiok

* A9 (PR Pant 21 (entitled Non-discrimination fu Federalfv-Asvisted Programs O The Deparsment OF
Transpertation—Effecturtion QF Titte ¥ OF Fhe Chil Rights Aot QF 1964y,

* 28 CFR section 30.3 {U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enfecement of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Aot of 1954) :

The preceding slavatory and regulatory cites heretnafter ave refersed 1o o the “&ets™ aod “Repulations™
respectivedy,

Lisneral Assmraness

In avcordanoe with the Acts, the Remidations, snd other periinent directives, cireulars, policy, memorands, andior
guidance, the Recipient herelre gives assurance that # will promptly ke MY TRWATULSE Decessary to ensure that:

“We persan in the United States sholl, an the grovads of race, enlor. ar nationsi arigiv, be
excluded from porticipation in, be denied the banefity of] ar be ptherwive suljeoted o
discrimination wnder uny progeant or ackviy, " for whick the Reefpiens recetves Federal  Haancial
exsistance Fom DOT, brefuding the Buitd 4merica Bureme.

The Chvil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 chaified the original intent of Congreds, with mespeet o Tile Viand
ather Non-discrimination requirements (The Age Discrimination Sct of 1973, and Section 504 of the
Relnbiliation Act of 1973), by restoring the broad, institetonal-wide scope and voverage of these non-
discrignination statutes and requirements to inctude all programs aad activities of the Recipient, so long a8 sy
portion of the program is Federally asnsted.

Specific Assurances

More specifically, and withowt Himitiog the above geoeral Assuraace, the Reciplent sgress with and gves the
following Assurances with respect to its Fedoraly assisted 5y 2022 Thriving Commmmities progsem:

£, The Recipient agrees that each “zotivity,” *faciling.” or “progmm™ s defined in 88 2L23 by and 21 23
{2} of 42 CFR.§ 21 will be (with rugend to an “petivity™) facilitated, or wil] e (with regard o a
“Taeility”™} operated, or will be {with regacd to 2 “program™ conducted in complionce with aii
Tequirernents imposed by, or purtitant to the Acts and the Regulations.

2. The Recipient will insest the following netificarion in wl selicitfons for bids, Requests For Praposals for
work, or material subject to the Acts znd the Ragnistions made in connection with the FY 2032 Thriving



Communitirs Program and, in adapted form, in all propossls for pegotiated agreernents regardhss of
Rmding somree:

“The Beciplent, in accordunce with the provisions of Tilfe ¥F af the Civil Rights dot of Pead 78
Star. 232, 22 US.C 8 2000 to 2000d-4) and the Reguiations, heveby notifes alf Bidders that it
will affirmatively enswre that far any contract entered inte pursuans to this adverfissment,
disadvmbaged business enterprises will be afforded fifl and fuir opportasity to submit Bids in
response fo this imtaltion and will pot be diverimingted against on the grounds of race, color,
ar martonal gy in consideration for an award™

2. The Recipient will insert the vlauses of Appendiz A sod B of this Assunrce In By obniract or
agrasment subject o the Aces end the Regubations,

4. The Recipient will fxsent S clamses of Appendix B of this Assurance, a8 & covenant runring with e
Iand, e any deed fom the United States effecting or reconding 2 transfer of meal property, structures, ose,
or improvements thersan or interest therein 1o ¢ Recipiont.

5. Thet where the Revigient recesves Fedoral Snancial assistanos to construet a Tacility, oo part of & factlity,
the Assurance will extend to the entire Sicility snd facilities aperated fn conmection therewith.

4. That whevs the Recipient receives Feders! fimreial ssgistance in the foom, or for the Aenpaisition of ol
peaperly of an interest in toal property, tse Assurance will extend to rights fo space on, over, or sndir
such property.

7. That the Recipient will include the classes set Yorth In Appendix € and Appendix D of this Assurance, a3
& covenant running with the Tand, in any future deeds, beases, Yoenses, pormils, or shodlar fnstrisments
entered inte by the Recimient with other parties:

# for the subscquent tansfer of real property acquired ar tmproved unsder the applicable sctivity,
projest, or program; and

b for the constrnction er use of, ov seouss o, space o, 0ver, or swder seal property scquired or
smproved under the applicable sedivity, project, or progrios.

8. That this Assumnce obligates the Recipient for the period durbng which Federal Snancial assistance is
extznded tr the program, sxcept where the Federal financie] assistence i to provide, o & io the form of,
prsosal property, o real property, or Bsterest thevein, of structures o0 improvements thereosn, in which
cage G Assumance ebligates the Reciplent, of any transforee for fe longer of the following periocds:

4. the period dusing which the property Is used for 3 purpose for whick the Federat Tosneiat
assistumet s exterded, or for another purpose invalving te provision of simlar seevices or
Benefits: v

b. the peried daring which the Revipiont retaing ownership tr possession of the prperty.

9. The Recipient will provide for such methods of administration foe the program s sre found by the
Secretary of Transpostation of the official 10 whom he'she defopates specific authoriey 1o zive reasonable
guarantee that #. oder recipitnts, sub-reciplents, vontsactors, sitbheontractors, consultants_ transferens, '
sucgessors it interest, and other participant of Foderal Sracial assistance under such program will
camply with all requirstments fuposed of pursuant to the Acts, the Begalations, md this Assmance.

10. The Reciplent agroes that the Unfted Statos has a vight te seek judicial enforcement with regard to By
matter arising inder the Acts, the Regulatiooy, and this Assurance,

By stgning this ABSURANCE, the Reniplent also sprees o eoruply fand require any sob-recinlents, contracioes,




suecessurs, transfoeees, andior assigaees o vomply) with all applicable provisions goveming the DOT s secess ty
records, accounts, documents, informotion, feilities, eod stalf Yot slsn socognize that vour must comply with
any progrem or compliane: seviews, andier complaint fnvestigations conducted by the T, You must keep
records, repasts, snd submit the smateris! for revisw upon feguest to DOT, or s dedignes in 3 tusely, complete,
amd acenrate way. Additiomally, you sust pomply with all other reporting, data collective, and evalimtion
requirements, as preseribed by faw or detadled i program guidance.

The Rociplent gives this ASSURANCE in considesation ol and for obteining any Federal Sromits, Joans, contracts,
agrectnents, property, andfor discotnms, o other Federal-aid and Federa! Snameiad sssistance extended after the
date hereof't the recipients by fhe U.S. Department of Transportstion wnder the FY 2022 Thriving Communites
program, This ASSURANCE ix hinding on the Rocipien, other recipients, sub-recipionts, contractons,
subcontractons and thelr subcontractors”, transfirees, sucoessors in inferest, sl any other pasticipants In the FY
2022 Thrivisg Communities prograsy.

{Name o Revfpdent)

By

{Sigmattre of Authorined O0Fal}

DATED




APPENDIX A

During the performance of this contram, the vonwactor, for fself its assigoees, and successors in interest (hereinafier
referred to 28 the “contractor™) agrees 25 follows:

L. Ceompliznce with Regulatinns: The contractor (hereimafter includes consultantst will comply with the
Azis and the Reguiations relative to Non-disceimination in Federaly-assisted progrums o the U S,
Department of Trangportetion, the Build Americs Burenn), 28 they may be arvended fom time to fime,
which are herein Incorporated by reforince and made 2 past of this comract.

Z. Noew-discrimination: The contractor, with regand ra the work perfornred by it dusing the contract, will nm
discrimnate o the grounds o race, valar, or national mrigin in the selection and retention of
subcomration, incloding progurethents of mareeials and lases of egufpment. The contracior will sot
participate disectly or indirectly io the discrimination probibited by the Acts aud the Regulations, including
emaploymest practives when the voatrac vovers any activRy, project, ¢ program set forch in Appendix 8 of
SR CFR. Part 21

3. Solichations for Subeontracts, Including Provarements of Materials wnd Equipment: In a2l
soficitations, either by competitive bidding, er segotintion made by The contractor for work 5o be performed
nager @ subeontrct, inchuding procurements of mateskals, o leases of equipmens, each potentis!
subcuntracior ac supplier will be aotifted by the contegcir of the contracine’s obligations wider tivs
soatract and the Acts and e Regulations rolative to Non-dizerimination on the growmils of rece, colar, or
natiomt origi, .

4. Jaformation sod Reperts: The contractor will mrovide all informatinn and reports required by the Acts,
the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant therato and will peemit acoess 1o #s books, tecords,
axeounts, other sources of inforeation, and ity faoilites a5 sy be determined by the Racipiont or the
FHWA to be pertinent 1o asceriain corplance with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions, Where any
information required of o contractor is in the exclusive potsuesion of another whn Hils or refises to Gunisk
ihe infurmution, the contractor will 30 certify 1o the Reciplent or the FHWA, a3 appropriste, and will set
forth what efforis it has made o obtsin the informmation,

5. Sanctivns for Noneomplance: In the event of a contrsetor's noncomplionce with the Non-cdiserimination
provisions of this conteact, the Reviplent will inpost such contract sanetions as 38 of the FHWA may
determine te be approprinte, including, bat aot Hoited o

& withholding pavments o the contractor under the conirect untll the contractor cotuplies; andlor
b, wancelling, terminating, or suspending & contaet, in whole of i part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The comractor will include the provisions of patagraphs vac through six by
every subeonteact, including procurernents of materials and leuses of vqnipment, pnless exerpt by the Aots,
the Regulations and directives isswed pursuant thereto, The contractor will take action with respeet to any
subcontract or procureoient as the Rucipient or the FHWA muy Grect 28 2 means of enforcing such
provisions inchuding sanctions for noncomplianee. Frovided, thet if the contractor beepmes Involved in, or
is threatened with Tithgation by & subcortractor, or supphivr bocause of such drection, the contractor may
request the Recipient to enter inte any Biigation to protect the nteresss of the Racipient. Tn addition, the
contractor may request the United Siates 0 sotor inte the Btigption to protect the ntevests of the United
States.



APFPENDIXN B
CLAUSES FOR DEEDS TRANSFERRING UNITERD STATES FROVERTY

The following clauses will be Included in deeds effexting or teparding the transfer of real property,
structures, of improvements thereon, or grantiag interest theredn feom the United States pustuant o the
provisions of Spevific Assusmnes 4

NOW, THEREFORE, the U.S. Diepastment of Transporiation as swthorized by law and upon the condition
that the Reciplent will accept titte to the Tands and maintsin the project constructed thereon in acoordence
weith the Infrestruchire Investment and Johs A, Pub L. No, 117-58 fNov. 13, 2021, the Consolidated
Approprizons Act, 2022, Pub. L. Ne. 117-303 (Mar. 15, 2022), 39 US.C. § 6702, the Regulations for the
Administration of FY 2022 Thriving coesmunities program, aad the policies and procedures presoribed by
te U5, Deparument of Transportation in accocdance and in compliance with al! requirensents inyposad by
Title 49, Cade of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transpartation, Subtitte A, Offtee of the
Secretary, Fare 21, Nonediserimination in Pederely-assisted programs of the 1.8, Depatiment of
Transportation pertaining o and effectunting the provisions of Title VI of the Clvil Rights Act of 1964 (7R
Staf 352; 42 U.S.C. § 20004 o 20004-4), doss hereby remtise, telease, quitclaim and convey unte the
Recipient afl the right, title and interest of the .S, Department of Transportation in and o said jands
desceibed i Exhibit A antached hereto and made 2 pary hervof,

{BABENDUM CLAUSE)

TO BAVE AND TO HOLD said Jands and interests thereln unto Recipient and s successors Fareves,
subject, however, ta the covenants, condilions, mstrictions and reservations herein contained as follows,
which will rerads in effect for the period during which the real property or stecrtires are used fara
purposs far which Federal financial assistance is extended or for anctier purgose involving the provigion of
sirnifer servicas or besefits and will be binding on the Recipient, Hs succeseoes snd asgigne,

The Recipient, in consideration of the somveyance of s5id Tands and interasts in fands, does hereby
covenant and agree a3 @ covenant yunning with e land for jiself, its snccessons and assigns, that (1 oo
parson witl on the grunds of race, coler, or national origin, he excleded fom participation in, be denfed
the benefiis off ar be otherwise subjectad to disceinsination with regard to any facility tocared wholly or in
pact on, over, ar under such lands hereby conveyad ] fand]* {3) that the Recipient will nse the lands and
interests i Jande and interests in lands so conveved, in comphance withs aft requirements tmposed By or
pursuant 1o Title 49, Code of Foderal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle &, Office of
the Secretary, Part 21, Non-disceimination in Federafli-assisted progtams of the 1.5, Department of
Transpormtion, Effectustion of Title VI of the Civi] Rights Act of 1964, snd a3 sald Reeulations and Acts
may be amended], and (3} that in the vvent of breast of any of the abave-mentioned non-discrimination
conditions, e Department will have a right to enter or re-enter said lands and facitities on said fand, and
that above described land and faeilities will therson revert to and vest in and become the absolute prnperty
of the 125, Department of Transportation and its assigng s such interest oxisted prior to this instraction ]

{*Reverer clavse and related language to be used oaly when it is determined that such x clause is
necessary in order to make chear the porpese of Title VE}



APPENDIX C

CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMEROVED UNDER THE ACT IVITY.
FACILITY, OR PROGRAM

The following chnses will be Incladed n doeds, Beenses, leases, prermits, or shmilar instnaments extered intp
bry the Reciplent pursuant to the provisions of Specific Assurance Ha):

A, The {Reciplent, lessee, penmities, ote. a8 appropeizte’ for himsel fherself, histher heins, personal
PEPIESEOLAtIvER, SUCOUSKOTS s Mnterest, and assigns, 25 @ purt of the onsiderstion bereof, docs hereby
covenant and agrew fin the case of deeds sud leases wdd “as & covenant namnitg with e famd" that

L Ins e event fheifities ere constructed, mainained, or otherwise operated on the property describedd
izt this {deed, Heense, Tense, permit, vie ) for a purpose for which a 1.8, Departraent of
Trapsportatios activity, favitity, or progeans s extended or for another purpose imvolyving e
provision of sinifar survices or henefits, the (Reefplont, Hounsee, lopes, pormilios, vie.) will
matntakt and operate seck fietiitios and services in complanes with Al sequirements fmposed by
the Acts and Regulatons {as may be amended) such that so person on e grovnds of reee, coler, or
nationad oxigin, will be excheded from participation bn, Jesied the bomefity of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination in the use of sid Hcilives.

B. With rospoct fe Hoenses, Jeases, permits, o6, in the event of breack of any of the above Nott.
discrimination eovenants, Recipient will hove the sight 1o temminate the (Jease, Beonse, permit, vte ) sud to
cnter, re-enter, and repossess said lands st facilides therson, and bodd the suene 0 I the {laase, Hoermse,
perinit, ete.} had sever been miade or sped *

£, Wath cespevt 10 a deed, In the avent of breach of any of the above Non-Siserimination sovenants, the
Recipient will have the right to enter or re-enter the bnds and fheilities therenn, and the abave desoribnd
fands wnd feilities will there upon fevert 0 and vest in and bevvme the shsohute property of the Reciplent
mad its ansims

£*Reverter clowss aed related Snguage © be used only when 3t is deferiined thet such a clanse is neCERsary o
maiker chear the purpose of Tile V1)




APPENDIX D

CLALISES FOR CONSTRUCTIONUSEACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED UNDER THE
ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM

The following clauses will be ineluded in donds, Heoonses, permaits, or similar Instrumenty/apreements entered
into by Recipient purstant 1 the provisions of Specific Assaranee Wb}

A. The {Reciplent, liconses, pecmittes, ote., a8 appropriate} for himselPherself, histher heirs, personal
representatives. feceessors In interest, and assigne, a8 a pavt of the considetation bereof, dovs hegely
covenant and sgree (in the case of doeds and leages add, o8 3 covenant runsing with e bend”) that {1 ae
petsan of the grownd of race, color, or pational origin, will ke excluded fom participagon i, denfed the
benetits of, orbe otherwise subjocted v Ssorimination in the e 4 mid facibites, (2% that in e
comstruction of any Inprovements on, dver, or under sach Jand, and the fumishing of services thereon, to
person on the ground of raee, color, or mtonad origin, will be exchuded from perticipation in, dented fhe
benefits af, or stherwiss be sublecied 10 discrimination, {3} that the {Raviplont, Heensee, lossoe, pormafisee,
ete.} will use the premises In compliance with ald sther requivemsents imnposed by or pursuant to the Ads
md Repudstions, as amended, set forth in this Assorsnee,

B, With respeat 1o fHomses, leases, penmity, o1}, in e event of broseh of any of the above Non-
diseriminstion covenams, Rociplent will heve the sight ts feroninate the fHoenss, permit, e, ay
appropriste} and tr enter of re-enter and repossess said land mad the Bilites thereon, and hold the same 23
i s (Heense, perrml, vic., as aporopcipte} had never bueen made or Ixued.*

C. With respect to dewds, in the event of hreach of gny of the zbove Non-discoimimeion covenants, Rucipheat
will there upon revert to and vest in and become the stwobite propeny of Ructpiant and i assigms.®

(*Reverter chruse wod reluted lansuage to be used only when it is delernvined that sucht & clawse is neveRary o
ke clear the purpose of Tide VLY



APPENDIX E

During the performancs of this conterot, e conlracter, for itself, s waieners, and successors fn
miwrest {heveduafier reflemred to as the “contractor™ ageees 1 comply with the following non-
discrimination statstey and authorities; fncluding but not Hmited fo:

Pertinent Nop-Rissimination Awborities

Titte V1 of the Civil Rights Actof 1964 (42 11.8.C. § 2006 et yeg., T8 shap. 293
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of mce, coloe, national avignk and ¢ CF R
Past 21,

The Uniform Relocaton Assistance and Real Propurty Acquisition Policles Act of §970
(32 UE.C. § 4601}, (prohibits unfiy treatment of persons displased or whose property
tuts been asgoined becanse of Federal of Fedenl-aid programs and proferts):
Federab-Aid Highway Actof 1975, {25 US.C. § M o sy}, {profituis dserimination
on the basis of sexy;

Section 504 of the Rebabilitation At of 73, (3% TR C. § 794 o2 Fegd, a5 amended,
{pro®bits discrimination on the basis of Ssabilite); and 3¢ CF R Part e

The Age Mserimination &ct of 1975, 28 amended, {43150 § 6103 & seqd
{prohibits diserhmination o the basis of age);

Adrport and Afrway Improverseat Act of 1982, (48 US.C. B 4T, Section 27127),

as amended, {prohtbile diseriomination hased o e, creed, colos, national g,

or sexk

The Civil Rights Reswenifon Act of 1987, ¥, 160-208), (Broadened the soage,
voverage and applicability of Tithe VY of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age
Priscrimnination At of 1973 and Secton 304 of the Rehabilitation Act of 19738 by
axpanding the definfdon of the terms “programs or aetivities™ fo instude a¥ of the
progrems o sctivities of the Fedemd-nid recipionts, sub-recipients and contraclors,
whether such prograsss or activities ae Federally fanded or not):

Titles B and 1 of the Americans with Disah@itios Act, which prohibiy discdmimtion
oat the basis of dissbility in the operation of public entites, public and private
transporition systems, places of public sorotmmodation, and sertain tesiing entities
(A2 U5 § 1203 - 12159 s fplesmemted by Depastment of Transposiation
regulations ot 49 CFR. Pacts 37 and 38;

The Federal Avistion Adminiséation’s Nov-diserimination stapse 4R ILRC §474127)
(profibive diserimination on the basis of race, colos, nationsl orign, and sex);
Exseutive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Addmss Environrnental fusties in
Minority Populatons and Low-Incotre Populations, whinh susures _
nondiscrimination sgainet mismsrity populations by dscovraging progeans, policies,
andd activities with disproportionately high and adverse hieman health or

eavironmestad effects on minority and low-income popuiations;

Executive Order 13186, Impraving Sccess to Sereiess for Persons with Limied
Eaglish Proficiency, and resulting sgency puidance, national ovigin diserimination
inchudes discrimination becanse of bmited English proficieney tLEP). T ensure
compliznce with Title VI, you must teke revsonable steps to cpsure that LEP

peraans have meaningful socess 16 your programs (7R Fed, Reg, at 087 o TH100);
Tatle IX of the Eduration Amendments of 1972, a5 amended, which peohibits vou from



diserimpimiting beceuse of sex In education programs or activites (20 US.C § 1681 &
Seqy.




RESOLUTION

STATE OF LLOUISIANA ' NO.
CITY OF MONROE
The following Resolution was offered by Mr. /Ms. who moved for its

adoption and was seconded by Mr. /Ms.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT
WITH ISAAC KING D/B/A JUSTA COWBOY ASSOCIATION AND FURTHER
PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(c) of the Constitution of the State of Louisiana
provides that, “For a public purpose, the state and its political subdivisions or political subdivisions
or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors with each other, with the United
States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, corporation, or individual™;

WHEREAS, the Bayou Black Open Rodeo (“BBOR”) is hosted annually at the Monroe
Civic Center and draws participants and attendants from throughout the southern region;

WHEREAS, the BBOR promotes tourism, increases economic activity through retail
purchases and overnight stays, provides vendor opportunities for local and regional small
businesses, and provides access to sponsors and promotional opportunities both within the state
and regionally;

WHEREAS, the City of Monroe desires to participate in the BBOR as a title sponsor by
entering into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the BBOR’s proprietor(s); and

WHEREAS, the CEA will serve a public purpose by promoting economic development,
increasing tourism, and attracting events that showcase the City and enhance the quality of life of
its residents; and

WHEREAS, the City will receive commensurate value under the CEA by ensuring that the
BBOR continues to be hosted within the City, receiving the benefit of increased sales tax revenues
to the City, and receiving promotional opportunities unique to the BBOR that will showcase the
City both statewide and regionally.

WHEREAS, a copy of the Cooperative Endeavor Agreement between the City of Monroe
and Isaac King D/B/A Justa Cowboy Association is attached hereto and made part hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
Louistana, in legal session convened, Stacey Rowell, Director of Administration, is hereby
authorized to enter into and execute the attached Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with Isaac
King d/b/a Justa Cowboy Association.

This Resolution was submitted in writing and was then submitted to a vote as a whole, the
vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of June, 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK



COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT
BAYOU BLLACK OPEN RODEQO

This Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (“CEA™), is made, entered into and effective as of
August 15, 2024, by and between the City of Monroe (“City™), a municipality existing under the
laws of the State of Louisiana, and Isaac King d/b/a Justa Cowboy Association (*Recipient™),

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(c) of the Constitution of the State of Louisiana
provides that, “For a public purpose, the state and its political subdivisions or political subdivisions
or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors with each other, with the United
States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, corporation, or individual;”

WHEREAS, the Bayou Black Open Rodeo (“BBOR?) is hosted annually at the Monroe
Civic Center and draws participants and attendants from throughout the southern region;

WHEREAS, the BBOR promotes tourism, increases economic activity through retail
purchases and overnight stays, provides vendor opportunities for local and regional smalil
businesses, and provides access to sponsors and promotional opportunities both within the state
and regionally;

WHEREAS, the City of Monroe desires to participate in the BBOR as a title sponsor; and

WHEREAS, this CEA and the provision of funds under this Agreement will serve a public
purpose by promoting economic development, increasing tourism, and aftracting events that
showcase the City and enhance the quality of life of its residents; and

WHEREAS, the City receives commensurate value under this CEA by ensuring that the
BBOR continues to be hosted within the City, receiving the benefit of increased sales tax revenues
to the City, and receiving promotional opportunities unique to the BBOR that will showease the
City both statewide and regionally.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
herein contained, the City of Monroe and Bayou Black Oper Rodeo do hereby covenant and agree
as follows: :

L Recipient’s Obligations
Recipient shall:

1. Host the 2024 Bayou Black Open Rodeo at the Monroe Civie Center on August 24,
2024;

2. Promote the City and its hotels, restaurants, and retail facilities 1o BBOR participants
and attendees;

3. Identify the City as a title sponsor for the BBOR, and provide the City with the
following benefits as a title sponsor:

a. Space to provide a City-bamner or other City-related advertisement at the
BBOR;

b. Forty (40) complimentary tickets provided to the City;

c. Inclusion and identification as a title sponsor in all media advertisements,
including print, social media, television, and radio;

d. Booth space, if requested by the City, for promotions and giveaways;




- ¢. Eatrance in the BBOR parade;

f.  The opportunity for the Mayor, or his designee, to give the opening welcome at
the BBOR;

g Recognize the City as a title sponsor throughout the event. -

4. Provide the City with report no later than QOctober 1, 2024, documenting the estimated
financial impact of the BBOR within the City, including: 1) the number of attendees;
11) an estimate of the hotel, restaurant, and retail expenditures within the City; and i)
a description of any other economic impacts the rodeo had on the City; and

5. Account for all fimds received and spent under this CEA, which shall be provided to
the City upon request.

1L City’s Obligations

City shall waive the costs to stage, setup, and remove the rodeo dirt, including any
customary charges incurred by Public Works for such services. The Agreement to waive such
costs shall supersede any prior Agreement imposing such costs.

III.  Auditer’s Clause

The Louisiana Legislative Auditor and City auditors, both internal and external, shall have
the option of auditing all accounts, expenditures, receipts, and invoices related to this CEA. The
Bayou Black Rodeo shall promptly comply with all requests for information, accounts,
expenditures, receipts, and invoices under this CEA.

IV.  Cancellation
If the Bayou Black Rodeo breaches any of its obligations or commitments under this CEA
and fails to cure any such breach within five (5) days after recetving such notice, the CEA shall be
cancelled, and the funds disbursed under this CEA shall be fully reimbursed to the City.
THUS DONE, READ AND SIGNED in the presence of the undersigned fegal and

competent witnesses, in the City of Monroe, Ouachita Parish, State of Louisiana, on this _ day
of August, 2024.

WITNESSES: Isaac King d/b/a Justa Cowboy Association

BY:
WITNESSES: CITY OF MONROE
BY:

Stacey Rowell, Director of Administration




RESOLUTION

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE
The following Resolution was offered by Mr. /Ms. who moved for its

adoption and was seconded by Mr. /Ms.

A  RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. EIGHT ) TO THE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MONROE AND
BURNS & MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.,, RELATED TO THE
MONROE WATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION AND IMPROVEMENTS
PROJECT AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. and the City of Monroe
entered into a Professional Services Agreement for the Water Treatment Plant Expansion and
Improvements Project, which has been amended and previously modified; and

WHEREAS, Amendment No. 8 to the Professional Services Agreement, a copy of which
is attached hereto and made part hereof, further amends and modifies the existing agreements to
provide for an updated scope of services for the project, including a Tracer Study and other
additional engineering services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
m Jegal and regular session convened that Stacey Rowell, Director of Administration, be and is
hereby authorized to enter into and execute Amendment No. 8 to the Professional Services
Agreement between the City of Monroe and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.

This Resolution was submitted in writing and was then submitted to a vote as a whole, the
vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of August 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK



> BURNS
S\MEDONNELL

AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
ENGINEER-CLIENT AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT No. 8 Date: July 24, 2024

NOW THEREFORE, THIS AMENDMENT No. 8 modifies the Agreement dated September 19, 2018
made by and between Burns & WMcDonnell Engineering Company, Inc., (hereinafter called
CONSULTANT), and City of Monroe, Louisiana (hereinafter called CLIENT) for the following Project:
Monroe Water Treatment Plant Expansion and [mprovements Project. For good and valuable
consideration, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties agree to make the following changes
to their Agreement.

1. The parties agree that the CONSULTANT's Scope of Services is amended as follows, with
underlined text showing changes and striken text showing deletions:
TASK 26 ~ WTP RERATING AND COORDINATION WITH LDH

26,1 CONSULTANT wilf conduct tracer study in each of three freatment trains and thie two
ground storage fanks to evaluate flow path and defermine baffling factor for CT calculations.

26.1.1  CONSULTANT will provide up to eight personnel on-site for up fo two weeks to
conduct tracer study. Tracer study will include testing af fwo different piant flow rafes as
deienmined by LDH.

26.1.2 Tracer study plan will be developed with input from CLIENT staff
CONSULTANT will coordinate with [DH for approval of the fracer study plan.
CONSULTANT will provide fracer chemical and the required equipment and operation to
store, feed, and monitor the tracer chemical,

26.1.3 CONSULTANT will provide Technical Memorandum summarizing the tracer
study test methods, data obtained, and resulfing baffle factors.

.26.1.4 CONSULTANT will assist CLIENT in submitting Technical Memorandum to LDH
and coordinating with LDH for modification fo CLIENT's CT calculations.

26.1.5  CONSULTANT will revise CT Templafe spreadsheet for CLIENTs use fo
caleulate and report CT values based on the tracer study results following LDH's approval
of the modified CT calculations.

1 MONROE_AMS AE-D 1 06/21/2023



2. The following adjustments are mads to the CONSULTANT’s compensafion:

Tasks 26 of the Scope of Services will be compieted on a time and materials basis with a not to
exceed fimit of One Hundred Forty Thousand Dolfars ($140,000.00). Original funding from Task
26 will be applied to these fasks, in the amount of Forty-fwo Thousand Dolflars ($42,000.00).
Therefore, Consulftant's compensation wilf be increased by a fotal of Ninety-Eight Thousand
Dolfars ($88,000.00).

A detailed estimate of the additional cost is included as Exhibit A. For additional, reduced, or
changed Scope of Services, the amount of payment shalf be adjusted on CONSULTANT's hourfy
fabor billing rate plus reimbursable expense basis. Rafes are shown in Exhibit B.

3. The time for completion of CONSULTANT's Services is adjusted as follows:

Task 26 is planned to be completed within 150 days after the Phase 2 Substantial Completion
date for consiruction (8/9/2024), pending review timelines from LDH.

4, Other changes to the Agreement, if any, are stated below:
None.
5. The terms of this AMENDMENT supersede any confrary terms of the Agreement. This

AMENDMENT will be deemed a part of, and be subject to, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement. Except as modified above, the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

1 MONROE AMS.AE-B 2 0672172023



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this AMENDMENT the day and year first written
above.

THIS AGREEMENT CONTAINS A BINDING ARBITRATION PROVISION, WHICH MAY BE
ENFORCED BY THE PARTIES.

CLIENT: City of Monroe, Louisiana CONSULTANT: Burns & McDonnell
Engineering Company, Inc.

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:

1 MONROE.AM8_AE-G 3 _ 06/212023



EXHIBIT A

Amendment 8 Cost Breakdown

Activity BilcD BMcD Professional Expenses Total
Subtotal Labor Services [tem
No. Description Lahor Hours Cost {Subconsultants) Cost
L 25 Originél < WTP Rerating_and Coordination wf LDH .. PR T . 9,660 | o 38T0 | $ v U 42,000
Tracer Study, Tech Memo, CT Calculations and LDH
261 |Coordination 26] 5 6526415 15030 f $ - 22,000
Filter High-rate Testing Plan, Data Review, Tech Memo,
26.2 iand LDH Coordination 14] 5 3,306 |35 15840 % - 20,000
- 26 1 |Revised - WTP Reratjg'and Coordination wf LDH .3, sbicens e 40 B 9,680 | § Srtedn. 129,500 - . 445,000
Tracer Study, Tech Memo, CT Calculations and LDH
26.1 lCoordination 40] $ 9,660 | % 129,500 S - 140,000
ol $ -
Delta 8,000
Exhibit A 1 712412024




Water Treatment CT Study {Tracer Study)
City of Monroe
1 |Furnish and Install applicable plumbing for study 1 15 S 2,000 | 5 2000
2 |Purmish necessary test equipment, reagents, gl & 1 s | s 3500 % 3,500
32 |Furmish sample bottles ’ 3, s |3 2,500 % 2,500
H
4 {Labor (4 technicians for up to 2 weeks @ 5100/hr) 526G | Hrs. | 100 | & 32,000
5 |Travet, lodg‘mg, & dining expenses 1 LS S 5000 | 5 5,000
Waggoner Engirieering, Inc.” - ) . "
1

6 labar (2 Tnterns for up to 2 weeks & $50/hn 160 | Hrs. | 8 S 8,000
Labor {1 technican for up to 2 weeks @ 5130/h0) E 0 Hs | & 1305 10,400

7 |Travel, lodging, & dining expenses 1 LS < 43001 % 4,300
#  |Seal & Stamp CT Final Report to LOH 1 15 | B | % 200
Subtotal | & 68,500

Additicnal Items to be Provided by TMB . L L s ST o

A [Fumish and Install hulk chemical storage tank 1 LS [$ 2000035 20000
B {Furnish and Install chemicat feed purnp 1 IS | & 16000|$ 16000
€ |Furnish tracer study chemical 1 s | & 2500035 25000
Additignal Subtotal | § 531,000

Project Subtotal] 5 129,500
Orighnal Budget Allocation (Tracer Study & Filter Re-Rating} | §  {30,870)

Total Project Cost {City of Monrce Additional Ailocation)[ $ 92,630

MOTES: 2] The hulk of the increase in pries lies in chemicals, chernical storage, and chemical feed appurtenances. Not included in orginal scope.
b) The most reeznt raund of comments apd en-site wall-threugh with the LDH increased the duration and complexity of the study,
¢} The study s conservatively profected for up ta two [2) weeks, not exceading.
] Labor will ba billed at the rates abova, noted in [ ), only for haurs werked an-sita,

* Lakor breakdown below;
TiB {4 1otal technisians provided)
1 technician maintaining chemicat feed system
1 technician pulling sarnples
2 technlcians nmning samples

Waggonar (2 interss & % technictan provided
2interns pulling sarmples
1technician pulling samples




(225) 654-4955
FAX: (225} 654-9533

Post Office Box 181
Thornton, Musso, & Bellemin, Inc. — Thorary, LATOTH
WATER TREATMENT CONSULTANTS D I ST

June 21, 2024

Mr. Chandler Warren
Waggoner Engineering
10542 8. Glenstone Place
Baton Rouge, LA 70810
RE: Monroe CT
Chandler:

TMB appreciates the opportunity to present this proposal to you on behalf of the City of
Monroe for a full plant CT study:

TMB responsibilities — all equipment is retained by the City:

1. Provide tank $20,000

2. Provide plumbing for pilot injection tie in $ 2,000

3. Provide pump for CT study $16,000

4. Provide CT tracer chemical $25,400

5. Provide necessary test equipment, reagents, and glassware $ 3,500

6. Provide sample bottles § 2,500

7. Provide 4 people for up to 2 weeks to conduct tracer $32,000

8. Hotel/travel expenses $ 5,000

9. Provide 3-4 TMB personnel to assist with sampling and analyzing samples

10. Perform CT studies for both 91% of max flow (22 MGD) and average flow (16

MGD)
1. Provide report within 2 weeks upon completion of the CT study

Total if the City of Monroe keeps all equlpmenﬂreagents upon complefion of tracer
studies: $106,000



Thornton, Musso & Bcllemin, Inc.
Mr. Chandler Warren

Project Engineer
June 21, 2024
Page 2

TMB responsibilities — all equipment is retained by TMB:

1. Provide tank $15,000

2. Provide plumbing for pilot injection tie in $ 2,000

3. Provide pump for CT study $13,000

4. Provide CT tracer chemical 825,000

5. Provide necessary test equipment, reagents, and glassware $ 3,500

6. Provide sample bottles $ 2,500

7. Provide 4 people for up to 2 weeks to conduct tracer $32,000

8. Hotel/travel expenses $ 5,600

9. Provide 3-4 TMB personnel to assist with sampling and analyzing samples

10. Perform CT studies for both 91% of max flow (22 MGD) and average flow (16

MGD)
11. Provide report within 2 weeks upon completion of the CT study

Total if the TMB keeps all equipment/reagents upon completion of tracer studies:
$98.000

TMB expects a 3-4 week lead time to be able to have tank, pump, and chemical onsite.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks, _

M

Rebecca Bellemin
Thomton, Musso & Bellemin, Inc.



Exhibit B

%,
BURNS NSDONNELL

January 16, 2024

Mr. C. Morgan McCallister, P.E.

City Engineer

City of Monroe Engineering Department
802 N. 31 Street

Monroe, LA 71203

Revised Schedule of Hourly Rates
Project No, 110690

Dear Mr. MeCallister:

As indicated in our existing agreement, Burns & McDonnell annually adjusts its Schedule of

Hourly Rates for Professional Services.

Enclosed is our Schedule of Hourly Professional Services Billing Rates effective for services
performed for the above listed projects for January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024.

We thank you for the opportunity to continue serving you.

Sincerely,

AT o

f # M ,,»*“251’

/ g AT
Cliff-Cate, P.E. |

Client Manager

ACY/acy |
Enclosure: MONROE 2024A
ce: Rachel Drain, WTR

Arthur Hoelland, Monroe
Accounting

Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.
2400 Ward Patkway \ Kansas City, MO 64114
0 816-323-9400 \ F 816-333-3630 \ burnsmed.com



Schedule of Hourly Professional Service Billing Rétes for Burns &

McDonnell
Position Classification Houry
Classification Level Billing Rate
General Office* b $36.00
Technician® & $108.00
Assistant* 7 $124.00
8 -$168.00
] $196.00
Staff* 10 $224 00
11 $240.00
Senlor 12 $268.00
13 $296.00
Associate 14 $308.00
15 $308.00
16 $310.00
17 $318.00
Resident Project 1 3184.00
Representative

NOTES:

1. Position classifications listed above refer to the fim’s internal classification system for employee compensation.
For example, “Associate”, "Seniar”, etc., refer to such positions as *Associate Enginger”, “Senior Architect”, etc.

2. For any nonexempt parsonnel in positions marked with an asterisk (%), overtime will be billed at 1.5 fimes the
hourly labar billing rates shown for hours charged to the project beyond 40 hours per week.

3. Project time spent by corporate officers will be billed af Level 17 rate.

4. For outside expenses incurred by Bums & McDonnell, such as authorized travel and subsistence, and for services
rendered by others such as subcontraciors, the client shall pay the costto Burns & McDonnell.

5. Monthly invoices will be submitted for payment covering services and expenses during the preceding month.
Invoices are due upon receipt. A late payment charge of 1.5% per month will be added o all amounts not paid
within 30 days of the invoice date.

6. The services of contract/agency and/or any personngl of Burns. & McDonnell subsidiary or affiliate shall be billed
o Owner according to the rate shaet as if such personnel is a direct employee of Burns & McDonnell.

7. The rates shown above are effective for services through December 31, 2024, and are subject to revision
thereafter,

8. RPR Hourly Billing Rates are inclusive of per diem expenses.

MONROE_Z2024A



RESOLUTION

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE
The following Resolution was offered by Mr. /Ms. who moved for its

adoption and was seconded by Mr. /Ms.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NO. FIFTEEN (15) FOR THE
WATER TREATMENT PLANT RENOVATION AND EXPANSION PROJECT AND
FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, Change Order No. 15 will increase the contract amount for the Water
Treatment Plant Renovation and Expansion Project by $136,528.75 and add 42 additional calendar
days to contract time; and

WHEREAS, Change Order No. 15 is attached hereto and made part hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Moxroe,
in legal and regular session convened that Stacey Rowell, Director of Administration, be and is
hereby authorized to execute Change Order No. 15 for the Water Treatment Plant Renovation and
Expansion Project.

This Resolution was submitted in writing and was then submitted to a vote as a whole, the
vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of August 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK



BURNSCM&DONNELL*

July 30, 2024

Morgan McCallister
City Engineer

City of Monroe

802 North 31 Street
Monroe, LA 71201

Re: Monroe WTP Renovation and Expansion Change Order Recommendation
Change Order 15 '
City PN 18WTR038, BMcD PN 110890
Dear Mr. McCallister:
Max Foote Construction Company submitted the following change requests.
. Building Code Requirements
= Trace Electrical Circuits and Contract Extension for Copeland Electric
« Extend BW Pump Baffle Wall and Pipe Support
* Electrical Room Conduit Material
* Add Base in Existing Building
* Misc Piping Additions and Changes
* Remove Concrete Duct Bank from Milled Areas
» Credit for Concrete Repair at Existing Clearwel!
* Request for Additional Time Due to Change Orders
 Add Solenoid Valve to Caustic Injection Piping
» Modify HYAC Balance to Contrel Room
* Norih Entry Road Modifications
e (Carrection to Change Order 14

These changes are the result of field coordination and discussions with the City and Contractor,
and all are needed to move forward with construction of the Monroe WTP.

400 Ward Parkway \ Kansas Ciky, MO 84114
O B18-3533-2400 \ F B818-33%-3500 N burmsmod.com Page 1 of 220




BURNSQM&DONNELL

Morgan McCallister
City of Monroe
July 30, 2024

Page 2

Burns & McDonnell has reviewed the change requests and confirmed they are in line with
contract requirements. All requested revisions have been made by Max Foote Construction
Company.

Burns & McDonnell believes the changes to be appropriate and recommends City approval. If
you or your staff should have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (816) 743-4776 or
at ridrain@burnsmed.com.

Sincerely,

m;s § M'“‘\ L
@J et

Rachel Drain, PE
Project Manager

JNW/AINW

Attachments — Change Order 13, Change Requests
cc:  Daren Johnson, City of Monroe
Sean Benton, City of Monroe
Arthur Holland, City of Monroe
Derek Sanders, Waggoner Engineering
Jenny Warren, Burns & McDonnell

2400 Ward Parleway \ Kansas Ciby, MO 84114
O 815-2335-2400 \ F 318-255.-3850 \ bumsmod.com Page 2 of 220




O BURNS
“NMEDONNELL

HAOT/Z0T5 Fomm CO2

CHANGE ORDER 15
For Contract between Owner and Contractor
Project Name: Monroe WTP Renovation and Expansion BMcD Project No. 110690

Owner; City of Monroe Client Projest No. 18WTR038
Coniractor: Max Foote Construction Company, LLC Cantract No.

The below noted modification(s) to subject Gontract are directed by Owner and accepted by Coniractor
(any applicable attachments are specifically identified):

1. Modifications due te Building Code Requirements — Addition of $3,285.83 and © days.

2. Trace of Electrical Circuits and Contract Extsnsion for Copeland Electric — Addition of $13,365.2¢9
and C days.

3. Extension Backwash Pump Baffle Wall and Addition of Pipe Support — Addition of $7,746.00 and 0
days.

4, FEectrical Conduit Material Substitution — Deduct of $2,661.80 and ¢ days.

5. Addition of Base in Existing Building — Addition of $3,385.37 and 0 days.

6. Miscellaneous Piping Additions and Changes — Addition of $17,301.00 and 0 days.

7. Removal of Concrete Duct Bank from Milled Areas — Addition of $7,596.00 and 0 days.

8.  Credit for Concrete Repair at Existing Clearwell — Deduct of $12,842.00 and 0 days.

9. Request for Additional Time due to Change Orders — Addition of $0.00 and 21 days.

10, Addition of Solenoid Valve to Caustic Injection Piping — Addition of $3,941.00 and 0 days.
11, Modifications to HVAC Balance to Contrel Room — Addition of $1,762.00 and 0 days.

12. Modifications 1o North Entry Road — Addition of $93,753.00 and 21 days.

13. CGorrection to Change Order 14 — Deduct of $102.84 and 0 days.

Aitachments; Change Request Documentation

As a result of the modification{s) described above:

The revised Contraci Price is:

Original Conmtract PriCE ..o ettt ee e et ran e $ 46,640,000.00
Total net amount of all previous Change Orders .o, (+or-).$2.211.775.24
Total net amount of all previcus variable quaniity adjustments ............. {+ or -).$ 0
Total net amount of this Change Ordel..... e, {+ or -).§ 136,528.75
Current Contract Price, including this Change Order ... oveeeroreveeeeeeeeeeens $ 48.988.303.99
The revised Coniract Time is: '
Substantial Ready for
Completion Final Payment
Original Completion Date({s}......ccvmiricerecereeceessecvee e, 8/1/23 and 1/29/24  3/15/24
Total net time adjustment” of all previous Change Orders{+ or-) 149 149
Total net time adjustment” of this Change Order............. (+or-) 42 (Phaselignly} 42
* Time adjustment is specified in: [ ] Working Days Galendar Days [_] Cther
Current Completion Date(s), including this Ghange Order ......... 10/26/23 and 8/9/24  9/23/24

Page1of2
Page 3 of 220



w BURNS
“NMEDONNELL

. . . . . A : BIAI2015 Form 002
The price and/or time extension set forth in this Change Order is full compensation for all costs and

defays, direct and indirect, incurred in connection with the conditions giving rise to this Change Crder, the
work specified herein, and any conséquential costs, delays, or effects on unchanged work resulting
therefrom,

This Change Order, when executed, constitutes a modification 1o the Contract and all provisions of the
Contract, except as modified above and by any previous Change Orders, shall apply hereto.

OWNER CONTRACTOR

Max Foote Construction Company

By By ﬁzgfg /5/ &/

Date Date __ 7/30/2024

The conditions of the Change Order are noted for compiiance and payment.
BURNS & McDONNELL

‘ﬂ? '\\e 4
o e
By : Date _7/30/2024

Page 2of 2
Page 4 of 220



Change Order 15 -
item #1 — Change Request #103: Building Code Requirements

Page & of 220



RHX FLOTE
CONSTRUCT

U COL L LG GENERAL CONTRACTONG

May 7%, 2024

Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company
9400 Ward parkway
Kansas City, Mo 64114

Atto: Jenny Warren
Re: Monroe Water Treatment Plant Renevations and Expansion
Subject: Change-lfem #103 — Building Code Requirements

Dear Ms. Watren,

This change order proposal includes additional work that was performed in order to comply with
building and fire cude requirements. I have atfached commaunication from United Automations
and Schindler Elevator that discuss these code requirements. The details of these changes are
explained befow. '

Ttem #1 - Add Smoke Detector in Elevator Hoist way
- Please reference RFI 209 response and follow up email correspondence from the
construction feam and elevator manufacturer.
- This work was previously performed to meet the code requirement and pass all
building and fire inspéctions

Item #2 - Add Andible Deviee for Fire Alarm System

- R¥FI223 was submitted after discussions with Building Officials in order to conform
to the Fire alarm and sprinkier codes.

- Bums & MeDonnell was notified of this requirement and su poested that this change
was not warramted and could be installed as shown en the plans. After fuurther
research, we have produced the requirement that changed the condition of the
contract drawings and required additional wark to be performed.

- This work was previously performed to meet the code requirément and pass all
building and fire inspections; '

Total price for eonsideration is $3,285.83.

Cost Breakdown

Copeland Elechie: $3,075.83
Bond: $25.00
Insurance: $31.00
Coniractor OHEP: $ 15400

PUAT [IFHCE BOX 2208 MANDENLLE, LEHSIRNA POLT0-208 (385 Bat-ASES

HX (q 5 B-A5B0 Page 6 of 220



This proposal dass not include DBE participation, Work is being performed by Copeland

Electric and United Automations who are not DBE contractors,

Sincerely,

Steven Hinton ™ s

Project Manager

Cc: Rachef Dirain, PE
Marges Jardine
Gary Braddock

Attachinents:
-~ Emai} Correspondence for Fire Alarm Addition
- Copeland Electric Proposal for Fire Alarm
- Email Correspondence for Sprinkler Alarm Addition
- Copeland Electric Froposal for Sprinkler Alarm Chreuit

File: 331~ Change Orders

Page 7 of 220



Request for Information
Monroe WTP Renovation and Expansion Project

RFI Number: 331-209

RF1 Subject: Fire Alarm Devices for Elevator Equipment — ECN 006

Reference Spec.: N/A Reference Drawing: (FA401 & ECN 006
RFI Question: See attached ECN 008, Change itemn #8 that was approved in change arder number 5,

and emait correspondence from Copeland Electric.

Based on the outcome of United Automation ceordination with Schindler, the smoke
detectors deleted in ECN 003 appear to be required. | know there was much
conversation regarding the adds and deducts surrounding the Elevator Manufacturers
requirements and could not find anything specific pertaining to the smoke detectors.
Flease review and provide direction regarding the need for the referenced smoke

detectors.
Submitted by (GC). MFCC Date: 8/31/2023
Submitted by (SUBY: Date:
Rec'd by (Eng.): : Date:
RFI Response: Per NFPA 13 (2013 ed.) 8.15.5.6 and 8.15.5.7.2, sprinkler protection is not required in

the elevator hoistway. According to NFPA 72 (2013 ed } 21.3.8, smoks deteciors shall
not be installed in unsprinklered elevator hoistways unless they are installed to activate
the elevator hoistway smoke relief equipment. Since there Is no elevator hoistway
smoke relief equipment as part of this project, it is understood smoke detection is not
required in the etevator hoistway, Additionatly ASME A.17.1 (2013 ed.) 2.27.3.2.1(c)
only requires smoke detection In elevator hoistways when sprinklers are required in
those hoistways. Please provide code requirement for smoke detection in elevator
hoistway.

Camden Knoff
Burns & McDonnell
09/05/2023

Resp. by (Eng.): Date:

Distribution: Jenny Warren, EIT —Burmns & Mc | Others:
Rachel Drain, PE — Bums & Mc

Page 8 of 220



PART OF RFi 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

BURNSQM&DONNELL,.

Engineering Change Notice

City of Monroe, Louisiana
Monroe Water Treatment Plant — Renovations and Expansion
City Project Number 18WTR038
BMeD Project Number 110690

Notification From: Kerrie Greenfelder Engineering Change Notice: ECN 606
Burns & McDonnell Initial Notification By: S. Hinton
. Dare of Notification: 11/3/21

Issued To: Steven Hinton

Max Foote Construction Company, LLC Approved by Owner: N;A_
225 Antibes Street West Date Approved by Owner: N/A

Mandeville, LA 70448 Issued to Contractor By: J. Warrer
Date [ssued to Contractor: 11/12/21

Subject: Filter/Admin Building Elevator — Removal of Sprinklers and Smoke Detection

Drawing Reference: FA401, FA402, FA403, FX401, FX402, FX403

Specification Reference: 21 13 13, 28 31 00

Reason for Change (Check all that apply): [X] Modify current detail or spec [] Addition to current
documents

Description - Initial Notification of Issue: Contractor requested Engineer review the need for
sprinkler protection and smoke detection in the elevator hoistway based on fire rating of supplier-
provided traction suspension system.

Description - Issued to Contractor: Contractor provided evidence of elevator polyurethane-coated -
steel belt having the equivalent of FT-1 rating when tested to the requirements of UL 1581 as detailed
in NFPA 13 (2013 ed.) §8.15.5.7. Engineer has agreed that based upon this information, smoke
detection may be omitted from the top of the elevatar hoistway and sprinkier protection may be
omitted from the top and bottom of the elevator hoistway in accordance with NFPA 13 §8,15.5.3,
NFPA 72 (2013 ed.) §21.3.6 and ASME A17.1 {2013 ed.) §2.27.3.2.1. This ECN is notification of this
change.

CONTRACT DRAWINGS:
1. FA and FX drawings

a. FA401: Remove smoke detector from elevator hoistway and associated flow and
tamper switches. Remove Keyed Notes 4 and 5.

FA402: Remove tamper switch and Keyed Note 1.

c. FA403: Remove elevator hoistway flow switch and elevator hoistway smoke
detection inputs and associated outputs from the functional matrix. Remove
associated schematics and keyed notes from the one-line diagram.

d. FX401: Remove elevator hoistway zone control valve assembly detail and Keyed Note
3.

e. FX402: Remove control valve detail and Keyed Note 1.

f.  FXA03. Remove details F2 and H9.

2. Specifications
a. 2113 13: Remove sections 2.12.8.4.cand 3.14
b. 2831 00: Remove references to elevators in section 3.05.H.

Total number of pages, including any revised drawings and specifications: {

Page @ of 220



AR HIOTE
CHMGTRACTION CO.LL0 | GENERAL CONTRACTORS

PART OF RFI 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY
March 24, 2022

Burns & McPonell BEngineering Company
9400 Ward parkway
Kansas City, Mo 64114

Attn: Jenny Warren
Re: Monroe Water Treatment Plant Renovations and Expansion

Subject: Change Item #8 — Electrical Changes Required per Flevator Requirements & Sprinkler
system changes per BUNG0S — Revision 1

Dear Ms, Warren,

As a result of the conference call that tock placs on November 39, 2021 at 2pm, the helow s a
summary from Cepeland Electric of changes that are reguired from the contract documents to
satisfy the requirements of the Blevator Manufacturer.

1. The drawings and spees call for a shunt trip bresker feeding the elevator, However, it
does not specify that the breaker needs a set of Aux contacts as stated in the elevator
submiftals. Add Aux Contacts, _

4. The elevator submittal requires for {3) disconnecting means for the main elevator power.

A shunt trip cireuif breaker, a fused disconnect n the slectric center and a non-fused

disconnect at the elevator haist way. It also specifies that each of the (3) devices ave

required 1o have a set of Aux contacts so that the siate of each switch can be monitored,

Our original proposal included a shunt trip breaker to feed the elevator along with that

conduit and wire. The additional disconnects as weil as the added conduit that will be

required was not in our original propesal. Also; the conduit and wire required for the

Axx contact cireuit was rot included,

‘The elevator submitial requires a fused disconnect for the 120V lighting circuit to the

elevator car. Our otiginal proposal inclnded a 120V breaker and feeder for the car lights

but it did not include a ssparate fised disconnet and the additional condeit and wire that
will be required, '

ad

In reference 1o the electrical changes for ECNQ06, the oredit for smoke detector FA401 and
tamper switch FA402 was offset by the additional desigp cost and drawing changes required by
United Automations thus resulting in 2 no cost change from United Automation. American Fire
Protection has provided a deduct for deleting the sprinkiers in the elevator shaft and associated
piping as per the attached email.

PUGT (FRCE Bk kB8 MRADRUILLE, (ISR 7t 76-4d00 (A5 BL-85E7
FHH {q 5] EE!%&EQ Page 10 of 220



PART OF RFI 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

Total additional cost for the changes required by the elevator manufacturer and all work related to |
the changes made in ECN 006 is $7,951.60.

Copeland Electric: $8,014.80 (See attached proposal)

American Fire Protection: ($552.00) Deduct (See attached email)
MECC OB&P 3% 3373.00

Bond: $47.00

Insurance: $69.00

Please review and lst me know if vou have any questicrs or need additional Diformation, Dus to
product volatility, availability, and rising costs of material, the above pricing is firm for 14 days.

Project Manger

Ce: Rachel Drain, PE
Margee Jardine
Louis Garms

Aftachments; i
Copeland Electric Proposal '

Email From American Fire Protection

BCNG06

Excerpt from Elevator Submittal and Drawings

File: 331- Change Orders

Page 11 of 220



PART OF RFI 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

COPELAND ELECTRIC COMPANY, LLC.

Residential - Commercial - Industrial

(318) 322-9865
Fax (318) 322-3329
P.O. Box 4051 Monroe, Louisiana 71211

February 22, 2022

Revised March 17, 2022

Mr. Steven Hinton

Max Foote Construction Co. LLC
225 Antibes Street West
Mandeviile, LA 70448

RE: MWTP C/O .# 2 Elevator Requirements
RFI#

Steven

We propoese to fumish all supervision, labor, materials, equipment, Jicense and insurance
for the following scope of work:

Add aux contacts to shunt trip breaker in panel WTP-ADM-PNL-0331 cir. # 19

Add 3 pole 480v fused disconnect (V1) with aux contacts identified as (JH).
Include fuses.

Add 3 pole 480v non fused disconnect (N4XSS) with aux contacts identified as
(JBl)

Add 2 pole 208v fused disconnect (N1) for cab lights. Include fuses.
Provide submittals as needed

Furnish and install conduit and cable as needed

Terminate all conductors

Provide SCCR information to ensure available fault current does not exceed
5000amps at the service switch. Label disconnect accordingly.

Include fuse sizes and types in coordination study

Delete smoke detector FA401

Delete tamper switch FA402

No deduct from United Automation. It cost more money to change drawings than
the devices were worth.

Page 12 of 220



PART OF RF{ 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

Page 2

This is a Jump sum proposal for $8,014.00

Breakouts:

Labor $3,510.00
Materials $ 545.00
Square D $2,345.00
Equipment § 421.00
OHP $1,193.00
Fire alarm -0-

Please call if I can be of further assistance

Regards
James Canizaro

Page 13 of 220



PART OF RF! 208 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

From: Bryan Torner

To: Steven Hintan

Subject wtp elevator sprinkler deletion

Date: Thursday, February 24, 2022 8:47:42 AM

Hey Steven, I got tied up yesterday until late. Do you want me to send you a deductive CO on our
letter head or can you use this email. The deletion of the sprinklers in elevator is $552.00. This
equates to 2 hours of labor, materials {1in pipe/fittings). [ spoke with Tim and he said he can be oyt
there tomorrow. Just give him a shout today some time, this will give him some time to schedule.

Thanks a million!
BT

Bryarﬁ Turner | American Fire Protection Group - Monroe | Contract Sales | D: 318-855-1339 |
Office: 318.388.2345 | Cell: 318-602-9036 | 1022 N. 4th Street| Monroe, LA 71201 | F: 318-450-4357 ]

v afpgusa.com

A Division of American Fire Protection Group, Inc.

Page 14 of 220



PART OF RFj 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

08/02/2021
Schindler Elevator Corporation
Elevator Power Data

Job Name: Monroe WTP Expansion GO#: P3200
- Unit{s): 01
2401 N 10th St ' Capacity: 3000 Ibs
Monroe, LA 71201 Speed:; 150 fpm
Building Voltage: 480 VAC: -
Sales Office: 8670 Product Code: 451
installing Office: 9670 Travel: 26 ft10 in

A, Coordination; All electrical equipment placement and installation shall be
coordinated with the Local Schindler Superintendent prior to Schindler manning the
jobsite.

B. Elevator Equipment Power

1. {JH): The Elevator Disconniecting means:

» Shall be an enclosed, externaily operable, motor circuit switch, shali be listed
and lockable in the open position in accordance with NFPA 70.

. 'Sha]l be supplled and located ina bw]dmg utlllty space cut3|de the hmstway
due to the Motor Controller being Tocated in the E[evator Hmstway One:
‘disconnect is requ1red for each elevator. A [abel on’ the disconnect | is reqmred
stating location of the supply s;de (feeder) overcu rrent protectlon dewce in
accordance with’ NFPA 70.

a. 480 Volts; 3 Phase; 60 Hz
b. Balanced Wye line to line, 3 wire & a Ground (no neutral)
¢. Must be within +/- 10% of the specified voltage.
d. 3% maximum phase to phase fluctuation.
e. Cannot be a Delta wiring scheme
f. SCCR rating of equipment 5000 Amps. Refer to SCCR section in Appendix
g. SCCR rating label required NFPA 70. Refer to SCCR section in Appendix
h. Current Consumption by System
» Accelerating (non-continuous) <3.5 Sacs: 14.7 Amps
+ Running (nen-continuous) < 0.1 Sec Max. Run Time: 12.8 Amps
i. Elevator Motor Controller Horsépower Demand
e 138
J. Current Regeneration back to the Building
» Decelerating (non-continuous) <3.5 Sec: 2.4 Amps
» Running (non-continuous) < 0.18ec Max. Run Time: 3.5 Amps
k. Fuse Size; Sized by GC!
s System Runnlng Current at Constant Speed 12.8 Amps
+ Recommended Receptacle Rating based on fuse size
» Pual element time delay characteristic recommended
1. Feeder size based on Secondary Fusing (reference Autotransformer
Section above if present} of Transformer or Building Fuse Size (3
ungrounded conductors & an equipment grounding conductor) in
accordance with NFPA 70.

Page 15 of 220



PART OF RFi 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

m. Auxrllary dry contact for Evaouatlon in accordance wrth NFPA 70
‘». Dry: contact:closes when Swiich turns tircuit ON'
. Wiring,.. in- ﬁ'-Sep'arafe condmt, to ferminals located in Test and
Inspection Panel on Floor 3 located in Controlier (LBU} or RCC
cabinet in Machine Room/Closet

Note: Shunt Trip Circuit Breaker Required When Sprinklers are Present: The
Electrical contractor shall provide a shunt trip circuit breaker for the elevator
main line power conductors in order to remove power from elevator controls
upaen or prior fo the application of water from any sprinkler located in any
elevator machine room/space, control roomyspace and hoistway overhead in
accordance with ASME A17.1. The shunt trip circuit breaker shall be installed
in accordance with NFPA 70 and local regulations.

» ‘Shunt trlp shall aiso have an auxﬂrary dry contact for Auto-Evacuatlon

when provided as required by NFPA 70,
« Refer to diagram at end of document

2. (JH1) Non-Fused Disconnect:
. » The additional enclosed, externally cperable, non-fused motor circuit switch:

Shall be listed and lockable open in accordance with NFPA 70

= Shall be supp[led and located at the top of the Elevator Hmstway inthe space_.
desrgnated on'the Layout Drawmgs and within sight of the motor controller
One switch is requrred for each ele\rator A [abel on the disconnectis required
_statlng location of (J H} the branch ci rcu it overcurrent proteotlon device= In’
-accordance wrth NFPA 70 and ]ocal regulatzons

a. 480 Volis; 3 Phase; 60 Hz

b. Feeder size based on fusing size of Elevator Disconnecting Means
(JH} {3 ungrounded conductors & an equipment grounding conductor) in
accordance with NFPA 70 and local regulations.

c. Wire from Motor Circuit Switch to Schindler Equipment

d. Wire from Motor Circuit Switch fo TSU (TSU provided by Schindler in
Hoistway)

e. Feeder size to match incoming feeders to mofar circuit switch

f. Auxiliary dry contact.for Auto-Evacuation (when provided) in,
‘accordance with NFPA 70,
g Dry contact closes when Swrtch turns circuit Q_N

[nspectlon Panel located on Floor 3

-, the Coniroller {L2U) Floor.

3. Receplacles:

GFCI (Ground-Fault Circuit Interrupter) type receptacles shall be provided in all
elevator pits and machinery/control spaces inside the hoistway. All receptacles in
elevator machine rooms, machinery spaces, control rooms and control spaces
outside the hoistway shall be provided with ground-fault circuit interrupter
protection in accordance with NFPA 70.

C. Lighting:
1. Elevator. Machlne Rooms control spaoes and test and mspectlon panel [ocatl_on

Reqwrlng ng_hnng ASME A17.1 reqmres the’ minirnum level of iliumination
measured at the ﬂoorto be ‘[9fc.l_.=

Page 16 of 220



PART OF RF1 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

= See layouts for details of size and location requiring lighting.

2. Elevator Pits Required Lighting: ASME A17:1 requires the minimum level of
‘ilumination measured af the pit floor to be 10fc. The location shall be determined
after coordination with the elevator contractor so that the light fixture(s) are
located out of the way of all elevator equipment.
« See layouts for details of size and location requiring lighting.

D. Receptacles and Switches:

1. Sump Pump Receptacles: A receptacle for a sump pump shall be required in all
elevator pits for the elevator pit if provided with a sump pump. A singie receptacie
- supplying a permanently installed sump pump shall not require ground-fault
circuit-interrupter protection in accordance with NFPA 70. :

2. Elevator Machine and Control Rooms Light Switch Requirement: Light switches
shall be required in all elevator machine and control rooms adjacent to the jamb
side of the machine room entry door- where practicable in accordance with NFPA
70 and ASME A17.1.

3. Elevator Machinery Space Light Switch Requirement:
* (overhead) at the point of entry in accordance with NFPA 70 and ASME A17.1
» Provided at point of entry on strike side (lock-jamb) of door at top floor.
+ See layouts for location detail.

4. Elevator Pit Light Switch Requirement: The pit switch shall be a minimum of 18
inches above the elevator lowest landing doorsill and adjacent to (not behind) the
pit access ladder in accordance with NFPA 70 and ASME A17.1.

s See layouts for location detail.

E. Grounding:

An equipment grounding conductor shall be supplisd from the elevator main line
disconnecting means and controller to the MCC and building ground-in accordance
with NFPA 70 Article 250.

F. Additional Disconnects:

1. (JA) Hoistway Alarm

« Alockable disconnect is required per NFPA 70.

¢ Alarm Bell draw is 0.065A

* Can be combined with disconnect for other auxiliary equipment, such as
security systems, independent in-car information display,

G. Branch Circuits:

1. Car Lighting Disconnect:

A separate branch circuit shall supply the car lights, receptacle(s), auxiliary lighting
power source, and ventilation on each elevator car. The disconnecting means shali be
an enclosed, externally operable, fused switch or circuit breaker that is lockable open
and shall be located in the machine room or control room for that elevator car. Where
there Is no machine rcom or control room, the disconnecting means shall be located

Page 17 of 220



PART OF RFI 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

in the building utility space outside the hoistway that is readily accessible to only
qualified persons.

+ Wiring from Car Lighting Disconnect to the Test and Inspection Panel (LDU).

2. 2 Separate Circuits for Elevator Pit:
The elevator pit shall have a separate branch circuit supplying pit lighting and
receptacie(s) and shall be permitted to have another for the pit sump pump when one
Is provided in accordance with NFPA 70 (Does not interface with Schindler
equipment). '

* See layouts for location detail.

3. 2 Separate Branch Circuits for Machinery Space Lighting and Qutlets in the
Elevator Overhead:

The overhead machinery space shall have separate branch circuits supplying the
machinery space lighting and receptacles in accordance with NEPA 70 (Does not
interface with Schindler equipment).

H. Inspection and Test panel: where provided shall be lit by permanently instalied
electric lighting with a levet of illumination of at least 200 Ix (19 fc) at the floor level.
A switch placed inside or close to the enclosure shall control lighting of the
enclosure in accordance with ASME A17.1 and NFPA 70.

[. GFCltype receptacles, light fixtures and light switches:
1. Are required in elevator overhead machinery spaces focated in the
holstway that requires “full body entry” (as defined by elevator code}.
2. Are required in machinery spaces outside the hoistway.
» See layouts for location detail.

J." Electrical Component NFPA Clearances: Clearances around all electrical
equipment in the elevator machine room shall comply with NFPA 70 electrical
clearances requirements. The electrician’s work and equipment placement shalt be
coordinated with the elevator contractor's equipment placement.

K- Electrical Piping Runs; All electrical piping runs provided by the electrical
contractor and elevator contractor o the elevator equipment shall be run overhead or
In @ manner which does not restrict access to and around any equipment.

|.. Emergency Phone and Data Line: Conduit shall be provided by electrical
contractor in all elevator machine rooms to the elevator controller. Electrical contractar
shall provide electrical conduit for both the emergency elevator phone and reguired
data line to the elevator machine room, to the elevator controller, and terminated on the
elevator controller with coordination from the elevator contractor. The building shall
provide:

1. Wiring of Phoneline to the Test and Inspection Panel (LDU) or RCC cabinat

M. Fire Control Panel Smoke Detector relays:
(Primary, Secondary & Fire Hat) mounted within 3 ft. of Inspection and Test Panel
(LDU) or control cabinet (RCC). Additional Smoke Detector refays in addition to the
three (3) mentioned may be necessary depending on job site conditions. To be
coordinated with Schindler.
» Wiring from Smoke Detectar Relays to Inspection & Test Panel (LDU)
s NC, dry contacts required

Page 18 of 220



PART OF RF{ 209 - FOR REFERENGCE ONLY

N. Heat Detector (if applicable): _
1. Located within 2 f{ of hoistway sprinkler head
2. Wiring from Heat Detector to Shunt Trip Breaker (if applicable; does not
interface with Schindler equipment unless in Detroit)

O. Installation Power:
1.

a. Temporary power supply for installation work. {220V, 1 phase, 50/60 Hz,
20 Amp power supply, GFCI protected w/Time-Delay fuse);
2. This requires coordination with Schindler to determine which is applicable
P. Heat Emissions:
1. Heistway — 2930 BTU/Hr

2. Hallway — (LDU — Inspection & Test panel only) — 600 BTU/Hr

Page 19 of 220



PART OF RFI 209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

Appendix
S8CCR Information to include in this document

The SCCR rating of elevator equipment is 5000 Amps, contractor to ensure that the available
fault current of the building supply at the service switch does not exceed this value {Per
NFPA 70). Contractor to include a label

(Please see figure 2-Sample Label Example) that identifies the Max Available Fault Current
onto Disconnect: ** See note 1 of Figure 1-SCCR Diagram. In addition, we require a hard
copy of the manufacturers Fuse Chart and rating verifying the SCCR meets requirements.

Per NFPA 70, the service switch should be legibly marked with Apparent RMS Symmetrical
fault current supplying the Elevator Equipment. ** See note 3 of Figure 1-SCCR Diagram.

Local Electrical Contractor must provide building SCCR Current calculations as well as Fuse
Chart and rating to prove compliance with 5KA elevator equipment rating for the supplied
fuse. ™ See note 2 of Figure 1-SCCR Diagram.

From Building Electrical Distribution Panel

Nets 1 - Maximum Fauk Qurrant befare disconnst
Labed must show Maximiin Avaitable Fault Current
at Primary of Discanneact

Note 2 - Local EC must provide proaf of building SCCR
Current Calculations, Manufacturer and modal of fuse
with supporiing fuse charts 1o show compliance
of NEC Code upon request.

{  Note 3 - Maximum Fauit Current after mitigation to be Labelsd

H “Apparant RMS Symmeirical Fault Current” et Sscondaty
E of Discannect. Must not axceed Hlevator Equipmsnt

1 rating of Sk SCCR.

4

E

T Elevatar Equipment

Figure 1- SCCR Labefling Diagram

Maximum available fault current .0 © " A
 Electrical Firm / Electrician: -~ — -~ -

Figure 2: Sample Label

Page 20 0F 220



PART OF RFi

209 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

SHUNT TRIP CONTROL WIRING DIAGRAM

| Shunt Trﬁ_ip
- Control -
;"i

{f-.‘._

From Féecier'

-} Shunt Trip

{')C?;'i | '%::Devrceé'

Fused E%evator
Risconnect )
() .

L R A .

]
H
H
X
S
H
¥
'
r
]
3.
[
1
i
1
1
i
1)

Phese Z08-A80WAC

N T A S -w"»:‘ Ne}n—Fus:ed

{ Ground

] LoveVolege 24¥. . ... {7

Shunt Trip Voltage: $20Va4

il ._‘_j__;f + Efevator.
-' if i 2 Discannact

--------------

To Eievatar : T Eievatcr
- Equipmentin Eguipment
oneconduit | {Dry Contactin

' separate conduit}

Figure 3: Shunt Trip Wiring

Page 21 of 220



dmm ame am ey s

PART OF RFI 208 - FOR REFERENCE ONLY

Brrp Lo bn st Grasi tache *
ST ' }

o &:‘\:\m
l"— i

1
'
i
i
R N i
f [ BB . = oy
! i Lme 1
! " TS TR S L i
ELammiites Ay Py . ¢ 5 e pa St Do j
[ e W= i ms
e, e e ; .‘,-' i
} t
: N
gaed fomd P ana ‘
; 3
: - J
AT e 2
T, i » 1
1]
£
: §
e Gom e S IregTaiLon 3y ]
N t ;
HRTepy
[ +
I EmaTa e Y
f ]
i et
BiRLSNG LITRATY SEstn - B f ) T EVATOR Mgy

RLACNE OO LESE MELY CONTISLRATIN

Figure 5.

See layouts for exact location of equipment in Overhead and pit.

Page 22 of 220



RESOLUTION

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE
The following Resolution was offered by Mr. /Ms. who moved for its

adoption and was seconded by Mr. /Ms.

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AS SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETE WORK DONE BY
MAX FOOTE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT
RENOVATION AND EXPANSION PROJECT (PHASE 2 OF 2) AND FURTHER
PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the work performed by Max Foote Construction Company on the Water
Treatment Plant Renovation and Expansion Project (Phase 2 of 2) is substantially complete; and

WHEREAS, a Certificate of Substantial Completion is attached hereto and made a part
hereof,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Monroe, in
legal and regular session convened, that work done by and between the City of Monroe and Max
Foote Construction Company on the Water Treatment Plant Renovation and Expansion Project
(Phase 2 of 2) is hereby accepted as substantially complete; and '

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Stacey Rowell, Director of Administration, is hereby
authorized to execute any necessary documents, inciuding the attached Certificate of Substantial
Completion, accepting the work on the Water Treatment Plant Renovation and Expansion Project
(Phase 2 of 2) as substantially complete.

This Resolution was submitted in writing and was then submitted to a vote as a whole. The
vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Resolution was declared ADOPTED on the day of August 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK



e FOOTE

August ISt 2024

: .ans & McDonelI Engmeenna Company

| 9400 Ward patlovay

Kansag' Clty, Mo 641 14

Attn: RacheI .Dram

_Re Monrt)e Water Treatment Piant Renm ations and Expansmn

Subje‘.c‘ Request for ijeot Substantxa Completmn =

: fDear Ms Dram

_ As a conhnuanc& of the Partial Substantial Completlon Request submzﬁed on Novamber 20“1 R

' 2023 Max l"oote Cons‘rructxon Company has campleted the followmg work

L. New Cheimical Buﬂdmg Phase H Eqmpment L ' '
o Chlorinaters 3,4, 5, 6, 9 and 10 required in Phase it {March 15“l 20?/&}
o’ Ammoniators 2 3, and 4 (March 158 2{}24)
- - New Admin Building Remairiing Ftefms: ..
: o Exposed Duct Work (November 30%, 2023) -
o  Exhaust Pan ADM 4441 Damper’ and Motor (’\fiaroh 200, 2024)
o  Access Cortiol (October 26%; 2023y
- Caustic Process Plpmg Heat Trace and Insulatlon (Ianuary 2% 2024)
- Train2 upgrades (Place inuse‘on Janusary 22°, 2024) : :
-~ “Train 1 upgrades (Placed in tise on March 15%, 2024) T
- Existing Filter Gallery Piping and Valves (Placed in use on March’ 15“‘ 2024}
- New Vertical Turbine Backwash Pump (Placed in Use on May 8°,2024) -
- 'New Laboratory includirg all equipment (Placed in Use on March I, 2(}24}
- Phase I Electrical Upgrades (Powered up ¢ and placed in'use on May 20‘*’ 2024)
- Phase L HVAC Equipment (Placed in use on May. 207, 2{}24) T
- Phase 1T Architestural Upgrades Complete (J une 3“I 2024)

In foI[owmg thh these ﬁmhﬁes and thzs work” benmJr chec:ced out, sommissioned, placed nto
- service ‘on the dates noted above, MFCC considers the work to be substantxaily complete on

August 9th, 2024 and request that the substannal completion certificate be issued. ‘Weaskthatall:
associated warranties for this portion of the’ pl‘OjeGi‘ and relaied eqmpment and components as ot

- noted above: commence on tha dates noted above

A punch hst was performed on June 3% by ’rhe Bngmeer The ma_]ou‘y of the punch l1st ftems b
have been completed to date and are. in the pracess -of ‘being - closed . olit-on “the project s
managemest website, -As of July 208 the punch Ilst 1tems IIS‘[&d belo’w ate open on the punch IiSf :

U‘ackmﬂ website and are not compiete

- Ttem 53 is in regard to the Aeratof Splashmg Issue The Aerators were' piaced in =
- “service as each treatment traii was. ‘brought online. “Additional parts were required 1o
be designed and added i theAerators to reduice the splashing.: MFCC considers thIS

a warranty 1tem and 1 1s w01 kmg to carrect the lssues w1th the manufauﬂu er. S

POST I]'EHEE EEH R M_HNDEUJL LELHE}HNH ?@la?l I:EBE ﬁES) EEL~BEEH
X ) BL- BEBEJ

_CRSTRICTAN f*m.,,m: | BENERAL CONTRACTORS




- Ttem 966 is for asphalt correction. The asphalt subcontractor is correcting this issue
- the week of July 20%,
- Item 981, 982, and 983 are for sealmg clacks at a catch basm, curb and gutter, and
: cmt;crete near the north entrance gate “This work ‘Wlﬂ be completed the week of July
29%, '
«  Hém 982 is for sealing cracks in concrete néar the North Entrance Gate,. This wolk
- will be completed the week of July 29%, :
© - Ttem 984 is for c:-orrectmg a section of sidewalk at the: Naw Chemwal Balldmg This
- work will be completed the week of Tuly 29, -0 .
-~ Ttem 985 is for reworkmg the site grade near the New Chemxcal Buzldmg S0 it W:II
' not hold water. This work will be completed the week of July 208, '
"~ Hem 986 is for replacmg Mortar.at the base of the’ split - face block on the New'
- Chemical Buﬂdmg This work will be complefled the week of July 20%. - .
- Ttem 987is for repaIrmg Araa Certch Basm #6 ThlS Work WIH be complsted thie
. weskof uly 20t :
- Item 988 is for removing Hydrauhc Flmd from the rea; parkmg lot ThIS work wﬂl be
- completed the week of July 290,

Balow is a list of work scope. xtems that are not complete These Items do not 1mpc.de the Ovwnets - K
abihty to utilize the facitities for jts intended p‘urpose bt are clirrently being addressed: _
1. The north access road, final Asphalt paving. Plammg for this ac:tmty is currently :
_ underway after receiving verbal ‘approval from' the Owner to move forward with the
-change order associated ‘with this work, - ThlS Work 13 planned to be completad no -
later than August 9“’ 2024 weather permlfhng ' '

2. Grassing and Landscaping. Tms Work c0n51sts of sod that was added via change
order and hydroseading the remaining site. This work is underway and i is plamed to
be completed no later than August 20, Weather permztnng :

- Turn over of final documernts mciudmg A&Buﬂt drawmgs Warranty documentation
and other assomated ciose out dacuments pET the Speznﬁcatmus

When the remaining work items noted above ‘are completed MFCC will request a final .
walkthrough and inspection be per fomtf:d on thase areas and corrections will be made at that time
if any are required. :

If you have any questions, please fet me know.

Singerely,

Projecf Mauager

- Ce: ‘Giry Braddock Pr0_|ect Supenntendent _
File: 331 — Substantial Completlon T




CERTIFICATE OF SUUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR: Max Foote Construction Company

CONTRALT FOR: Water Treatment Plant Renovation and Expansion
CONTRACT DATE: June 25, 2021

DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION: August 9, 2024

TO: City of Monroe and Max Foote Construction Company

The weork performed under this contract has been inspeetnd by authorized representatives of the Chwoer, Contractor and

Engineer, and the Project (or specified part of the Project, as indicated above) is hereby declared to e substantial by compiated
on the abova dare.

A tentative list of items 10 be completed ar corrected is sppended hereto. This list is not exhanstive, and the faflore to include an
itenny om it does not alter the respansibility of the Contractor 1o camplete all the work in accordance with the Contract Docurnents.
All iterns oo the afirementioned lists shall be complsted by the Contractor within 45 days of Substantial Complation,

The date of Substantial Completion is the date upon which all guarantees and warrantes begin, except as noted in the attached

decuments. The responsibilities between the Owner and the Cootractor for maintenance and untilities shall be a5 set forth in
the contract.

C. Morgan McCallister, P.E.

City of Monroe Date

The contractor accepts the above Certificate of Substantial Completion.

Max Foote Construction Company Date

OWNER’S CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

Work under the above Contract is hereby accepted subject to the conditions set forth in the above
Certificate.

CITY GF MONROE

Stacey Rowell, Director of Administration Date




b Imite Status |Description Assigned to (Issue owner iCreated on iLocation Location details Hequired for  |Created by
. : ) : |Substantiz]
. . ' |Completlon?
Ensure cascading AS1ET.3E777
Process Phage 1 aerators are free of debris, LJennifer Llenny}
Funch List New contain slashing Max Foote  |Warren Mew Treatment tthompson thompsen
#53 [Treatment Trein (#3) [Open |acoardingly Construction__|Bums & MeBonnell Train (#3) no Manchae Group
Asphialt around catch 4544975521
hasin nesds fo be
jcorrected. Asphalt has
formed a depreasion
which created 3 lip at the
catech basin, Water
Corract asphalt work cannot flow into catch
at catehi basin in back hasin properly and Max Fnotg Brian Aoberts Brian Roberts
#0966 |parking lot Open _ |birdbaths 2t the basin. Construetion | Denmon SiteCivil Benmon
Seal Grack at Cateh i Max Foota |Brian Roberts 4549765236 Brian Fiobarts
#3581 {Bazsin Onen Corsbuction  Denmaon Site/Crvil Denman
45497 BOG9E
New Concrete at Seal cracks in concrate at [Max Fogte Brian Boberts - Brian Roberts
#2382 [Entrance Gamg Opan _|the north entrance gats. | Consttuction {Denrmon BiteZhil Morth Entrance Gate Dranma
Adl eracks in concreta curh 45487.69308
Cracks n Cancreta and gutter need 10 be Max Foole Brian Raberts Briar Roberts
#0683 |Cyrb and Gutter Goen _jsealed. Construction |Denmon Site/Chvil Penrian
45497 70785
Mew Sidewalk behind - [Cancrete needs to be Max Foote Brian Roberts ' Erian Robaerts
#5984 |Chemical Building Qpen  |corectod. Sonstruction  |Denrnen Site/Civit Dianmaon
Recycla drive leading 1o 4549771036
the: Chlorine Scrubber iz
bslding water. Wil need
Driveway to Chlarine pozifive drainage in this ~ {Max Foote Briart Raberss Brian Roberts
#9855 |Scrubber Open_ |area. Constniction  |Denmon Site/Chail Denmon
Seal apening betweean 454597 71154 .
ChL Block Behind new sidewalk and CMU  |Max Foate Brian Boberts Mew Shemical Brian Foberts
#5086 [Chemical Building Open  |bioek. Constructinn_{Denrmon Building Denrnon
Area Cateh Basin# 6 has 4549771465
Broken Area Catch been tiroken and wilk need |Max Foote Brian Roberts Brian Roherts
#DB7 [Basin#6 Open _ {10 ba repaired. Consiruction Penman Sita/Civil Denmon
Rear Employes | Max Fooke Brian Roherts 45497 72302 Erizn Robers
#9838 |Parking Area Cpen Construction  |Denmon Site/Civil Denmon




ORDINANCE

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE
The following Ordinance was introduced by . who moved for its

adoption and was seconded by

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY IN THE MONROE AIR
INDUSTRIAL PARK NO LONGER NECESSARY FOR PUBLIC USE AND
AUTHORIZING SAID PROPERTY TO BE SOLD AT PRIVATE SALE TO OCSHNER
LSU HEALTH SYSTEM OF NORTH LOUISIANA AND FURTHER PROVIDING
WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, by Cash Deed dated July 5, 2018 (REG. 1757697, CB 2552, P 400) and
Act of Correction dated July 10, 2018 (REG. 1757954; CB 2552, P 709), the City of Monroe
sold a 4.30-acre tract of land to Banks Construction Family Limited Partpership in the Monroe
Air Industrial Park;

WHERFEAS, by Cash Deed dated February 14, 2024 (Inst. No. 1890972), the City of

Monroe repurchased the property for $93,583.70 under its right of first refusal (Ord. No.
12,209);

WHEREAS, Ochsner LSU Health System of North Louisiana (*Ochsner”) has requested
that the City of Monroe sell to the 4.30-acre tract to it for future development;

WHEREAS, Ochsner has agreed to purchase the property for the sum of $105,000.00,
and the City Council deerns said proposal to be in the best interest of the City of Monroe; and

WHEREAS, to facilitate the purchase of the property, the City Council desires to waive
the requirements to provide a preliminary proposal (Sec. 22-32) and for the recommendation of
the Monroe Air-Industrial Park advisory board prior to the sale, provided however, that such
proposals and approvals shall be obtained prior to any development of the property and all other
provisions of the Monroe Air-Industrial Park Development Ordinance, to the extent applicable,
are followed,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
Louisiana, in legal session convened, that:

Section 1. The City Council does hereby declare the following 4.30-acre tract of land
located in Monroe Air Industrial Park in the City of Monroe, Louisiana as no longer necessary
for public use:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF 4.30 ACRE TRACT
ADJOINING RAILROAD SPUR ON EAST SIDE OF DELTA DRIVE

A tract of land in the Monroe Industrial Park, Monroe, Ouachita Parish,
Louisiana, as per plat recorded in Plat Book 15 at Page 113 in the parish records,
this tract being more particularly described as follows, to-wit:

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron bar set marking the southeast corner of the
intersection of Delta Drive (80 feet wide) and the Kansas City Southern Railroad
spur (30 feet wide), thence along the curving south line of said railroad spur
308.49 feet (chord bearing N82°21°22”E 307.60 feet) to a 1/2 inch iron bar set;
thence S5°07°14”W 6350.83 feet to a 1/2 inch iron bar set; thence N84°52°46™W
300.00 feet to a 1/2 inch iron bar set on the east line of Delta Drive; thence along
Delta Drive, N5°07°14”E 582.87 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING: containing
4.30 acres of land, and being subject to any rights or servitudes of record or of
use.



Section 2. On behalf of the City of Monroe, Louisiana, Mayor Friday Ellis is hereby
authorized and empowered to sell, for cash, at private sale, to Ochsner LSU Health System of
North Louisiana a 4.30 acre tract of land under the terms, conditions and for the consideration set
forth in that certain Cash Deed, which attached hereto and made part hereof.

Section 3, Mayor Friday Ellis is hereby authorized and empowered to execute the said
Cash Deed for and on behalf of the City of Monroe, Louisiana.

Section 4. The City of Monroe shall comply with any applicable federal and state laws or
regulations governing the dispensation of such property and any applicable covenants and
restrictions contained in the September 8, 1949, Deed between the City of Monroe and the
United State of America conveying said property to the City of Monroe.

Section S. Under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute 33:4712 that prior to the
final adoption hereof, notice of this Ordinance shall be published in the official journal three (3)
times within fifteen (15) days, one week apart and that any opposition hereto must be made in
writing, filed with the Clerk of the Council within fifteen (15) days of the first publication.

Section 6. The requirements to provide a preliminary proposal (Sec. 22-32) and for the
recommendation of the Monroe Air-Industrial Park advisory board prior to the sale are hereby
walved, provided however, that such proposals and approvals shail be obtained prior to any
development of the property and all other provisions of the Monroe Air-Industrial Park
Development Ordinance, to the extent applicable, are followed.

This Ordinance was introduced on the day of August, 2024.

Notice published on the day of , 2024,

This Ordinance having been submiited in writing, introduced, and published, was then
submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Ordinance was declared ADOPTED on day of September, 2024,

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK

MAYOR’S APPROVAL

MAYOR’S VETO



ORDINANCE

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE

The following Ordinance was introduced by Mr./Ms. __, who moved
for its adoption and was seconded by Mr./Mrs. :

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 12,219 (VIDEO BINGO TAX
REDEDICATION) AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the Monroe City Council adopted Ordinance No. 12,219 on May 28, 2024,
which re-dedicated revenues received from the licensing and taxing of video bingo; and

WHEREAS, the Monroe City Council desires to repeal Ordinance No. 12,219 in its
entirety.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
in legal session convened, that Ordinance No. 12,219, which re-dedicated revenues received
from the licensing and taxing of video bingo, is hereby repealed.

This Ordinance was introduced on J uly , 2024,

Notice published on July , 2024,

This Ordinance having been submitted in writing, introduced, and published, was then
submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:;

And the Ordinance was declared ADOPTED on August , 2024,

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK

MAYOR’S APPROVAL

MAYOR’S VETO



ORDINANCE

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE

The following Ordinance was introduced by Mr./Ms. , who moved
for its adoption and was seconded by Mr./Mrs. :

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 12,220 (SPECIAL TAX ELECTION)
AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the Monroe City Council adopted Ordinance No. 12,220 on June 11, 2024,
which ordered and called for a special election within the City of Monroe to authorize the
rededication, Jevy, and collection of a special tax therein, authorized application to the Louisiana
State Bond Commission, and provided for other matters in comnection therewith; and

WHEREAS, the Monroe City Council desires to repeal Ordinance No. 12,220 in its
entirety. :

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
i legal session convened, that Ordinance No. 12,220, which ordered and called for a special
election within the City of Monroe to authorize the rededication, levy, and collection of a special
tax therein, authorized application to the Louisiana State Bond Commission, and provided for
other matters in connection therewith, is hereby repealed.

This Ordinance was introduced on July , 2024,

Notice published on July , 2024,

This Ordinance having been submitted in writing, introduced, and published, was then
submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Ordinance was declared ADOPTED on August , 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK

MAYOR’S APPROVAL

MAYOR’S VETO



ORDINANCE

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE

The following Ordinance was introduced by Mr./Ms. , who moved
for its adoption and was seconded by Mr./Ms. :

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 12,225 (PURCHASING AND
BIDDING PROCEDURES) AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the Monroe City Council adopted Ordinance No. 12,225 on Jupe 25, 2024,
which established purchasing and bidding procedures for the City of Monroe; and

WHEREAS, the Monroe City Council desires to repeal Ordinance No. 12,225 in its
entirety. '

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
in legal session convened, that Ordinance No. 12,225, which established purchasing and bidding
procedures for the City of Monroe, is hereby repealed.

This Ordinance was introduced on July , 2024,

Notice published on July , 2024.

This Ordinance having been submitted in writing, introduced, and published, was then
submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Ordinance was declared ADOPTED on August ,2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK

MAYOR’S APPROVAL

MAYOR’S VETO



ORDINANCE

STATE OF LOUISIANA

CITY OF MONROE NG.

The following Ordinance was introduced by Mr./Ms. who
moved for its adoption and was seconded by Mr./Ms. :

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A TWO-YEAR EXTENSION OF THE EXISTING
AMBULANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ACADIAN AMBULANCE
SERVICE, INC. AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Monroe, in coordination with the Quachita Parish Police
Jury and the City of West Monroe, adopted the Uniform Ambulance Service Ordinance
(Monroe City Code, Chapter 5) to ensure that quality ambulance service is available to all
residents, provide for the uniform regulation of ambulance service throughout Ouachita
Parish, and provide for the license of one provider within Ouachita Parish;

WHEREAS, following a request for proposals and a thorough review of all
applicants, Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. was selected to provide exclusive ambulance
service throughout Ouachita Parish, Louisiana, beginning January 1, 2019, through
December 31, 2023;

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 7331, the City of Monroe ratified and approved
the Ambulance Services Agreement and licensed Acadian Ambulance Services, Inc. as the

sole ambulance service provider within the City of Monroe from January 1, 2019, to
December 31, 2023;

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section T of the Ambulance Services
Agreement, the Ambulance Service Agreement was extended for a one-year period umtil
December 31, 2024;

WHEREAS, Acadian Ambulance Services, Inc. requested that the license be
extended for an additional two years, from J anuary 1, 2025 to December 31, 2026;

WHEREAS, the Ambulance Service Advisory Board, established under the
Uniform Ambulance Service Ordinance, met several times to consider the request, and
thereafter voted to recommend the two-year extension of the Ambulance Services
Agreement, from January 1, 2025 until December 31, 2026,

WHEREAS, the Ouachita Council of Governments reviewed and approved the
recommendation at its meeting on June 24, 2024, and the Quachita Police Jury and City of
West Montoe have subsequently approved the extension; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 5-52 of the Monroe City Code, the City
of Monroe desires to extend the Ambulance Services Agreement with and renew the license
of Acadian Ambulance Services, Inc. from January 1, 2025 until December 31, 2026.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council, in legal and
regular session convened, that:

Section 1. The extension of the Ambulance Services Agreement with Acadian
Ambulance Services, Inc. from January 1, 2025 until December 31, 2026 is hereby
approved.

Section 2. Acadian Ambulance Services, Inc.’s exclusive license as the sole
provider of ambulance services within the City of Monroe is hereby extended from J anuary
1, 2025, until December 31, 2026.

Section 3. Mayor Friday Ellis be and is hereby authorized to execute ali documents
necessary or proper to extend the Ambulance Services Agreement as set forth herein and
to renew the license of Acadian Ambulance Services, Inc.



This Ordinance was introduced on the day of July 2024.

Notice Published on the day of July, 2024.

This Ordinance having been submitted in writing, introduced and published, was
then submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
And the Ordinance was declared ADOPTED on day of August, 2024.
CHAIRPERSON
CITY CLERK

MAYOR’S APPROVAL

MAYOR’S VETO



AMBULANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT
. RECITALS

This Agreement is entered into by and between ACADIAN AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC
{("Provider” or *Acadian™), and the OUACHITA PARISH POLICE JURY, CITY OF MONROE,
and CITY OF WEST MONROE (collectively “Ouachita Governments” or “Service Areas™,
each appearing herein through its duly authorized representative, on this __ day of
. 20, for the exclusive provision of emergency and non-emergency

N

ambulance service.

a. Uniform Ambulance Service Ordinance. The Parties agree that the terms of this
Agreement shall include and be governed by all applicable sections of the Uniform
Ambulance Service Ordinance adopted by the Quachita Govermments (See Quachita
Parish Police Jury Ordinance No. 4 Z7%. City of Monroe Ordinance No.*73 31 :Ciy
of West Momoe Ordinance No. _¥&/¢ 3 (the “Ordinance™, which are
incorporated herein by this reference. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement
and the Ordinance, the terms and conditions of the Ordinance shall govern.

b. Regquest for Proposals. It is understood and agreed that the Ouachita Governments
selected Acadian as the exclusive provider of ambulance service for Ouachita Parish in
reliance on the representations made by Acadian in its “Response to Quachita Council of
Governments RFP for Ambulance Service™ (hereinafter “Response to RFP™) submitted
on or about July 2, 2018. Accordingly, this Agreement is intended to, and does hercby,
incorporate as contractual oblipations the representations made by Acadian in said
Response to RFP.

c. OCOG. The City of Monroe, the City of West Monroe, and the Quachita Parish Police
Jury have authotized and designated the Quachita Council of Governments {*OCOG™ to
provide uniform oversight and regulation of ambulance service throughout Quachita
Parish. Louisiana. Accordingly, said political subdivisions are sometimes hereinafter
referred to collectively as “OCOG™.

d. Administration. The Uniformm Ambulance Service Ordinance provides for the
involvernent of QCOG, a Contract Administrator (*Administrator™), and an Ambulance
Service Advisory Board ("Board™) in the regulation and administration of ambulance
service in Quachita Parish. Provider acknowledges the role of OCOG, Administrator and
Board as established by the Ordinance and agrees to work cooperatively with them
during the term of this Agreement.

Provider shall submit to the Board such reposts, records, recordings and other information
as requested by the Board in connection with the investigation of a complaint or as
otherwise deemed necessary by the Board in connection with the oversight of the
Provider’s performance of the Provider’s obligations under the Ordinance and/or this
Agreement. The Provider shall have the right to demand that all patient records and



proprietary information, as deemed proprietary by the Provider, be reviewed and
discussed in Executive Session of the Advisory Board and not be considered a public
record, where allowed by Louisiana law, '

e. License Fee. The Provider of Ambulance shall pay a license fee of THIRTY-FIVE
THOUSAND AND NO/100 ¢$35,000.00) DOLLARS each calendar year, or portion
thereof, during the term of this Exclusive License. This License Fee shall be paid to
OCOG to defray the costs of administering this Ordinance. The initial License Fee shall
be paid upon commencement of the initial term of the License with subsequent License
Fees being due thereafter on or before January 31 of each succeeding year during the
initial or renewal term(s) of the License.

For the calendar year 2020 and thereafter during the initial and renewal term(s) of the
License OCOG may increase the License Fee if shown necessary to cover the costs of
administering this Ordinance, but no such increase shall be more than $10,000.00 per
calendar year or portion thereof. Any such increase shall be adopted by QCOG at an
Open Meeting held on or before October 31 of the prior year, .

IL. DEFINITIONS

The “Definitions™ set forth in Article 1, Section 6 of the Uniform Ambulance Service Ordinance
adopted by the Quachita Governments shall apply to the words and phrases used in this
Agreement, unless otherwise specified herein.

II. TERM

The initial term of this Agreement, and the exclusive license it evidences, shall be for a period of
five (3) vears beginning Januvary 1, 2019 and ending December 31, 2023. This Agreement and
License may thereafier be renewed by mutual agreement of the Quachita Governments and the
Licensee for additional terms of not more than four (4) years ¢ach.

It will be presumed that the parties intend for this Agreernent and License to be renewed for a
term of one (1) year unless written notice of non-repewal is delivered 1o the other party not less
than one hundred twenty (120) days prior 1o the end of the term of the initial ferm or any renewal
thereof.

IV.  OBLIGATIONS GF PROVIDER

a. Ground Ambulance Service
Provider shall be the exclusive provider of emergency and non-emergency Advanced
Life Support and Basic Life Support ground ambulance service for the duration of
this agreement for all emergency and non-emergency transports that originate within
the geographical boundaries of the Service Area.

In addition to ground ambulances, Acadian is to be the primary provider of rotor wing
air ambulance transports that originate within the geographic boundaries of the



Service Area and as such shall also have medical helicopter support available to assist
in critical situations when patients require expedient transport to appropriate medical
facilities. If Acadian is unable to provide the necessary air support, then Acadian shall
call for a back-up provider without delay.

Residents of the Service Areas shall have access to (assuming the appropriate need
and subject to availability} Provider’s Medical fixed wing air ambulance aircraft.

Provider agrees that for the duration of this Agreement it shall be obligated to
maintain at least one medically configured Advanced Life Support helicopter
stationed within the Parish and available a minimum of 24 hours per day. The
helicopters shall be staffed at all times by an FAA licensed pilot and a Nationally
Registered Paramedic and a Registered Nurse.

. Insurance Required

Prior to commencing operations under this Agreement, Provider shall file with the
Parish Council policies of general Liabifity insurance, automobile Hability insurance,
workers compensation insurance and medical legal liability insurance issued by an
insurance company qualified to do business in the State of Lounisiana which shall
contain the following conditions and stipulations.

1. The term of such insurance policies shall be for a period of not less than one H
year. Proof of insurance must be provided on a vearly basis.

=

The general liability and automobile liability insurance policies shall provide not
less than limits of liability for each accident causing bodily injury (including
death at any time resulting from), FIVE MILLION and NO/100 {$5,000,000.00)
DOLLARS for each persom, FIVE MILLION and NO/I00 ($5.,000,000.00)
DOLLARS for each accident and FIVE MILLION and NO/100 ($5,000.000.00)
DOLLARS for property damage sustained in any accident, with the Service Area
histed and included as an additional insured to the extent of Provider's Contractual
obligations hereunder.

The medicat malpractice insurance policy(ies) shall provide limits of Liability of
each accident causing bodily injury (including death at any time resulting
therefrom) of FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND and NGC/100 ($300,000.00)
DOLLARS for each person and FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND and NO/100
(8500.,000.00) for each accident. Participation in the Patients” Compensation Find
of the State of Louisiana ax set forth in LRS 40:1299.44, et seq., shall be deemed
to be medical legal lability insurance within the contemplation of this ordinance.

oy

4. The worker’s compensation insurance policy (ies) shall provide coverage for
statutory benefits up to an aggregate amount of any one claim in the amount of
ONE MILLION and No/100 ($1.000.000.00) DOLLARS. Inthe event that



Provider is self insured, it shall provide evidence of self insurance along with
proof of adequate excess insurance.

Provider shall furnish the Service Area with a waiver of subrogation against any
and all claims for damages or Hability arising from their operations within the
geographical boundaries of the Service Area.

Performance Bond Requirements: Provider must furnish performance security in
an amount of not less than $750,000.00. Said security shall be fumished through
the pledge of a Certificate(s) of Deposit to OCOG in said amount or through the
posting of a Performance Bond in favor of OCOG in said amount issued by insurer
or surety having a rating of not less than B+ by A. M. Best or equivalen: rating by a
nationally rc.cogmzed rating service,

¢. Inspections of Ambulances

Before any operations under this contract commence, the ambulances listed in the
application shall have current motor vehicle inspections stickers by the Louisiana
Department of Motor Vehicles and each ambulance shall be equipped in compliance
with the standards for ambulance equipment as confained and inspected and approved
yearly by the Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals and as set forth in LA.
R.S. 40:1235.1, Any ambulance owned or operated by Provider in the Service Ares,
which has a mechanical defect or lacks ambulance equipment, as required by this
contract, shall be corrected to conform to this Agreement.

d. Emergency Medical Technicians

1.

]

i

No Ambulance shall transport an ALS emergency patient with the transport
originating in or from the geographic boundaries of the Service Area unless it is
an Advanced Life Support ambulance capable of providing Advanced Life
Support Services and whose crew shall consist of at least one Nationally
Registered Paramedic and one Nationally registered EMT, Advanced EMT or
Paramedic as dver.

No person shall provide services in any capacity on an emergency or non
emergency response vehicle unless he is the holder of a certification of an
emergency medical technician issued by the National Registry of Emergency
Medical Technicians; or a certificate of license as a registered nurse or licensed
practical nurse; or is a physician or surgeon Heensed to practice medical by the
Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners. No person shall provide services in
any capacily without holding a wvalid certification of cardiopulmonary
resuscitation issued by the American National Red Cross or the American Heart
Association.

Provider shall, at all times, under penalty of revocation, certify that all persons
serving on said ambulance meet the following qualifications:



a. The caregiver is a person of at least eighteen (18) years of age.

b. The caregiver is an Emergency Medical Technician who meets all State
Certification Requirements and is in good standing with the Bureau of
Emergency Medical Services of Louisiana as memorialized in LA R.S.
40:1231 et seq.

¢. All employvees of Provider who shall operate an ambulance in the Service
Area shall have been issued and be in possession of a valid driver's license
for the operation of said vehicle as required by the State of Louisiana.
Additionally, Provider shall, at all fimes, certify, under the penalty of
permit revocation, that all drivers of its ambulances mest the following
criteria; '

1. The driver is a person of at least eighteen (18) years of age; and
2. The driver is an Emergency Medical Technician, Advanced
Emergency Medical Technician, or Paramedic.

e. Standards for Ambulance Eguipment

I

Provider warranis that each ambulance shall carry at all times when ambulance is in
use the minimum essential equipment as specified in Definitions Paragraph 1}

Advanced Life Support Ambulance or (k) Basic Life Support Ambulance.

f. Ambuwlance Performance Standards

I.

I3

E}J

Provider warrants that it shall not unreasonably refuse to respond to a request for
emergency service originating within the geographic boundaries of the Service Area.

Provider warrants that it shall not refuse to respond to a request for ambulance service
where there is a “Medical Necessity” for the service, on the grounds of the patient's
inability to pay for such service.

Provider warrants that it shall conform to protocols with respect to ground ambulance
response times as set forth in Provider’s response to RFP and further set forth in the
Ambulance Ordinance.

Provider warrants that it shall conform to all pationally accepted standards with
respect to ground ambulance operations. Provider furthermore must agree to comply
with the Ouachita Parish Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness
“Emergency Operations Plan™ in regards to its rale and/or function within an Inctdent
Management System.




g. Review of Rates and Financial Information

1.

N

Provider shall submit a schedule of its rates for all services to the Board for
review by January 1% of each year and in such format as may be cesignated by the
Board. The Board shall have authority to review, and/or approve such rates. The
Board shall have 15 days to review and or object to such. For the first year of this
Agreement, the Board will be deemed to have approved those rates as set forth in
Provider’s response to RFP, if so included in same. Otherwise of after such initial
term, if written objection is not presented within 30 days the rates will become
effective on the 31st day. Provider will not exceed the charges for base rate,

mileage rate per run, supplies, oxygen and any other services included in
Provider's Schedule of Rates except as approved by the Board. A statement of
said fees is attached hereto. Provider acknowledges that it is responsible for
billing and collecting for services rendered. All fees for sérvices rendered shall
remain the property of Provider. Provider will be allowed to add and/or modify
items that represent new and/or changing technology, equipment, services and
pharmaceuticals and to charge reasonable fees for said new items that are added.
Provider shall be entitied to an automatic armual inflationary increase in base rates
at Providers then current customary rates within the State of Louisiana. Provider
shall be allowed to increase charges for ancillaries at the then current market rate,
without the need for additional approval by the Board. Additionally, Provider
shall be allowed to request a change in rate structure and/ or amounts in such case
as there has been a material change in the structure or amount of
rates/reimbursements approved/made to ambulance providers by any federal or
state agency or medical insurance provider. The Ouachita Governments
acknowledge that any event as set forth in the preceding sentence shall be deemed
good cause for such a rate change in amount and/or structure. Rate changes
allowed in this Agreement without additional Parish approval shall be deemed set
and approved by the Parish in accordance with Louisiana law.

The schedule of rates to be submitted for review shall include the rates to be
charged under any contracts the Provider enters into with any hospital, long-term
care facility, rehabilitation facility, or similar healthcare facility, to provide non-
emergency ambulance service in Quachita Parish to, or for, such facility. Rates
for like services to like facilities shall be equal

Provider shall permit the Parish or its auditor’s reasonable access to its financial
records, books, documents, papers, files, or other records. that are pertinent,
during normal business hours upon reasonable notice and which shall only be
revealed and discussed in executive or confidential session. In addition, the Parish
and its members agree to execute any documents and abide by any federal, state
and/or focal laws, tules and/or regulations relating to the disclosure of any such
nformation.

Provider shall present to the Parish, in executive or confidential session, an annual
audit of owner/operator's financial statements and activities. A copy of every



such ammuatl andit shall be provided to the Parish and Provider shall have the right
to demand that al! audited financial statements and any other Proprietary
Information, as deemed by Provider, be reviewed and discussed in Executive or
Confidential Session of the Parish and that such materials not be disclosed or
distributed ocutside of same, The parties agree that the Parish has the right to
demand an independent audit of the response time of Acadian’s performance
under this Agreement. Such audit shall be performed at a mutually agreeable time
by both parties but not later than thirty {30) days after receipt by the Council of
Response Time information for a particular period and shall be for the account of
the Parish Council except as set forth hereafter. Should such audit produce results
which materially differ from the results presented to the counci} by Acadian, then,
in such instance, Acadian shail bear all costs associated with the independent
audit which produced such differing results.

4. Provider shall not initiate any “Membership Drive” or similar sale to consumers
of enrollments in any plan related to the Provider's ambulance services without
prior approval of such Membership Drive or sale of enrollments by the Board.
Provider shall make available to Board and/or OCOG written specification
regarding the terms and conditions of the proposed Membership Drive or sale of
enrollments as well as the Provider's proposed marketing plan including the
content of proposed advertisements and promotional efforts, Provider shall have
the right to demand that all proprietary information, as deemed proprietary by the
Provider, be reviewed and discussed in Executive Session of the Board and not be
considered a public record, where allowed by Louisiana law.

h. Response Reliability Standards: Zonpes coverage

1. Provider shall produce response times as provided for in Provider's response to REP
and the Ambulance Ordinance, for reference said response times are set forth
specifically in Exhibit A to this agreement, attached hereto and incorporated fully
herein by reference. '

Except as set forth below, throughout the term of this contract Provider acknowledges
that it shall be Provider’s responsibility to meet said responses times regardless of the
number of ambulances required to meet said standards. Additionally, Provider
acknowledges that the above-described response times are minimum standards and
that at all times 1t will operate said service aiming always to provide better and
increased service.

i. Response Time

L. Response times on emergencies will be calculated as set forth in the Ordinance.
Response times will be calculated each calendar menth by Provider. Provider
agrees fo provide the Board monthly reports of response times by area along with

all back-up documentation including the itemized summary of each call that is



i-

included on the monthly report, but excluding any and all information that is protected
from disclosure under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. The
iternized summary of each call shall include all available information regarding the
time, arrival times, etc. of each call. included on Monthly Response time reports shall
be all calls excluded from the response time caleulation and the reason for such
exclusion. All information and back-up documentation that said calls should be
excluded pursuant to the terms herein will be available upon request, The response
time reports shall be distributed to the Contract Administrator within fifteen (15) days
of the end of a month.

Exciuded Responses

Provider will have the responsibility to document the nature of the circumstances
surrounding any excluded response and the emergency and non-emergency responses
affected thereby. It shall be Provider’s responsibility to prove said response should
be excluded in defanit of which it will be inciuded. There shall be no “Excluded
Responses™ with respect to Non-Emergency responses. With respect to Emergency
Responses, “Excluded Responses” for purposes of response time calculation, are as
follows:

1.

-3

|5

Responses that occur during periods of abnormally severe weather for which a
“warning” has been issued by the National Weather Service where such weather
could reasonably be expected to substantially impair response time performance.

Delayed response due fo potentially hazardous scenes or in which access is
restricted by public safety personnel. This exclusion shall not apply if law
enforcement or fire personnel have established a staging area at the scene. In
such circumstances, Response time shall be determined upon the ambulance’s
arrival at the staging area.

- Those responses presented by Provider for consideration by the Parish or local

governing authority and which such authority finds that the response has merit to
be deemed excluded due to extraordinary circumstances. An example of such a
respouse would be a request for response during Provider’s servicing of a mass
casualty situation where the majority of the units in the Parish/ city have been
directed to attend to the Mass Casualty incident (fe: Mass shooting/ Active
shooter at a school with multiple victims.)

Except in cases of Force Majeure, Provider agrees that it shall af all times have a
responstbility to respond as soon as safely practicable even in the face of an
excluded response. It is agreed that any such excepiions and/or exclusions from
response will extend the required response times by only the amount of time by
which the otherwise applicable response is interfered with or inhibited by the
exception.



k. Response Time Penalty

Response time will be measured for calculation and assessment of penalties on a quarterly
basis. Should Provider fail meet 1o any response time tlireshold, prior 1o any penalty being
assessed, Provider shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard before the Advisory Board to
show good cause as to why said penalties should not be imposed. For good cause shown. the
Board may recommend that the Board or OCOG waive and/or reduce any response time
penalties otherwise due,

I Provider fails to adhere to the applicable response time standards for either Emergency
or Non-emergency responses in three consecutive quarters within any twelve {(12) month
period, that faiture shall constitute grouwnds for the termination of the License with Provider,

If Provider fails to adhere to the applicable response time standards for either Emergency
or Non-emergency responses in two (2} consecutive quarters or two (2) guarters in any fwelve
{12} month period, the Provider shall within fifteen (15) dayvs wrtten notice of such fatlure
provide the Board with Provider's written plan to achieve adherence to the applicable response
time standards in the ensuing quarter. If the Provider fails to timely submit such plan, Provider
shall by such failure be deemed to have authorized the Contract Administrator to request
another Ambulance Service to provide non-emergency responses on the Providers behalf
pursuant to the Ordinance for a period of not less than thirty (30) days or until such time as the
Provider has submitted the plan called for above if Provider has not submitted that plan within
said thirty (307 day peried.

L. Corperate Citizenship

Provider agrees, when available, to provide ground ambulance stand-by at no charge for
high scheol/college football games within the geographical boundaries of the Service
Area. Upon request and acceptance, Provider agrees to provide such other stand-by service
as is requested by the Service Area for similar events at a reduced charge.

Provider agrees, when available, to provide such other stand-by service as is requested by a
local emergency response agency for emergency évents such as haz-mat calls, structure
fires, rescue calls, bomb threats, drug raids, ete. at no charge to the requesting public service
agency.

Provider also agrees to offer consolidated, annual First Responder training to the Service
Area Firefighters in order to assist Provider with care in Emergency situations.

nt. Mzintenance of Vehicles

All -ambulances shall at all times be adequately maintained, serviced and mechanically
sound. Provider shall maintain maintenance records that may be inspected by the Advisory
Roard as requested. Ambulances shall be less than 10 years old and shall have not more
than 400,000 miles of total service.



0. Vehicle Locating System

Each ambulance within the geographic boundaries of the Service Area shall be equipped
with a working, real-time Automatic Vehicle Locator (“AVL) system compatible with and
able to communicate with the CAD svstem of the Ouachita Parish Communications
District. Provider shall maintain all necessary licenses, permits, etc. necessary pursuant to
State, Federal, and local laws and regulations to enable Provider to operate said system.

V. OBLIGATIONS OF THE SERVICE AREA

The Service Area shall instruct and inform all interested parties (including parish 911 director,
etc.) that Provider shall be the exclusive ambulance service for all emergency (911 and other)
and non-emergency ambulance transportation originating within the geographical boundaries of
the Service Area.

The Service Area shall obey the terms of this agreement and the enabling ordinances establishing
this contract; take reasonable steps {including the initiation of civil or administrative actions or
referral to the District Attorney’s office for criminal, civil of administrative prosecution of any
violators of the ordinance) fo prevent any unauthorized operation of ambulance service (after
being provided with reasomable notice by Provider) originating within the geographical
boundaries of the Service Area during the term of this Agreement. The Service Area agrees that
it shall cooperate fully with the District Attorney, the Sheriff or any other governing body in the
enforcement of all laws and ordinances governing unauthorized ambulance operation, including
but limited to, referral to the Sheriff"s office for enforcement measures. The Service Area agrees
and acknowledges that any unauthorized operation shall be a violation of this agreement, which
will cause finaneial harm to Provider.

If any or all of the Service Areas fail 10 cooperate us ser forth above in an effort 1o prevent
unauthorized ambulance transportaifon within the geographical boundaries of the Service Area
through request for and cooperation in the sanctioning of the unauthorized activities afier
becoming cware of same, in writing, and unauthorized operation continues for a period
exceeding fourieen days within a thirty day period, Pravider’s obligations of response times or
of providing a Performance bond, if so required or any other gratuilous services under this
Agreement or any renewal period shall be extinguished for the remainder of the term of this
Agreement or amy renewal thereof and Provider will have the option o terminate this
- Agreement, effective within three (3} days of giving of notice of same. The remedies set forth
herein shall not be exclusive. Provider specifically reserves any and all other rights it may have
against the Service Area under law emd in equity.

VI, TERMINATION
A. Termination by the Service Area

1. Events of Default

10




Each of the following acts, omissions or occurrences shall constitute an “Event of
Default™ hereunder:

i. Provider shall violate in any material way any provision of the
Ordinance, this Agreement, or any State or Federal law or regulation
governing any aspect of ambulance service, which failure shall
continue for a period of sixty (60) davs after notice thereof is given to
Provider by the Service Area specifving such fatlure and requesting
that it be remedied;

1. Provider shall attempt to transfer the License jssued. pursuant to the
Ordinance or the Operations Contract entered infe hereunder to
another ambulance provider without the prior written approval of
QCOG,

iii. Provider shall cease doing business as a going concern;

iv. Provider’s financial reports demounstrate financial Instability  or
msolvency. :

v. Provider shall commence a voluntary case or other proceeding in
bankruptcy or seek liquidation, reorganization, arrangement,
readjustment of its debts or for any other relief under the federal
bankruptey laws, as amended, or under any other Inselvency act or
law, state or federal, now or hereafier existing, or shall take any other
action indicating its consent to, approval, or acquiescence in any such
case or proceeding; Provider shall apply for, or consent to or acquiesce
in, the appointment of a receiver, liguidator, custodian, sequestrator, or
a trustee for all or a substantial part of its property; Provider shall
make an assignment of a substantial portion of its assets for the
benefit of its creditors; Provider shall fail, or shall admit in writing its
failure to pay its debts gencrally as such debts become due or;

There shall be flled against Provider an involuntary petition in
bankruptcy or seeking lquidation, reorganization, arTangement,
readjustment of its debts or any other relief under the federal bankruptey
laws, as amended, or under any other insolvency act or law, state or
federal, now or hereafter existing, or a recejver, hiquidator, custodian,
sequestrator, or trustee of Provider for all or a substantial part of its
property shall be appointed without the consent or approval of Provider or
a wamant of aftachment, execution or similar process against any
substantial part of the property of Provider is issued; and the continuance
of any such event or events for thirty (30) days undismissed or
undischarged or within such thirty {30) days, the entering of an order for
relief under the United States Bankruptey Code.

11



B. Termination by Provider

1. Events of Default
Each of the following acts, omissions or occurrences shall constitute an “Event of Default”

hereunder:

a). Failure of the Service Area to have the requisite authority to enter into this
Agreement, or to epact any necessary Ordinances for ambolance services as provided
for hereunder;

b). Failure by the Service Area, by its own fault, to observe or perform any covenant,
warranty, term or provision of this Agreement.

¢). The intentional allowance of any additional ambulance service to operate n violatian
of this Ordinance within the unincorporated area of Ouachita Parish during any term of
the License, provided that the Provider shall first give the Quachita Parish Police Jury
written notice of the operation of any such additional ambulance service and the Quachita
Parish Police Jury shall have a perfod of fifteen (15) working days after receipt of such
notice to initiate action to enforce this Ordinance with respect to such additional
ambulance operation(s).

d) The ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT IN THE SERVICE ARFA TO AN additional
ambulance service during the initial term or any subsequent renewal of this agreement.

Provider and Service Area acknowledge and accept the terms and obligations agreed upon in this
contract and shall comply with all provisions hersin and with all parish, city, state and federal
laws. Failure to comply with the terms of this agreement shall render this contract voidable at
the discretion of the non-violating Party, provided that the Provider is given minety {90} days
advance notice and sixty (60) days to remedy any default. Any Netice under this Agreement
shall be given by certified mail, return receipt requested to:

PROVIDER: OUACHITA GOVERNMENTS, ¢/o

Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. Quachita Council of Gevernmenis

P.O. Box 98000 F00 Kilpatrick Bivd.

Lafayette, LA 70509 ) Monroe, LA 71201

ATTN: Chief Financial Officer ATTN: Ambulance Contract
Administrator

VIL. Indemmpity

1. Provider’s Indemuity of Service Area

Provider will indemnify, hold harmless and exempt the Service Area and its and their

representatives, officers, agents. servants and employees from and against any and all liability,

12



suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorney’s
fees to the extent arising out of in any way concerning or incident to any obligations of
Provider in the performance of this Agreement or to the extert arising out of a willful or
negligent act or omission of Provider, its officers, agents, servants, and employees {inchuding

such individual acting contrary to this Agreerent).

"VIll. AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT

1. Authority of Provider
Provider warrants that it has the full corporate authority and power to enter info this
Agreement, and that its Regional Vice President is authorized to execute this Agreement
on behalf of Acadian Ambulance Servive Inec.

2. Authority of the Service Area
The Quachita Governments represent that the necessarv action by the appropriate
authorities has been taken to approve this Agreement, and the undersigned representative
is authorized to execute this Agreement.

IX.  Agreement, Modification, and Governing Law

1. Foree Majeure

Provider’s performance of its obligations hereunder shall be excused in the event of and
during the period that such performance is prevented or rendered unsafe by the fllowing: acts
of God other than weather; acts of war, rot, or sabolage; unavailability of adequate fuel,
power or materials; judicial or governmental laws, regulations, requirements, orders or
actions; injunctions or restraining orders which are wltimately determined to have been
wrongfully granted; the failure of any governmentat body to issue or grent, or the suspension
or revocation of, licenses, permits or other approvals or authorizations necessary for the
performance of the services contemplated by this agreement: or national defense
requirements.

2. Entire Agreement

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous arrangerients or understandings
with respect thereto. However, it is understood and agreed that Provider was selected as as
the exclisive provider of ambulance service in Ouachita Parish in reliance on the
representations made in Provider’s July 2. 2018 Response to the Quachita Council of
Governments’ RFP for Ambulance Service (hereinafier “Provider’s Proposal™ and this
Agreement 1s intended 1o, and does hereby, incorporate as contractual obligations the
representations made in Provider's Proposal, as if copled 1 extense herein.

Modification
No provision of this Agreement can be modified, changed, discharged or terminated except by

an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom the enforcement of amy
modification, change, discharge or termination is sought.

13



4. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Louisiana. ' ' '

5. Partial Enforceability
If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of the Provision to any entity or

circumstance shall be held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of that
provision to entities or circumstances other than those with respect to which it is held invalid,

shall not be affected thereby.

TO BECOME EFFECTIVE THE 19 DAY OF January 2019.

ACADIAN AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC.

By:

Name:

Title: Regional Vice President b President

Date; 20 Date; Nov. 1420 %

CITY OF MONRQE | o~ CITY OF. WEST MONROE: . |
By: Sddmup &, [N\ By Yoo An#la Mot
Name:¥  James E. May Name:  Staci Albritton Mitchell
Title: Mayor Title: Mayor

Date: Af&!& 2§ 2014 Date; Aov {1208

14



TXHSITAR

L

!

“ Non-EMS Response Times
Resgulres Rt of Crmgibmsce - 0%
o . )

NE

-
Hotpital or gty Kooy -5 Mintrs

7} Emerzont Henpital Tracuports - 50 Minuter




ORDINANCE

STATE OF LOUISIANA

CITY OF MONROE NO.

The following Ordinance was introduced by Mr./Ms. who moved for

its adoption and was seconded by Mr./M:s.

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE AUTHORIZED MILLAGE RATE(S) AND
PROVIDING FOR THE LEVYING OF SPECIAL AND GENERAL TAXES FOR THE
CITY OF MONROE FOR THE YEAR 2024 AND FURTHER PROVIDING WITH
RESPECT THERETO. '

WHEREAS, under Art. VI, §23 of the Constitution of Louisiana, Title 47, Subtitle ITI of
the Louisjana Revised Statutes, and the City of Monroe Charter, the City of Monroe is required
annually to adopt, by ordinance, and levy the tax rate to be applied to assessed values for ad
valorem tax purposes;

WHEREAS, following a reappraisal and valuation by the Ouachita Parish Tax Assessor,
the City of Monroe desires to levy the following millage(s) on the 2024 tax rolls for all property
subject to taxation by the City of Monroe:

Category Existing 2023 2024 Millage
Millage

General Alimony 10.490 milis 10.180 mills
Safety Services 1.070 mills 1.070 mills
Recreation Facilities 1.880 miils 1.880 miils
Police Department 1.500 mills 1.460 mills
Fire Department 1.500 mills 1.460 mills
LA Puwrchase Gardens 2.500 milis 2.430 mills
& Zoo _
Civic Center Complex 2.500 mills 2.430 mills
Drainage Facilities 1.310 mills 1.310 mills
Capital Improvements 3.260 mills 3.170 mills
Airport Improvenients 1.010 mills 980 mills

' TOTAL 27.020 mills 26.370 mills

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council, in legal and regular
session convened, that that the following millage(s) are hereby levied on the 2024 tax roll on all
property subject to taxation by the City of Monroe:

Category MILLAGE
General Alimony 10.180 mills
Safety Services 1.070 mills
Recreation Facilities 1.880 mills
Police Department 1.460 mills
Fire Department 1.460 mills
LA Purchase Gardens 2.430 mills
& Zoo
Civic Center Complex 2.430 mills
Drainage Facilities 1.310 mills
Capital Improvements 3.170 mills
Airport Improvements 980 mills
TOTAL 26.370 mills

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the proper administrative officials of the Parish of
Ouachita, State of Louisiana, be and they are hereby empowered, authorized, and directed to spread
said taxes, as hereinabove set forth, upon the assessment roll of said Parish for the year 2024, and
to make the collection of the taxes imposed for and on bebalf of the taxing authority, according to
law, and that the taxes herein levied shall become a permanent lien and privilege on all property
subject to taxation as herein set forth, and collection thereof shall be enforceable in the manner



provided by law.
This Ordinance was introduced on the day of July 2024.
Notice Published on the day of July, 2024.

This Ordinance having been submitted in writing, introduced and published, was then
submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote thereon being as follows: '

AYES:
NAYS:

ABSENT:

And the Ordinance was declared ADOPTED on day of August, 2024.

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK

MAYOR’S APPROVAL

MAYOR’S VETO



ORDINANCE

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE

The following Ordinance was introduced by Mr./Ms. ., who moved
for its adoption and was seconded by Mr./Mrs.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF MONROE AND
PILOTS FOR PATIENTS AT THE MONROE REGIONAL AIRPORT AND FURTHER
PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Monroe is the owner of certain land located at the Monroe

Regional Airport that was previously leased to AvFlight Monroe Corporation under a Contract of
Lease dated September 25, 2016 (Ordinance No. 1 1,723); :

WHEREAS, the Monroe City Council approved a Lease Amendment to the Contract of
Lease that released approximately 1.609 acres back to the City of Monroe for non-commercial
aeronautical purposes (Ordinance No. 12,158); '

WHEREAS, Pilots for Patients is a non-profit organization which serves our community
and the region by providing free air transportation to patients needing diagnosis and treatments at
medical facilities not available to them locally, with a goal to eliminate the burdens of travel;

WHEREAS, Pilots for Patients positively affects countless lives, and the entire northeast
Louisiana region will benefit from Pilots for Patients’ continued operation, growth, and success
within Monroe;

WHEREAS, Pilots for Patients is currently based at the Monroe Regional Airport and
desires to lease the approximately 1.609 acres released by AvFlight for the construction of the
state-of-the-art hangar facility, host charitable events supporting the organization, and to grow its
mission;

WHEREAS, the City does not have its own plans for use or development of the
property, the property is not currently needed for any other public purpose, and the City does not
believe that the property will be needed for any other public purpose during the term of the lease;
and

WHEREAS, a copy of the proposed “Ground Lease Agreement betWeen the City of
Monroe, Louisiana and Pilots for Patients™ is attached hereto and made part hereof’

WHEREAS, the City deems the terms of the lease to be in the best interest of the City
and that the investment and rentals paid by Pilots for Patient under the lease are commensurate
with the value of the property;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Monroe,
in legal session comvened, that Stacey Rowell, Director of Administration, be and is hereby
authorized and empowered for and on behalf of the City of Monroe, Louisiana, to enter and
execute the attached Ground Lease Agreement between the City of Monroe, Louisiana and Pilots
for Patients; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the subject property is declared no longer
necessary for public use, that the terms and conditions of said lease are fair and reasonable, and
that the terms and conditions of the proposed lease are in the best interest of the City.

This Ordinance was introduced on July , 2024,

Notice published on July , 2024.



This Ordinance having been submitted in writing, introduced, and published, was then
submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote thereon being as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Ordinance was declared ADOPTED on August , 2024,

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK

MAYOR’S APPROVAL

MAYOR’S VETO



GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT
Between
THE CITY OF MONROE, LOUISIANA
and

PILOTS FOR PATIENTS

Dated as of August ___, 2024



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 22 NONDISCRIMINATION ......ocriiteeertcecrresrersrasssesnssssscmsnesonesesessesese e ssssesssessss s

ARTICLE 23 RIGHTS RESERVED TO CITY cucuttiriimeeeceeseeeeess st emee e sseeeeeeeeer e sseeseeas

- ARTICLE Page
ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS ....ooviiroinereeeresr e eecie e eeee e eanan .1
ARTICLE 2 LEASED PREMISES ..ottt ceccmseesescmes s cnessannm st 5
ARTICLE 3 CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS................ .6
ARTICLE 4 TERMu oottt st sess s s bane s sss st st e s eeaeseee s sses e s 10
ARTICLE 5 USES AND RESTRICTIONS .....oceecmrmmrmmtentemeeme e ssseossesseeeeeseseesesessesesssessesnen s 13
ARTICLE 6 RENT, FEES, CHARGES ......cootreeueeeesece et tes st ceeeeseseeseeseee s s s s 14
ARTICLE 7 OBLIGATIONS OF LESSEE ...vvueiitoeeeeeceeceieeeeceeesees s e seese . .15
ARTICLE 8 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION RIGHTS OF CITY oo 16
ARTICLE $ MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR eI TS CR SRS SO OOOONY
ARTICLE 10 ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS . .ooooooeeeeeee e ceveneeentensnnns 20

-~ ARTICLE 11 TITLE TO IMPROVEMENTS ..ottt ctecccensicecesscnssesseesorsnssersrns e 2]
ARTICLE 12 CONSTRUCTION LIENS eSS O SOOI SRRSO 21
ARTICLE 13 UTILITIES w22
ARTICLE 14 INGRESS AND EGRESS ..ottt e sesee s s e eeees s ses oo 22
ARTICLE 15 TAXES, PERMITS, LICENSES ...ooutoiteecmoeeeosemeeeee e eeeeeee oo 22
ARTICLE 16 INSURANCE......cccoimmeenriecnerernens ettt eem e bt e nnsese st n e e e s e erene 23
ARTICLE 17 INDEMNIFTCATION ...ctrurreeterienemrsrreresr e sssesseceeesmeesreaseemeeeesseesses e sesoeeeessese e 24
ARTICLE 18 ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS .......ovieeieeeieeteaeeereeeee e eeseeeeeeeeses s esse e 25
ARTICLE 19 FEDERAL STORM WATER REGULATIONS ......ooomueeeeecaecmreoreessseeseeererron. 27
ARTICLE 20 ENVIRONMENTAL INSPECTION....ccoemmrerttetentcseeceremee e sessesseeeessesesessesseenns 28
ARTICLE 21 STORAGE TANKS ......oiiiiicresetneeeteen s tes et st coseas e s sonsseseseseessesssnns 29




ARTICLE 24 RIGHT OF ENTRY .ot s e

ARTICLE 25 RIGHT OF FLIGHT

ARTICLE 26 SUBORDINATION TO DEED AND GRANT AGREEMENTS oo

ARTICLE 27 SIGNS ...

ARTICLE 28 QUIET ENJOYMENT .....oovureeeiecemeeeseeeeee e

ARTICLE 29 MORTGAGE RIGHTS OF LESSEE ..ot ee e oo

ARTICLE 30 RENT A SEPARATE COVENANT
ARTICLE 31 ASSIGNMENT ......coomoireee

ARTICLE 32 EMINENT DOMAIN AND DAMAGE TO LEASED PREMISES

- ARTICLE 33 NO ACCEPTANCE OF SURRENDER

ARTICLE 34 PERSONAL PROPERTY ..ottt eneeeeeeeseess s s e se e

ARTICLE 35 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE ...ocoovveirannn..

ARTICLE 36 ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS

ARTICLE 37 INVALIDITY OF CLAUSES ...cooimoeeeeeee e essrerern

ARTICLE 38 NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS ......oimmeeeeereeeeee oo
ARTICLE 39 FEDERAL RIGHT TO RECLAIM ..o
ARTICLE 40 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES ..o eeeems oo ees s
ARTICLE 41 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION ......
ARTICLE 42 NO INDIVIDUAL LIABILITY .ooouvtirtecesemeeeme et ees e eeeeseemes s s seseeseee e

ARTICLE 43 MISCELLANEQUS .....ooooicoitteeseeee e eeeceeremc s ececesessesees s

ARTICLE 44 SHORT-FORM LEASE .....coveveeeneee

....30

30

31

w31

32

35

w35

35

36

.37

37

37

37
37

-...38

38

.38

38

....39




GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT
PILOTS FOR PATIENTS

THIS GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _ dayof .
2024 (the “Effective Date™), and is by and between the CITY OF MONROE, LOUISIANA
(“City™), a political subdivision organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, and PILOTS
FOR PATIENTS, (the “Lesses” and together with City the “Parties” and each a “Party™).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City is the owner and operator of the Monroe Regional Alrport in
Monroe, Louisiana; -

WHEREAS, the City controls certain property located within the Airport more specifically
set forth on Exhibit A of this Agreement (such property, together with al rights, privileges,

easements and appurtenances benefiting such property, are collectively referred to herein as the
“Leased Premises™);

WHEREAS, the City is desirous of leasing the Leased Premises to Lessee and Lessee is
desirous of leasing the same from the City, upon the terms and conditions herein contained:

WHEREAS, Lessee intends to utilize the Leased Premises to provide free air
transportation to those patients needing diagnosis and treatments at medical facilities not available
to them locally, with a goal to eliminate the burden of travel allowing the patient to concentrate on
gefting well; ' ' '

WHEREAS, the City recognizes the significant economic and noneconomic benefits of
Lessee’s long-term presence at the Airport, including building & more robust aeronautical
community and providing a benefit to local medical communities;

WHEREAS, considering Lessee’s unique position at the Airport and benefits to the

community, this Lease contains terms and conditions which the Parties have specifically
negotiated to better facilitate Lessee’s operations; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set forth, and
for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged
by the parties, the Parties hereby agree as follows: '

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions.

Airfield shall mean those portions of the Airport, excluding the aircraft aprons, provided
for the Janding, taking off, and taxiing of aircraft, including without fimitation, approach and
turning zones, clear zones, avigation or other easements, runways, a fully integrated taxiway

Ground Lease Page 1 of 43



system, runway and taxiway lights, and other appurtenances related fo the aeronautical use of the
Airport, as such facilities may be modified from time to time.

Airport shall mean the Monroe Regional Airport, owned and operated by the City, in
Monroe, Louisiana, including all real property, easements or any other property interest therein as
well as all improvements and appurtenances thereto, structures, buildings, fixtures, and 21] tangible

personal property or interest in any of the foregoing, now or hereafter owned, leased or operated
by the City.

Airport Director means the Director of the Airport or his or her designate, including any
person holding such position on an interim or acting basis.

Alrport Minimum Standards means the minimum standards dated April 26, 2022, adopted
by the City and any amendment, restatement, or other modification to such minimum standards in
effect from time to time.

Applicable Laws means all laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regudations (including
without limitation Environmental Laws) lawfully issued or promulgated by any Governmental
Authority governing or otherwise applicable to the Airport (but not including any Rules and
Regulations adopted by the City), as any of the same may now exist or may hereafter be adopted
or amended, modified, extended, re-enacted, re-designated, or replaced from time to time and
judicial interpretations thereof,

Business Day means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday recognized by the

City.

City Party or City Parties means the City, its successors, and assigns, and each of its
Council members, officers, officials, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, and
volunteers.

City’s Representative means the person designated by the City pursuant to Section 3.5 to
act as Its representative with respect to oversight of the design and construction of the Project.

Construction Documents means the approved drawings, plans, specifications and other
documents for the 100% stage of design of the Project.

Date of Beneficial Occupancy nieans the date agreed to by both City and Lessee but no
later than thirty (30 days after the later of (a) the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the
Project or (b) Substantial Completion of the Project.

Design Review Process means the design review process for approval of the plans and
specifications for the Project set forth in Section 3.3.

Effective Date has the meaning set forth in the initial paragraph of this Lease.

Environmental Laws shall mean and include all Federal, State of Louisiana and local
statutes, ordinances, regulations and rules relating to environmental quality, health, safety,
contamination and clean-up, as they currently exist or may exist in the future, including, without

Ground Lease Page 2 of 43



limitation, the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.; the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §1251 et
seq., the Water Quality Act of 1987; the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act
(“FIFRA”™), 7 U.8.C. §136 et seq.; the Marine Protection, Research, and Sanctuaries Act, 33 U.S.C.
§1401 et seq.; the Noise Control Act, 42 U.S.C. §4901 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (“RCRA™), 42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq., as amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste
Amendments of 1984; the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. §300f et seq.; the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA™), 42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq.,
as amended by the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act, and the Emergency Planning
and Community Right to Know Act, and the Radon Gas and Indoor Air Quality Research Act; the
Hazardous Material Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §9601 et seq.; the Toxic Substance Control Act
("ISCA”), 15 U.S.C. §2601 et seq.; the Atomic Energy Act, 42 U.S.C. §2011 et seq.; and the
Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, 42 U.S.C. §1010 et seq.; all State environmental protection,

superlien and environmentaf clean-up statutes, with implemeniing regulations and guidelines and
all local laws, regulations and ordinances insofar as they are equivalent or similar to the Federal
faws recited above or purport to regulate Hazardous Materials, and judicial precedent of each of
the foregoing.

Environmental Permits means any and all permits, licenses, approvals, authorizations,
consents, or registrations required by applicable Environmental Laws, whether federal, state, or
local, which perfain to the production, use, treatment, generation, transportation, processing,
- handling, disposal, or storage of Hazardous Materials.

Event of Default means each of the events defined in Section 9.1 of this Lease.

Facility means the facility located within the Leased Premises that will be constructed on
the Leased Premises by Lessee.

Federal Aviation Administration (sometimes abbreviated as FAA) means the Federal
Aviation Administration created under the Federal Aviation Act of 1958, as amended, or any duly
authorized successor agency thereto.

Govemnmental Authority means any Federal, State, parish, municipal or other
governmental entity (including the City jn its governmental capacity), or any subdivision thereof,
with authority over the Airport or aeronautical operations at or with respect to the Airport.

Hazardous Materials shall mean (1) any substance the presence of which requires or
subsequently require notification, investigation or remediation under any Environmental Law; or
(2) any substance that is or becomes defined as a “hazardous waste”, “hazardous material”,
“hazardous substance”, “pollutant”, or “contaminant” under any Environmental Law, including,
without limitation, CERCLA, RCRA, and the associated regulations; or (3) any substance that is
toxic, explosive, corrosive, flammable, infectious, radioactive, carcinogenic, mutagenic, or
- otherwise hazardous and is or becomes regulated by any applicable Environmental Law; or (4)
any substance that contains gasoline, diesel fuel, oil, or other petroleum hydrocarbons or volatile
organic compounds; or (5) any substance that contains polychlorinated biphenyls (“PCBs™), per-
and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS), asbestos or urea formaldehyde foam insulation; or (6) any
substance that contains or emits radioactive particles, waves, or materlals including, without
limitation, radon gas.

Ground Lease . Page 3 of 43



Initial Term shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.2.

Lease means this Ground Lease Agreement dated as of the Effective Date between the City
and Lessee, as it may be supplemented or amended in accordance with the terms of this Lease.

Lease Year means the twelve (12) month period beginning upon the Effective Date and
each consecutive twelve (12) month period thereafter beginning on the first day of the month
immediately following the Effective Date, unless the Effective Date was the first day of the month,
until the expiration or termination of this Lease.

Leased Premises means the Property described in Exhibit A, including without limitation,
the Facility (if any) and aircraft aprons, vehicle parking areas and landscaping.

Lessee means PILOTS FOR PATIENTS, a chartered 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization in
good standing and authorized to do business in the State.

Lessee Parties means, collectively, Lessee, and any of its officers, volunteers,
representatives, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, licensees, subtenants, or suppliers.

Lessee’s Representative means the person designated by Lessee pursuant to Section 3.5 to
act as its representative with respect to oversight of the design and construction of the Project.

Party means either the City or Lessee and Parties refers to both the City and Lessee.

Person means a firm, association, partnership, limited liability company, trust, corporation,
and other legal entities, including Governmental Authorities, as well as a natural person.

Project means the Facility and related improvements to be constructed by Lessee in
accordance with Article 3, described as follows: a hangar and office space meeting the
specifications set forth in the Construction Documents.

Project Plans means the approved plans and specifications for the Project, developed in
accordance with the Design Review process set forth in Section 3.3.

Projected Delivery Date has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.

Rules and Regulations means the lawful rules and regulations governing the conduct and
operation of the Airport promulgated from time to time by the City, including without limitation,
the City’s duly adopted and generally applicable Airport Minimum Standards, Operating
Directives, Standard Procedures, and the Airport Security Plan, in each case as such may be in
force and amended from time to time.

SIDA shall mean that portion of the Airport designated by the City as the Security
Identification Display Area from time to time.

State means the State of Louisiana.

Ground Lease Page 4 of 43



Substantial Completion shall mean the date on which City’s architects and/or engineers
certify any improvements at the Airport to be substantially complete as to permit use and
occupancy by Lessee or another Person.

Term shali mean the period of time during which Lessee’s activities at the Afrport shall be
governed by this Lease, as defined in Article 4 hereof. As used in this Lease, the word “Term”
includes the Initial Term, and each Extended Term, if any, if Lessee exercises any or all of its
options to extend the Term.

_ Additional words and phrases used in this Lease but not defined herein shall have their
usual and customary meaning.

1.2 Interpretation.

(a) - References in the text of this Lease to articles, sections, or exhibits pertain to
articles, sections or exhibits of this Lease, unless otherwise specified.

(b)  The terms “hereby,” “herein,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “hereunder,” and any similar
terms used in this Lease refer to this Lease.

() Any headings preceding the text of the articles and sections of this Lease, and any
table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shal} be solely for convenience of
reference and shall not constitute a part of this Lease, nor shall they affect its meaning,
construction, or effect,

(d) Words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. The use of
any gender shall include all genders.

(e) Where the approval of the City is required under this Lease, the written approval of
the Airport Director or such person acting at the direction of the Mayor of the City of Monroe
(“Mavor”) in such position shall be required to evidence such approval.

1.3 Incorporation of Exhibits. The following Exhibits are hereby made a part of this Lease:

EXHIBIT A SURVEY AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION
EXHIBIT B RENT SCHEDULE
EXHIBIT C - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
EXHIBIT D REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS
ARTICLE 2
LEASED PREMISES

2.1  Leased Premises. Subject to the terms and conditions more fully set forth herein, City
hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from City the “Leased Premises,” which shall
consist of the property and the Facility to be located thereon depicted on Exhibit A.

Ground Lease Page 5 of 43



2.2 Prelimirary Site Plan. A preliminary site plan of the Leased Premises is attached hereto
as Exhibit A, which is subject to modification by mutual consent and written agreement of the
parties as set forth in Article 3.

2.3 Warranties; Condition Exemption for City. Lessee agrees that the delivery of the Leased
Premises to Lessee by the City on the Effective Date will be treated by Lessee with respect to the
City as being for all purposes in "AS IS" condition and the City will not be deemed to have made
any warranties or representations, express or implied, to Lessee with regard to the Leased Premises
except as expressly provided hereunder.

2.4 Subject to Survey. All square footages provided herein are estimates, and will be finalized
based on a survey of the Leased Premises. Based upon the final survey, Exhibit A will be modified
as necessary to reflect the correct square footage of each area. '

2.5  Title. Title to the Leased Premises is held by the City. Title to the Facility will be held by
Lessee until the earlier of (x) the expiration of the Initial Term or (y) termination or default of this
Lease.

ARTICLE 3
CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS

3.1 Construetion by City. To the extent not already existing, City agrees to bring existing
water, sanitary sewer and electric service to the perimeter of the Leased Premises. Utility service
capacities provided shall be limited to the existing service levels located within a reasonable
distance to the Leased Premises. The Parties will use good faith and reasonable efforts to agree in
writing on the location of any tie-in. The City shall have no duty to construct or provids utilities
on the Leased Premises.

3.2 Construction Obligations of Lessee.

(a) Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of this Article, Lessee shall design,
construct and install the Project. Lessee’s failure to meet either the Minimum Investment Amount
or to construct the Project in accordance with pre-approved plans and specifications, as applicable,
is an Event of Default.

) To ensure quality construction and installation of the Project, Lessee shall:

(1) ©  Design, construct, and install the Project so that the total value of all
improvements constructed and installed exceed Five Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($500,000) (the “Minimur Investment Amount™), as determined by
a competent appraisal or estimate of the value of the Project or by estimates
of value or receipts showing actual expenditures on the design, construction,
and installation of the Project; and -

(ity  Upon presentation to and approval by the City, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, design, construct, and instail the Project in
accordance with plans and specifications evidencing that the Project will be
of high-quality construction, using new, code-compliant materials.

Ground Lease Page 6 of 43



(c) The Project must be Substantially Complete no later than twenty-four (24) months
after the Effective Date (the “Projected Delivery Date™); however, Lessee shall use reasonable
efforts (utilizing ordinary and customary construction practices) to cause the Project to be
Substantially Complete as much in advance of the Projected Delivery Date as is reasonably
practicable. The City agrees to reasonably cooperate with such efforts and will not arbitrarily delay
any proceedings, withhold or deny approvals, or attribute to any unnecessary delays. Lessee’s
failure to meet the Projected Delivery Date is an Event of Default.

(d)  Lessee shall be solely responsible for obtaining all necessary permits from all
applicable Governmental Authorities and quasi-governmental entities having jurisdiction for
development of the Project.

3.3 Desien Review Process.

(a) All plans and specifications relating to the Project shall be prepared by (or on behalf
of) Lessee at its sole cost and expense and approved by the City in accordance with the “Design
Review Process” described in this Section 3.3. The Project shall be designed and constructed in
accordance with the Construction Documents approved through the Design Review Process set
- forth in this Section 3.3.

(b)  Lessee shall comply with all established City processes and procedures, including
submitting applications through the City’s online portal, for the construction of new buildings or
improvements, including submitting any required applications, site plans, surveys, grading and
drainage plans, utility plans, paving plans, site detail sheets, erosion control plans, landscape plans,
profile sheets, geotechnical reports, drainage statements, projects plans and specifications,
building plans and any other required documentation necessary for the City to assess the proposed
development. Lessee shall be solely responsible for obtaining all required building permits and
approvals, and if Lessee is required to seek any variances or changes in zoning, Lessee shall be
solely responsible for seeking the necessary approvals.

{c) Lessee shall submit a copy of all proposed plans and submissions to the City
Representative and through the City’s online application portal. The City retains the reasonable
authority to approve or reject plans for the construction of improvements on the premises.

(d) Lessee shall be solely responsible for obtaining all required approvals and permits
from Governmental Authorities, including applicable state and federal agencies, for the Project.

(&)  The City’s approval of final plans for the construction of improvements shall
constitute the “Construction Documents™ for the Project. The Project must be constructed in
- accordance with the approved Construction Documents.

(D In order to expedite construction of the Project, the Lessee may commence portions
of the Project if the City has approved Schematic Design for all of the Project and the Construction
Documents for such elements of the Project.

34 Performance Bond.

Ground Lease Page 7 of 43



(a) Lessee shall require contractors to obtain a performance bond and a labor and
material payment bond (“Construction Security”) to be kept in force throughout the construction
of the Project and for ninety (90) days thereafter. Copies of said bond shall be delivered to the City.
Should the Lessee not require this bond of the contractors then Lessee shall assume the
responsibility of securing and providing evidence of the Construction Security to the City.

(b)  The Construction Security shall be in the amount of the construction cost covering
faithful performance of the Lessee’s obligations hereunder and the payment of all obligations
arising in connection with the construction, free of liens upon the Leased Premises. The bonds
shall name the City as obligee and shall be written by surety companies qualified to do business in
the State of Louisiana, under proper certificate of authority, and in such form and with such sureties
as the City may approve. Lessee shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from any monetary
liens placed against the Leased Premises for nonpayment of taxes, materials or labor in connection
with construction.

(c) The City may,l but is not obligated to, permit other forms of security in lieu of a
surety performance bond provided that the security sufficiently guarantees full and satisfactory
performance by Lessee of Lesses’s obligation to build, construct, and install improvements.

35 Representatives. The City shall name a suitable employee to acts as the “City’s
Representative™ in all matters covered by this Article. Lessee shall appoint and notify the City of
a single employee of Lessee as “Lessee’s Representative” within thirty (30) days after the Effective
Date to act for Lessee in all matters covered by this Article. The City and Lessee hereby represent
and warrant to each other that the City’s Representative and Lessee’s Representative will be or are
each authorized to act on behalf of the City and Lessee, respectively, for all matters described in
this Article 3. All inquiries, requests, instructions, authorizations and other communications with
respect to the matters covered by this Article will be made to City’s Representative or Lessee’s
Representative, as the case may be. Lessee will not make any inquiries of or requests, and will not
give any instructions or authorizations, to any other employee or agent of City with regard to
matters covered by this Article. Either Party may change ifs representative at any time by three (3)
days’ prior written notice to the other Party.

City’s Representative and Lessee’s Representative shall meet no less than once each
- month, and more frequently if necessary, during the design and construction of the Project to
review the status of the design and construction of the Project. The City and Lessee shall each
make available such personnel, consultants, experts, and contractors as may be necessary or
desirable to review the status of the Project and any open issues. All disagreements on behalf of
either the City or Lessee with respect to any aspect of the design or construction of the Project,
including without limitation the approval of change orders, shall first be referred to the City’s
Representative and Lessee’s Representative for resolution. The two representatives shall meet and
seek, in good faith, to resolve any differences arising with respect to the Project. If the City’s
Representative and Lessee’s Representative are unable, in a period of five (5) Business Days, to
resolve any disputed matters, each shall prepare a written summary of the issues and the differences
between the parties and submit such summaries to a senior representative of the City and of Lessee
(the “Senior Representatives™) designated by the respective chief executive officers of the City
and Lessee. Such Senior Representatives shall seek, in good faith, to resolve such disputed issues.
Both the City and Lessee shall make available to such Senior Representatives such resousces as

Ground Lease Page 5 of 43



may be reasonably necessary for such Senior Representatives to seek to resolve any such dispute.
If after ten (10) Business Days the Senior Representatives are not able to resolve such dispute, then

the parties may resort to any other right or remedy that may be available to them under Applicable
Law,

3.6  Construction of Project. At such time as the Construction Documents for fthe Project
have been approved in writing by both City and Lessee, the Lessee will cause the Project to be
- constructed or installed on the Leased Premises in a good and workmanlike manner using only

new materials and according to the approved Construction Documents for the Project and all
Applicable Laws.

3.7 Cha_n oe Orders.

(a) During construction of the Project, the Lessee will cause copies of all requests for
change orders (amending the Construction Documents, Construction Budget and/or construction
schedule) to be delivered to the City’s Representative. Within five (5) Business Days after receipt
of any such request, the City will either approve or disapprove such request. The City agrees that
it shall not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent to any change order request. In the event
the City fails to approve or disapprove any change order within the five (5) Business Day period
provided for in this Section 3.7, such change order shall be deemed approved.

(b) In the event that the City disapproves any change order proposed or prepared by
the Lessee, the Lessee shall review the City’s objections thereto and if the Lessee agrees with the
City’s objections, may disapprove the request for the change order. If the Lessee determines that
the request for the change order js appropriate, the Lessee may, in its sole discretion, approve the
change order. If the City continues to object to the Lessee’s approval of the change order, then
within then (10) Business Days of the Lessee’s approval thereof, the City shall give the Lessee
notice (the “Disapproval Notice™). The City may initiate a dispute resolution process with Lessee’s
- Representative and City’s Representative to determine the reasonableness of the Lessee’s approval
of such change order in the time and in the manner provided in Section 3.5. In addition to other
factors which mighi bear on the reasonableness of the Lessee’s approval of any change order
request, the Lessee shall be considered to be acting reasonably in approving such request to the
extent such change order is determined to be a reasonable response to unforeseen or latent site
conditions, unusual weather, or inaccuracies in the design work, plans or other Construction
Documents, or which is reasonably necessary to minimize the impact of the Project on Airfield
safety, security or operations. Further, the reasonableness of the Lessee’s approval in any such
dispute resolution proceeding shall be considered in the context of the entire Project, specifically
including consideration of any reduction or increase in Project costs attributable to the Lessee’s
approval of change orders.

(©) The City’s Representative may request changes in the Project during construction
only by written request to Lessee’s Representative on a form approved by City. All such changes
will be subject to the Lessee’s prior written approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned so long as the proposed change will not result in (i) an adverse effect on
the construction schedule; or (if) materially increase the costs of the Project.

Ground Lease Page 9 of 43



3.8 Deliverv of Possession. The City shall be given reasonable advance notice of, and shall
have the right to participate in, all work performed for the purpose of establishing Substantial
Completion of the Project. Promptly following the Substantial Completion of the Project, the
Lessee shall evidence such completion by furnishing the City with a completion certificate signed
by Lessee’s Representative (i) certifying that the Project has been substantially completed in
accordance with the Construction Documents, as modified by any approved change orders, (ii)
identifying the square footage of the floor area of the Facility and the Leased Premises, and (iii)
specifying the Date of Beneficial Occupancy for the Project (“Completion Certificate™). City and
Lessee shall be deemed to accept such square footage as the “Rentable Area” and for all other
applicable purposes of this Lease, which shall not be changed unless the Project is thereafter
physically modified as approved in writing by the City. All amounts, percentages and figures
appearing or referred to in this Lease (including, without limitation, those relating to the
calculation of Rent) shall be modified in accordance with such calculation of square footages.
Prior to the Date of Beneficial Occupancy, the Lessee shall provide the City with copies of all
operating and maintenance manuals and warranties and guarantees for all equipment or systems

relating thereto and shall afford the City and appropriate City Parties the opportunity to be trained
to use all Project equipment and systems.

ARTICLE 4
TERM

4.1 Term.

(a}  Imitial Term. The “Initial Term™ shall begin on the Effective Date and shall
terminate at midnight on the last day of the month that is thirty (30) years from the Effective Date,
unless terminated sooner in accordance with this Lease.

(b)  First Option Term(s). No more than three hundred and sixty-five (365) days and
no less than one hundred and eighty (180) days from the expiration of the Initial Term, Lessee may
exercise one (1) ten-year option term (“First Option Term™) by providing written notice to the City,
which shall extend the expiration of this Lease until the fortieth (40th) anniversary of the Effective
Date. Notwithstanding the rest of this Section, Lessee’s notice and the Option Term shall not be
effective unless: '

(i) Lessee is not then in default under this Lease as of the date of Lessee’s
written notice;

(i)  In the fifth (5th) year preceding Lessee’s written notice, Lessee shall obtain
an assessment of the Facility, including any appurtenances and adjoining
spaces within Lessee’s Leased Premises, performed by a licensed and
quelified professional engineer or building inspector paid for by Lessee and
approved by City, and shall cause to be repaired, restored, and remedied all
structural deficiencies, including component parts, or items of deferred
maintenance identified by such assessment;

(it)  Inthe ten (10) years immediately preceding Lessee’s written notice, Lessee
has expended no less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) on

Ground Lease Page 10 of 43



©

(iv)

M)

permanent  Capital Improvemeots on the Leased Premises
("Refurbishments”), and may include within this amount repairs,
restorations, or remediation required conducted as part of the building
assessment required by this Section;

Lessee receives written approval from the City prior to commencing
construction on the Refurbishments (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld) and complies with all aspects of this Lease in
completing the Refurbishments; and

Lessee provides reasonable documentation to the City of the total
expenditure on the Refurbishments.

Second Option Term. No more than three hundred and sixty-five (365) days and

no less than one hundred and eighty (180) days from the expiration of the Initial Term, Lessee may
exercise one (1) ten-year option term by providing written notice to the City, which shall extend
- the expiration of this Lease until the fiftieth (50th) anniversary of the Effective Date.
Notwithstanding the rest of this Section, Lessee’s notice and the Option Term shall not be effective

unless:

(©

(i)

{1id)

(iv)

)

Lessee is not then in default under this Lease as of the date of Lessee’s
written notice;

In the fifth (5th) year preceding Lessee’s written notice, Lessee shall obtain
an assessment of the Facility, including any appurtenances and adjoining
spaces within Lessee’s Leased Premises, performed by a licensed and
qualified professional engineer or building inspector paid for by Lessee and
approved by City, and shall cause to be repaired, restored, and remedied all
structural deficiencies, including component parts, or items of deferred
maintenance identified by such assessment;

In the ten (10) years immediately preceding Lessee’s written notice, Lessee
has expended no less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) on
permanent  Capital Improvements on the Leased Premises
("Refurbishments™), and may include within this amount repairs,
restorations, or remediation required conducted as part of the building
assessment required by this Section;

Lessee receives written approval from the City prior to commencing
construction on the Refurbishments (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld) and complies with all aspects of this Lease in
completing the Refurbishments; and

Lessee provides reasonable documentation to the City of the total
expenditure on the Refirbishments.

Ground Lease

Page 11 of 43



(d)  For purposes of this Article 5, Capital Improvements shall mean improvements to
tangible property that must be capitalized under 28 U.S.C. § 263 and 26 C.FR. 1.263(a)-3, as may
be amended or redesignated.

(e During any Option Term, if applicable, all provisions of this Lease shall remain in
full force and effect; and

6] Rent during any Option Term shall be calculated in accordance with Article 6
herein. '

42  Return of Premises. Prior to Lease Termination, regardless as to the circumstances upon
- which Lease Termination occurs, Lessee shall at its own expense: (1) return the Leased Premises
to City in the same condition they were in on the Effective Date (or if later improved, as so
improved), excepting only normal wear and tear, Force Majeure, and repairs required to be made
by City hereunder; (ii) remove all of its personal property (including its trade fixtures, if any) and
possesstons from the Leased Premises. Any items of Lessee’s personalty remaining in or on the
Leased Premises after the expiration or termination of this Lease shall be deemed abandoned by
Lessee and become the sole property of City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any costs incurred
by City in storing and/or disposing of such abandoned property shall remain the sole obligation of
Lessee, which obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease.

4.3 Holdover.

(2)  Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, so long as an Event of
Default, or any event that, with the giving of notice or the passing of time, would constitute an
Event of Default, has not occurred at the time of the exercise of the rights provided in this
paragraph, Lessee may request to holdover in the Leased Premises from month-to-tnonth
(“Permitted Holdover”), commencing as of the first calendar month immediately following the
expiration of the Termt (as the same may be extended) (the “Permitted Holdover Period™), by
delivering to the City prior written notice of Lessee’s request to so occupy the Leased Premises on
or before the date that is six (6) months prior to the expiration of the Term. City may, within thirty
~ (30) days after receiving such notice, decline to allow a Permitted Holdover by delivering written
notice thereof to Lessee. If City does not respond to Lessee’s request for a Permitted Holdover
within such period, a Permitted Holdover shall be deemed disallowed. The Permitted Holdover
shall be subject to all the terms and conditions of this Lease, including without limitation payviment
of Rent (escalated annually as provided in Article 6) in the amounts in effect on the final Lease
Year of the Term, except that either Party may terminate the Permitted Holdover upon thirty (30)
days’ prior written notice.

(b)  Other than in the case of a Permitted Holdover, if Lessee fails to surrender the
Leased Premises upon termination or expiration of this Lease then Lessee’s continued oceupancy
of the Leased Premises shalf be deemed a tenancy from month-to-month with respect fo such
retained portion at a rental rate of one hundred and ten percent (110%) of the Rent due under this
Lease for the month prior to the holdover, and otherwise subject to all the terms and conditions of
this Lease. The City may tenminate the holdover tenancy at any time by providing thirty (30) days’
prior written notice to the Lessee. In addition to any other liabilities to the City arising therefrom,
Lessee shall and does hereby agree to indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from any loss

Ground Lease Page 12 of 43



or liability resulting from the Lessee’s failure to surrender the Leased Premises, including but not
limited to claims made by any succeeding tenant.

ARTICLE 5
USES AND RESTRICTIONS

Lessee shall use the Leased Premises to construct a hangar and related facilities to provide
air transportation to those patients needing diagnosis and treatrnents at medical facilities not
available to them locally and uses ancillary to the foregoing. Lessee, as a non-profit entity, may
also use the premises for promotional events, banquets, fundraisers, and other similar events to
support its mission provided that the events shall be for a public purpose, including supporting or
increasing the availability of flights for patients, recruiting or awarding volunteer pilots, enhancing
Lessee’s operations, or benefitting the commumity, Airport, or City as a whole. These events shall
be non-commercial in nature and shall not include any commercial aeronautical activity.

Lessee may house aircraft on the Leased Premises, but only to the extent that such aircraft
are (1) owned or leased (in whole or in part) by Lessee in its own name, (ii) owned or leased (in
whole or in part) by a member, employee, or representative of Lessee, or (iii) are owned or leased
(in whole or in part) by a person flying such aircraft on behalf of Lessee and its mission. Lessee
may charge fees to the owners/lessees of aircraft, but only at a level no more than necessary to
recover Lessee’s costs of operating the Leased Premises (e.g., Rent, utilities, and taxes). Lessee
shall at all times ensure that the City has an accurate list of the aircraft housed on the Leased
Premises, together with the following information: (a) owner/lessee of the aircraft, (b) tail number,
(c) model, (d) fee charged by Lessee for storage of the aircrafi, and (e) relationship of aircraft to
Lessee’s organization/mission. Lessee shall maintain records adequate to support the fees
charged to aircraft owners/lessees as compliant with this Article 5. Upon thirty (30) days’ written
notice from City to Lessee, Lessee shall provide the City with such records.

Lessee shall not provide any commercial aeronautical services from the Leased Premises
and shall not hold itself out to the public as providing any commercial acronautical services. Other
than those set forth in this Article 5, no other uses of the Leased Premises are permitted unless
agreed to in writing by City and Lessee. City and the City Parties assume no liability or
responsibility whatsoever with respect to the use, conduct, or operation of the business to be
conducted in and on the I.eased Premises and shall not be liable for any loss, injury, or damage to
property caused by or resulting from any variation, interruption, or faiture of utility or other
services due to amy cause whatsoever, or from faiture to make any repairs or perform any
maintenance that is Lessee’s responsibility pursuant to this Lease.

Subject to force majeure, Lessee shall continuously occupy the Leased Premises [and
operate the Facility in an ongoing manner] throughout the Term of the Lease, unless otherwise
agreed to in writing by City. In the event Lessee requires an extended suspension of operations of
the Leased Premises, defined as any period in excess of two (2) consecutive months, City shall
have the right, in addition to the remedies provided for under Article 9, to terminate this Lease
upon thirty (30) days written notice. All payments due City as provided for in Article 6, shali
remain due and payable during any period operations at the Leased Premises cease or are
suspended and Lessee shall continue to maintain the Leased Premises, keep utilities and services
in place, and maintain limited maintenance and security personnel.

Ground Lease Page 13 of 43



ARTICLE &
RENT, FEES, CHARGES

6.1  Rent, Fees, and Charges. Beginning on the Effective Date, Lessee shall pay the City
“Rent” equal to $0.15 per square foot per year on the Leased Premises. Commencing on the first
month of the fifth (5th) Lease Year, and every fifth Lease Year thereafter during the Initial Term,
the Rent due under this Section shal} increase by five percent (5%). The annual amount of Rent
owed for each Lease Year of the Initial Term under this Lease is identified in Exhibit B attached
to this Lease. The Rent due throughout the Term of the Lease shall be paid by Lessee monthly,
without demand, and in advance on or before the first (Ist) day of the month, and on the first day
(1st) of each month thereafter.

6.2  Rental Adjustments. At the expiration of the Initial Term and transfer of title o the
Facility(ies) to the City (the “Adjustment Date™), and in the event Lessee exercises its option to an
Option Term, the Rent shall be adjusted to the fair market Ground Rent and Facility Rent for the
Leased Premises as determined by the following procedure:

No later than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the commencement of the Adjustment
Date, Lessee and City will each appoint an independent appraiser, each of whom shall be a
professional M.A.L appraiser with at least ten years’ experience appraising aviation and industrial
properties, and each appraiser will provide said appraiser’s opinion of the fair market Ground Rent
and Facility Rent for the first year of the Extension Term commencing after the applicable
Adjustment Date and will report such opinion to the other appraiser within thirty (30) days of the
date of such appraiser’s appointment. In determining fair market Ground Rent and F acility Rent,
the appraisers shall take into account all relevant factors and may reasonably consider Lessee’s
status as a not-for-profit organization to the extent consistent with applicable FAA guidance or
regulations.

If one Party fails to appoint an appraiser, the opinion of the one appraiser so selected shall
be the Ground Rent and Facility Rent for the first year following the applicable Adjustment Date.
If both parties have appointed an appraiser, and the higher of the two appraisals is not more than
105% of the lower of the two appraisals, the two appraisals will be averaged. The Ground Rent
and Facility Rent, if applicable, for the first year of the Extension Term following the applicable
Adjustment Date will be such average.

If the higher appraisal is more than 105% of the lower appraisal, the two appraisers shall
retain a third appraiser (and if they cannot agree upon an appraiser, one will be appointed by the
executive in charge of the local office of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA™) or his/her
delegate upon the application of either City or Lessee, or another office of the AAA mutually
agreeable to the City and Lessee or, if the AAA is unable to carry out such duty, a successor
organization selected by the City and reasonably acceptable to Lessee), and such third appraiser
{(who shall be subject to the same requirements as to qualifications as the other two appraisers)
shall select a Rent that such appraiser deems reasonable (taking into account ali relevant factors,
including concessions then being granted by aviation and industrial landlords), as long as it is no
higher and no lower than the Rent as determined by the other two appraisers, respectively. In these
circumstances, the Rent so selected by the third appraiser shalt be the Ground Rent and the Facility
Rent for the first year of the Extension Term following the applicable Adjustment Date. Each

Ground Lease Page 14 of 43



party will be responsible for the fees and expenses of the appraiser retained by such party and if a
third appraiser is used the parties will share the fees and expenses of said appraiser equally.

Thereafter, commencing on the first month of the fifth (5th) Lease Year of the Extension
Term, and every fifth Lease Year thereafter during the Extension Term(s), the Ground Rent and
Facility Rent due under Section 6.1 of this Lease shall increase by five percent (5%) above the
previously effective Ground Rent and Facility Rent.

6.3  Failure to Pav Rentals, Fees or Charges. In the event Lessee fails to make timely
payment of any rent, fees, charges, and payments due and payable in accordance with the terms of
this Lease within ten (10) days after City’s written notice to Lessee specifying such failure, interest
at the maximum rate allowed by law shall accrue against the delinquent payment from the date
due until the date payment is received by City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, City shall not be
prevented from utilizing the remedies in Article 9 of this Lease.

6.4  Revenue Reports and Pavments. Lessee shall pay all rents, fees, charges and billings
required by this Lease in lawful money of the United States of America, by automated
clearinghouse (“ACH”) transfer, payable to the City, which shall be delivered according to ACH
directions provided by the City to Lessee from time to time or, if directed by ;he Crty in writing,
by mail, postage prepaid to the following address:

Airport Director, Monroe Regional Alrport
ATTN: Rental Payment
5400 Operations Road
Moenroe, LA 71203

or such other method, including wire transfer, or place in the United States of America, as may be
hereafter designated by the City. All reports and other correspondence should be addressed as
indicated in the Article hereof entitled, "Notices and Communications.™

ARTICLE 7
OBLIGATIONS OF LESSEE

Lessee shall:

(a) Conduct its operation hereunder in a safe, orderly and proper manner, considering
the nature of such operation so as not to unreasonably annoy, disturb, endanger or be offensive to
others at the Airport.

(b) - Control, within reason, the conduct, demeanor and appearance of the Iessee Parties
and those doing business with Lessee and, upon objection from City concerning the conduct,
demeanor and appearance of any such persons, shall immediately take all reasonable steps
necessary to remove the cause of objection.

() Remove from the Leased Premises or otherwise dispose of in a manner approved
by the Airport Director all garbage, debris and other waste materials (whether solid or liquid)
placed on the Leased Premises. Any such debris or waste which is temporarily stored shall be kept

Ground lL.ease Page 15 of 43



in suitable garbage and waste receptacles with tight-fitting covers and designed to safely and
properly contain whatever waste material may be placed therein. Lessee shall use extreme care
when effecting removal of all such waste.

(d)  Not create, commit or maintain any nuisance, waste, or damage to the Leased
Premises and shall not do or permit to be done anything which may result in the creation,
commission or maintenance of such nuisance, waste or damage to the Leased Premises.

(e) Not create nor permit to be caused or created upon the Airport or the Leased
Premises any obnoxious odor, smoke or noxious gases or vapors.

) Not do or permit to be done anything which may interfere with effectiveness or
accessibility of any utility or other system, including, the drainage and sewage system, fire
protection system, sprinkler system, alarm system, fire hydrants and hoses, if any, installed or
located on the Leased Premises.

(g8  Notoverload any floor or paved area on the Leased Premises and shall repair any
floor, including supporting members, and any paved area damaged by overloading.

(h}  Notto do or permit to be done any act or thing upon or within the Leased Premises:

(D) Which will invalidate or conflict with any fire insurance policies covered
the Leased Premises or any part thereof or other contiguous property; or

(i) ~ Which may constitute an extra-hazardous condition so as to increase the
risks normally attendant upon the operations permitted by this Lease.

W Not keep or store flammable liquids within any covered and enclosed portion of
the Leased Premises in violation of Applicable Law or in excess of Lessee’s working requirements.

() To provide frequency protection within the aviation air/ground VHF frequency
band and the UHF frequency band in accordance with restrictions promulgated by the Federal
Aviation Administration for operations in the vicinity of the FAA facilities.

(k)  Pay all applicable sales taxes, ad valorem taxes and any other taxes or assessments
validly assessed against the Leased Premises or the leasehold estate. Lessee reserves the right to
contest any such taxes and withhold payment of such taxes, so long as the nonpayment of such
taxes does not result in a [ien against the Leased Premises or a direct liability on the part of City.
This Lease shall be 2 net lease with City receiving rentals free of any indebtedness, encumbrances,
or liens of any nature whatsoever.

ARTICLE 8
DEFAULT AND TERMINATION RIGHTS OF CITY

8.1  Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute an “Event
of Default” under this Lease:

Ground Lease Page 16 of 43



(a) Lessee’s failure to (i) pay the Rent, any portion thereof, or any other sums payable
hereunder for a period of ten (10} days after written notice by City of the date due, or (ii) maintain

~ the insurance or contract security (if applicable) as required by this Lease, or (iii) comply with the

Adrport Security Plan for the Airport as in effect from time to time;

(b)  Lessee’s fajlure to meet either the Minimum Investment Amount or to construct the
Project in accordance with pre-approved plans and specifications, as applicable:

(c) Lessee’s failure to meet the Projected Delivery Date;

(d)  Lessee’s failure to observe, keep, or perform any of the other terms, covenarts,
agreements or conditions of this Lease or in the Airport Rules and Regulations for a period of thirty
(30) days after written notice by City, provided that Lessee shall not be in default after the end of
such thirty day period if Lessee commences a cure of such default within such thirty day period
and diligently pursues such cure to completion thereafter and completes such cure within a period
of one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of such written notice:

() The bankruptey of Lessee;
) Lessee making an assignment for the benefit of its creditors;

(g)  Areceiver or trustee being appointed for Lessee or a substantial portion of Lessee’s
assets;

(h}  Lessee’s voluntary petitioning for relief under, or otherwise seeking the benefit of,

any bankruptey, reorganization, arrangement or insolvency law;

i Lessee’s vacating or abandoning the Leased Premises;
g g
G) Lessee’s interest under this Lease being sold under execution or other legal process;

(k) Lessee’s inferest under this Lease being modified or altered by any unauthorized
assignment or subletting or by operation of law;

(0 Any of the goods or chattels of Lessee used in, or incident to, the operation of
Lessee’s business in the Leased Premises being seized, sequestered, or impounded by virtue of, or
under authority of, any legal proceeding; or

(m)  Lessee’s failure to comply with Environmental Laws or any other Applicable Laws.

8.2 Remedies. In the event of the occurrence of any of the foregoing Events of Default, the
City, at its election, may exercise any one or more of the following options or remedies, the
exercise of any of which shall not be deemed to preclude the exercise of any others herein listed
or otherwise provided by Applicable Law at the same time or in subsequent times or actions:

(2 Proceed to draw upon Lessee’s Contract Security (if applicable).

Ground Lease Page 17 of 43



(b) Terminate Lessee’s right to possession under the Lease and re-enter and retake
possession of the Leased Premises and relet or attempt to relet the Leased Premises on behalf of
Lessee at such rent and under such terms and conditions as City may deem best under the
circumstances for the purpose of reducing Lessee’s liability. City shall not be deemed to have
thereby accepted a surrender of the Leased Premises, and Lessee shall remain liable for all Rent,
or other sums due under this Lease and for all damages suffered by City because of Lessee’s breach
of any of the covenants of the Lease.

(¢} Declare this Lease to be terminated, ended and null and void, and re-enter upon and
take possession of the Leased Premises, whereupon all right, title and interest of Lessee in the
Leased Premises shall end.

(d) Accelerate and declare the entire remaining unpaid rent for the balance of this Lease
and any other sums due and payable forthwith and may, at once, take legal action to recover and
collect the same.

()  Ifany policy of insurance required under this I ease shall expire and not be renewed
or replaced by Lessee within five (5) days of such expiration, the City may obtain such insurance,
and the cost of such insurance shall be reimbursed by Lesses to the City as Additional Rent within
fifteen (15) days of Lessee’ receipt of an invoice therefor.

H Exercise any other remedy available to the City for such Event of Default under
Applicable Law.

8.3  Habitual Default. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Lessee has
frequently, regularly, or repetitively defaultted in the performance of or breached any of the terms,
cavenants, and conditions required herein to be kept and performed by the Lessee, and regardless
of whether the Lessee has cured each individual condition of breach or default, the Lessee may be
determined by the City to be an “habitual violator.” At the time that such determination is made,
the City shall issue to the Lessee a written notice advising of such determination and citing the
circumstances therefor. Such notice shall also advise Lessee that, notwithstanding any other
provision of this Article 9, there shall be no further notice or grace periods to correct any
subsequent breaches or defaults and that any subsequent breaches or defaults of whatever nature,
taken with all previous breaches and defaults, shall be considered cumulative, and collectively
shall constitute a condition of noncurable default and grounds for immediate termination of this
Lease. In the event of any such subsequent breach or default, the City may terminate this Lease
upon the giving of written notice of termination to the Lessee, such termination to be effective
upon delivery of the nofice to the Lessee.

8.4  Additional Provisions. No re-entry or retaking possession of the Leased Premises by City
shall be construed as an election on its part to terminate this Lease unless a written notice of such
intention be given to Lessee, nor shall pursuit of any remedy herein provided constitute a forfeiture
or waiver of any rent or other monies due to City hereunder or of any damages accruing to City by
reason of the violations of any of the terms, provision and covenants herein contained. City’s
acceptance of rent or other monies following any non-monetary event of default hereunder shall
not be construed as City’s waiver of such event of default. No forbearance by City of action upon
any violation or breach of any of the terms, provisions and covenants herein contained shall be

Ground Lease Page 18 of 43



deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of the terrus, provisions and covenants herein
contained. Forbearance by City to enforce or waiver of one or more of the remedies herein
provided upon an Event of Default shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any
other violation or default. Legal actions to recover for loss or damage that City may suffer by
reason of termination of this Lease or the deficiency from any reletting as provided for above shall
include the expense of repossessions or reletting and any repairs or remodeling undertaken by City
following repossession.

In the event City commences any proceeding to enforce this Lease or the relationship between the
Parties or for nonpayment of Rent (of any nature whatsoever, in whole or in part) or additional
monies due City from Lessee under this Lease.

85  Waiver of Jury Trial. City and Lessee shall, and they hereby do, knowlingly, voluntarily
and intentionally, waive frial by jury in any action, proceeding, or counterclaim brought by either
of the Parties hereto against the other on any matters whatsoever arising out of, or in any way
connected with, this Lease, the refationship of City and Lessee, Lessee’s use or occupancy of the
Leased Premises and/or building, and/or claim or injury or damage.

8.6  Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Lease, and in case Lessee shall fail to
perform the covenants or conditions on its part to be performed at the time fixed for the
performance of such respective covenants or conditions by the provisions of this Lease, City may
declare Lessee to be in default of this Lease. '

8.7 Force Majeure. No act or event, whether foreseen or unforeseen, shall operate to excuse
Lessee from the prompt payment of Rent or any other amounts required to be paid under this
Lease. If City (or Lessee in connection with obligations other than payment obligations) is delayed
or hindered in any performance under this Lease by a force majeure event, such performance shall
be excused to the extent so delayed or hindered during the time when such force majeure event is
in effect, and such performance shall promptly occur or resume thereafter at the expense of the
Party so delayed or hindered. A “force majeure event” is an act or event, whether foreseen or
unforeseen, that prevents a Party in whole or in part from performing as provided in this Lease,
that is beyond the reasonable control of and not the fault of such Party, and that such Party has
been unable to avoid or overcome by exercising due diligence, and may include, but is not limited
to, acts of nature, pandemic, war, riots, strikes, accidents, fire, and changes in law. Lessee hereby
releases City from any and all Hability, whether in contract or tort (including strict liability and
negligence) for any loss, damage or injury of any nature whatsoever sustained by Lessee, its
employees, agents or invitees during the Term, including, but not limited to, loss, damage or injury
to the aircraft or other personal property of Lessee that may be located or stored in the Leased
Premises due to a force majeure event,

ARTICLE 9
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

9.1 Lessee’s Responsibilities. Lessee shall throughout the Term of this Lease assume the
entire responsibility and shall relieve City from all responsibility for all repair and maintenance
whatsoever of the Leased Premises whether such repair or maintenance be ordinary or
extraordinary, structural or otherwise, and without limiting the generality hereof, shall:

Ground Lease Page 19 of 43



(a) Keep the Leased Premises at all times in a clean and orderly condition and
appearance and all Lessee’s fixtures, equipment and personal property which are located in any
part of the Leased Premises. '

(b)  Repair and maintain all building systems, including but not limited to HVAC,
electrical, fire suppression system, plumbing, compressed air, landscaping, windows, pavements,
equipment, lighting fixtures, furnishings, fixtures and exterior non-load bearing walls.

(c) Provide and maintain fire protection and safety equipment and all other equipment
of every kind and nature required by any Applicable Law.

(d) ~ Keep all areas of the Leased Premises, inclusing the apron areas, if any, in a state
of good repair, to include repair of any damage to the pavement or other surface of the Leased
Premises or the Facility caused by weathering and/or aging, Lessee’s operations, or by any oil,
gasoline, grease, lubricants or other flammable liquids and substances having a corrosive or
detrimental effect thereon.

(®) Be responsible for the maintenance and repair of all utility service lines from the
point of entry to the Leased Premises, except common utilities, if any, including but not limited to,
service lines for the supply of water, gas service lines, electrical power and telephone conduits and
lines, sanitary sewers and storm sewers which are now or which may be subsequently located upon
the Leased Premises and used by Lessee or any subtenants.

9.2 City’s Rights. City shall not be liable for, or required to make, any repairs or perform any
majntenance upon the Leased Premises. If Lessee fails to perform Lessee’s maintenance
responsibilities, City shall have the right, but not the obligation, to perform such maijntenance
responstbilities, provided City has first, in any situation not involving an emergency, by written
notice to Lessee, afforded Lessee a period of ten (10) days within which to commence corrective
~action to correct the failure. All costs incurred by City in performing Lessee’s maintenance
responsibility, plus a twenty-five percent (25%) administrative charge, shall be paid by Lessee
within ten (10) days of receipt of billing therefor.

ARTICLE 10
ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS

10.1  Written Consent. Lessee shall make no alterations or improvements to the Leased
Premises without the prior written consent of the Airport Director or other authorized
representative of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed.

10.2  Conditions. If Lessee requests permission to make improvements or alterations and
permission is granted, the following conditions shall apply:

()  Lessee shall apply for, obtain and comply with all required permits and licenses
necessary and comply with Applicable Laws as well as any restrictions or conditions imposed by
City with respect to such improvements;

Ground Lease Page 20 of 43



M) Prior to any construction within the Premises, all contractors and subcontractors to
perform work must be approved by City; and

{©) In addition to compliance with any restrictions or conditions, Lessee agrees to pay
ali costs and expenses necessary to design and construct City-approved alterations or
improvements, and to maintain at its expense the Leased Premises and any improvements,
equipment, or displays within the Leased Premises in a good state of repair and preservation.

10.3  Certification of Improvement Costs; As-Built Drawings. The cost of leasehold
improvements, fixtures, and equipment shali be borne by Lessee, unless the City agrees in writing
to pay any such costs. Upon completion of any leasehold improvements, Lessee shall firrnish City
with a certified statement of all approved improvement costs and that said costs have been
satisfactorily paid in full, and that there are no liens or unpaid contractors or subcontracts relating
to the improvements. Lessee shall deliver to City “as built” plans for all alterations, additions and
improvements made by Lessee within thirty (30) days after completion of the same.

ARTICLE 11
TITLE TO IMPROVEMENTS

All permanent improvements of whatever kind or nature, including but not limited to, all bui Idings
and all equipment installed therein which, under the laws of the State of Louisiana, are part of the
realty, including without limitation heating and air conditioning equipment, interior and exterior
light fixtures, fencing, landscaping, paving, tie-down facilities, and afl other permanent
improvements placed upon the Leased Premises, with or without consent of City, and shall become
and be deemed to be a part of the Leased Premises, shall be free and clear of all liens and shall
become the property of City upon the earlier of (x) the expiration of the Initial Term or (y)
termination or default of this Lease., and shall remain on the Leased Premises unless otherwise
directed by the City. Title to all personal property, furnishings and trade fixtures {unless paid for
by the City) shall be and remain with Lessee and may be removed from the Leased Premises at
any time, provided Lessee is not then in default hereunder, and further provided Lessee exercises
care in the removal of same and repairs any damage to the Leased Premises caused by said
removal. Personal property, furnishings and trade fixtures which are paid for by the City shall be
titled to the City, and shall not be removed from the Leased Premises without prior written consent
of the City.

ARTICLE 12
CONSTRUCTION LIENS

City’s interest in the Leased Premises shall not be subjected to any construction, mechanic’s,
materialman’s, tax, laborer’s or any other lien, whether City has given its written approval for the
improvements or otherwise, and Lessee shall save and hold harmless City and its interest in the
Leased Premises from any such lien or purported lien. Within fifteen (15) days of filing of any
lien, Lessee shall cause same to be satisfied or shall post bond for the lien that is satisfactory to the
City in its sole discretion. :

Ground Lease Page 21 of 43



ARTICLE 13
UTILITIES

Lessee agrees to provide for its own connections with utilities and to make separate agreements
with the agencies responsible for these utilities. Lessee shall pay for all utility service supplied to
the Leased Premises and, if required by the utility agencies as a condition of continuing said
services, Lessee shall install and pay for standard metering devices for the measurement of such
services. Lessee shall be solely responsible for all utility charges, including without limitation,
natural gas, electricity, sewer, telecommunications and water used on the Leased Premises during
the Term. Lessee further agrees that City shall have the right, without cost to Lessee, to install and
maintain in, on, or across the Leased Premises sewer, water, gas, electric and telephone lines,
electric substations, or other installations necessary to the operation of the Airport, or to service
other tenants of City; provided, however, that City shall carry out such work and locate above-
ground structures in a manner that does not unreasonably interfere with the Lessee’s use of the
Leased Premises.

ARTICLE 14
INGRESS AND EGRESS

Lessee, the Lessee Parties, and its suppliers of material and furnishers of services, shall have the
right of ingress and egress to the Leased Premises via appropriate taxiways, public or private ways
to be used in common with others having rights of passage, provided that City may, at its expense,
from time to time, substitute other means of ingress and egress so long as an alternate means of
ingress and egress is available. The City may at any time temporarily or permanently close any
taxiway, roadway or other area used as ingress or egress to the Leased Premises presently or
hereafter used as such, so long as an alternative means of ingress and egress is made available to
Lessee and so long as such closure does not prevent Lessee from using the Leased Premises as
Lessee intends; provided, however, that the City may close any such means of access or egress
without providing an alternative means of ingress or egress due to a force majeure event or for a
commercially reasonable period of time necessary to repair or otherwise maintain such areas and
facilities (a “Total Closure”). In the event any such Total Closure is necessary, the City will provide
Lessee with advance, written notice reasonable under the circumstances and use diligent efforts to
coordinate any such closure and maintenance activities with Lessee to minimize any adverse
effects upon Lessee” operations. Lessee hereby releases and discharges City, its successors and
assigns, of and from any and all claims, demands or causes of action which Lessee may 1now or at
any time hereafter have against any of the foregoing arising or alleged to arise out of the closing
of any taxiway, apron, runway, street, roadway, or other areas used as such, whether within or
outside the Leased Premises, provided that City makes available to Lessee an alternate means of
ingress and egress.

ARTICLE 15
TAXES, PERMITS, LICENSES

In addition to those obligations set forth in Article 8, Lessee shall bear, at its own expense, all costs
of operating its equipment and business, any and all ad valorem, sales, use or other taxes levied,
assessed or charged upon or with respect to the Leased Premises or improvements or property
Lessee places thereon and any assessed against the operation of the business and any ad valorem,

Ground Lease Page 22 of 43



sales, use or similar taxes levied or assessed with respect to this Lease or the Leased Premises,
whether assessed at the Effective Date or thereafter imposed, regardless of whether such taxes are
assessed against the Lessee or the City. Lessee reserves the right to contest any such taxes and
withhold payment of such taxes, so long as the nonpayment of such taxes does not result in a lien
against the Leased Premises or a direct liability on the part of City. Lessee shall bear all costs of
obtaining any permits, licenses, or other authorizations required by authority of law in connection
with the operation of its business at the Airport, and copies of all such permits, certificates and
licenses shall be forwarded to City.

ARTICLE 16
INSURANCE

Lessee shall provide, pay for, and maintain insurance per the Minimum Standards for the Arport,
as such may be revised from time to time, or the types of insurance set forth at Exhibit C,
whichever is greater. All insurance shall be from nationally recognized companies rated no lower
than A-VIII by A.M. Best Company (or shall be rated in a similar category by another company
approved by the City) authorized to do business in the State of Louisiana. All liability insurance
policies of Lessee required herein shall provide a severability of interest provision. The insurance
coverages and limits required shall be evidenced by properly executed certificates of insurance.
Each certificate shall be an original, signed by the authorized representative of the insurance
company shown on the certificate with proof that he/she is an authorized representative thereof
attached.

All certificates shall provide that thirty (30) days’ prior written notice, by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, shall be given City of any cancellation, intent not to renew, reduction
in the policies’ coverages, or other material alteration. In the event of a reduction in any aggregate
limit, Lessee shall take immediate steps to have it reinstated. If at any time City requests a written
statement from the insurance company as to any impairments to the aggregate limit of insurance,
Lessee shall promptly deliver such statement to City. Lessee shall make up any impairment when
known to it. Lessee authorizes City to confirm ail information, as to compliance with the insurance
~ requirements herein, with Lessee’s insurance agents, brokers, and insurance carriers. All insurance
coverages of Lessee shall be primary as regards any insurance or self-insurance program carried

by City.

The acceptance of delivery by City of any certificate of insurance or Memorandum of Insurance
evidencing Lessee’s insurance coverages and limits does not constifute approval or agreement by
City that the insurance requirements have been met or that the insurance policies shown in the
certiticates of insurance are in complisnce with the requirements herein. The certificates of
insurance, or other evidence, must be filed with and approved by City prior to any activity being
performed on the Leased Premises by Lessee. Lessee shall, before commencement of any work on
the Premises, furnish City evidence that the contractor(s) is covered by insurance and with limits
to the reasonable satisfaction of City. During any construction of improvements or alterations
undertaken on the Leased Premises, Lessee or its contract shall carry builders’ risk insurance and
other coverages as reasonably required by the City.

Ground Lease Page 23 of 43



The insurance coverages and limits required of Lessee are designed to meet the minimum
requirements of City. They are not designed as a recommended insurance program for Lessee.
Lessee alone shall be responsible for the sufficiency of its own insurance program.

Lessee and City understand and agree that the limits of the insurance herein required may become
inadequate based on Lessee’s activities and industry practices or general inflation in relation to
the initial policy requirements, and Lessee agrees that it will increase such limits within thirty (30}
days after receipt of notice in writing from City.

If any liability insurance required herein is to be issued or renewed on a "claims made" form as
opposed to the "occurrence” form, the retroactive date for coverage shall be no later than the
Effective Date of the Lease and shall provide that in the event of cancellation or non-renewal, the
discovery period for insurance claims (Tail Coverage) shall be unlimited.

All of the required insurance coverages shall be issued as required by Applicable Law and shall
be endorsed, where necessary, to comply with the minimum requirements contained herein.
Submissions required by this Article shall be given to:

Airport Director, Monroe Regional Airport
ATTN: Facility Insurance
5400 Operations Road
Monroe, LA 71203

Renewal Certificates of Insurance shall be provided to City a minimum of thirty (3 0) days prior to
expiration of current coverages.

City may terminate or suspend this Lease at any time should Lessee fail to provide or maintain the
insurance coverages required in this Lease, evidenced by documentation acceptable to City.

The amounts and types of insurance shall conform to the minimum requirements with the use of
Insurance Service Office (ISO) policies, forms, and endorsements or broader where applicable.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the wording of all policies, forms, and endorsements must be
acceptable to City. '

ARTICLE 17
INDEMNIFICATION

A. Lessee shall hold City exempt and harmless, to the extent allowed by general law, from
and against any and all claims, demands, suits, judgments, costs and expenses asserted by
- any person or persons (including agents or employees of City, Lessee, or sublessee) by
reason of death or injury to persons or loss of or damage to property resulting from Lessee’s
operations, or anything done or omitted by Lessee under this Agreement except to the
extent that such claims, demands, suits, judgments, costs and expenses may be atiributed

to the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of City, its agents or employees.

Ground Lease Page 24 of 43



B. City shall not be liable to Lessee for any damage by or from any act or negligence of any
co-tenant or other occupant of the same building, or by any owner or occupant of adjoining
or contiguous property.

C. Lessee agrees to pay for all damages of Leased Premises caused by Lessee’s misuse or
neglect thereof, its apparatus or appurtenances.

D. Lessee shall be responsible and liable for the conduct of Lessee Parties in and around the
Leased Premises.
E. City, its agents, employees and contractors shall not be liable for, and Lessee hereby

releases all claims for business interruption, damage to person or property sustained by
Lessee, or any person claiming through Lessee, resulting from any fire, accident,
occurrence, or condition in or upon the Leased Premises or Airport including, but not
limited to, such claims for damage resulting from (i) any defect in or failure of any system,
equipment, pipes, stairs, railing or walks; (ii) any equipment or appurtenances becoming
out of repair; (jii) the bursting, leaking, or running of any tank, washstand, water closet,
waste pipe, drain or any other pipe or tank in, upon or about such building or premises; (iv)
the backing up of any sewer pipe or downspout; (v) the escape of steam or hot water; (vi)
water, snow or ice being upon or coming through the roof or anty other place upon or near
such building or Leased Premises or otherwise; (vii) the falling of any fixtures; (viii)
broken glass; or (ix) the act or omission of any other person or party.

F. Lessee shall indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend the City and the other City
Indemnitees from and against any liability for any claims and actions and all expenses
incidental to the investigation and defense thereof, to the extent that such liability arises
from or is based upon the violation of any Applicable Law by Lessee or any Lessee Party
or those under its control.

G. The City shall give Lessee reasonable notice of any suit or ¢laim for which indemnification
will be sought under this Section. The City will allow Lessee or its insurer to compromise
and defend the same to the extent of the interests of both Lessee and City, and reasonably
cooperate with the defense or reasonable settlement of any such suit or claim.

H. This indemnification provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement for actions by Lessee which oceur during the term of this Agreement, whether
such term expires naturally by passage of time or is terminated earlier. '

ARTICILE 18
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

18.1 Environmental Represeutations. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Lease, and
in addition to any and all other Lease requirements, and any: other covenants and warranties of
Lessee, Lessee hereby expressly warrants, guarantees, and represents to City, upon which City
expressly relies that: '

(a) Lessee is knowledgeable regarding any and all Environmental Laws which govern
or which in any way apply to the direct or indirect results and impacts to the environmental and

Ground Lease Page 25 of 43



natural resources due to, or in any way resulting from, the conduct by Lessee of its operations
pursuant to or upon the Leased Premises. Lessee agrees to keep informed of firture changes in
Environmental Laws relating to its operations on the Leased Premises.

(b)  Lessee agrees to comply with all Envirommental Laws applicable to its operations
on the Leased Premises, and accepts full responsibility and liability for such compliance.

(c) Lessee shall, prior to commencement of any of Lessee’s operations pursuant to this
Lease, secure any and all Environmental Permits, and properly make all necessary notifications,
relating to its operations on the Leased Premises, and property make all necessary notifications as

may be required by any and all Governmental Authorities having jurisdiction over parties or the
subject matter hereof.

{(d}  Lessee, and all Lessee Parties, have been fully and properly trained in the handling
and storage of all such Hazardous Materials and other poltutants and contaminants applicable to
its operations and responsibilities on the Leased Premises; and such training complies with any
and all Applicable Laws.

(€)-  Lessee agrees that it will neither handle nor store any Hazardous Materials on the
Leased Premises in excess of those required to carry out its permitted uses at the Leased Premises
and that all such Hazardous Materials will be stored, used and disposed of in accordance with
Applicable Law.

(©) Lessee shall provide City satisfactory documentary evidence of all such requisite
legal permits and notifications as hereinabove required. -

{2) Lessee agrees to cooperate with any investigation, audit or inquiry by City or any
Governmental Authority regarding possible violation of any Environmeéntal Law relating to its
operations on the Leased Premises or at the Airport.

18.2  Generator of Hazardous Waste, If Lessee is deemed to be a generator of hazardous waste,
as defined by Applicable Law, Lessee shall obtain an EPA identification number and the
appropriate generator permit and shall comply with all Environemental Laws applicable to a
generator of hazardous waste including, but not limited to, ensuring that the appropriate
transportation and disposal of such materials are conducted in full compliance with
Environemental Law,

183  Inventory List. Lessee shall maintain an accurate inventory list (including quantities) of
all such Hazardous Materials, whether stored, disposed of or recycled, available at all times for
inspection at any time on the Leased Premises by City officials and also by Fire Department
Officials or regulatory personnel having jurisdiction over the Leased Premises, for implementation
of proper storage, handling and disposal procedures.

184  Notification and Copies. Notification of all activities refating to Hazardous Materials by
Lessee shall be provided on a timely basis to City or such other agencies as required by Applicable
Law. Lessee agrees that a twenty-four (24) hour emergency coordinator and phone number shall
be furnished to City and to such aplicable Governmental Authorities in case of any spill, leak or
other emergency situation involving Hazardous Materials. Designation of this emergency

Ground Lease Page 26 of 43



coordmation may be required by Environemental Laws. Lessee agrees to provide City copies of
all permit application materials, permits, monitoring reports, environmental response plans, and
regulated materials storage and disposal plans related to the Leased Premises.

18.5  Violation,

(a) If City receives a notice from any Governmental Authority asserting a violation by
Lessee of Lessee’s covenants and agreements contained herein, or if City otherwise has reasonable
- grounds upon which to believe that such a violation has occurred, City shall have the right, but not
the obligation, to contract, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, for the services of persons ("Site
Reviewers") to enter the Leased Premises and perform environmental site assessments for the
purpose of determining whether there exists any environmental condition that could result in any
Jiability, cost or expense to City. The Site Reviewers shall perform such tests on the Leased
Premises as may be necessary, in the opinion of the Site Reviewers, to conduct a prudent
environmental site assessment. Lessee shall supply such information as is requested by the Site
Reviewers. In the event City conducts testing due to information other than a notice of violation
from a Governmental Authority, and the testing does not reveal any contamination in excess of
permissible EPA. tolerances, other than the contamination referenced in Article 21 of this Lease,
City agrees to bear all costs association with the testing.

(b) If Lessee receives a Notice of Violation or similar enforcement action or notice of
noncompliance, Lessee shall provide a copy of same to City within twenty-four (24) hours of
receipt by Lessee or Lessee’s agent.

18.6  City Liability. Should any environmental damages to the Leased Premises be wholly
caused by City or its agents, employees or contractors, City shall be responsible for any liability
arising out of those damages and agrees to remedy or remediate such damages in a reasonable
manner and time.

ARTICLE 19
- FEDERAL STORM WATER REGULATIONS

Lessee acknowledges that certain properties and uses of properties within the Airport or on City
owned land are subject to Federal storm water regulations. Lessee agrees to observe and abide by
said regulations as applicable to the Leased Premises and its operations at the Airport. Lessee
agrees to participate in any City-organized task force or other work group established to coordinate
storm water activities at the Airport. In addition, Lessee agrees to participate in City’s
Environmental Compiiance Program and is subject to and agrees to periodic inspections conducted
by Airport staff to monitor the management, handling, storage, and disposal practices associated
with any Hazardous Materials. Lessee shall be strictly liable for, and hereby expressly assumes all
responsibility for all citations, fines, environmental controls and monitoring, clean-up and
disposal, restoration and corrective measures resulting from or in any way connected with the
improper use, handling, storage or disposal of all pollutants or contaminated materials, as same
are defined by Applicable Law, by Lessee or any Lessee Parties, suppliers of service or providers
of materials, regardless of whether or not a default notice has been issued and notwithstanding any
other obligations imposed upon Lessee pursuant to the terms of this Lease.

Ground Lease Page 27 of 43



ARTICLE 20
ENVIRONMENTAL INSPECTION

20.1  Environmental Tuspection at Commencement of Lease Term. Prior to beginning any
construction on the Leased Premises, Lessee shall obtain, at its cost and expense, a Phase [
Environmental Report on the Leased Premises. If required or indicated by the Phase I
Environmental Report, Lessee shall also pay the cost of a Phase II Environmental Report. The
Phase I Environmental Report (and if necessary, the Phase I Environmental Report) shall be used
to and establish a base line indicating the current condition of the Leased Premises (herein after
referred to as the “Base Line Environmental Reports™). '

20.2  Pre-Existing Contamination. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessee
shall have no liability or responsibility to the City or to any other third-party with respect to any
Pre-Existing Environmental Condjtion or any Third-Party Environemental Condition at the
Airport, including the Leased Premises. The term “Pre-Existing Environmental Condition,” as
used in this Lease, means the presence in soil, rock, bedrock, sediment, surface water,
groundwater, drinking water, or other environmental media (including soil vapors or gases) o,
under, in, or around the Leased Premises of any Hazardous Materials or any substance, material,
or matter regulated under Environmental Laws or any substance, material, or matter for which
liability or standards of conduct may be imposed under Applicable Laws and which Lessee
demonstrates were present on or before the Effective Date, and including any subsequent
migration, movement, or transformation of such substances, materials, matter, or Hazardous
Materials after the Effective Date. The term “Third-Party Environmental Condition,” as used in
this Lease, means the presence in soil, rock, bedrock, sediment, surface water, groundwater,
drinking water, or other environmental media (including soil vapors or gases) on, under, in, or
around the Leased Premises of any Hazardous Materials or any substance, material, or matter
regulated under Environmental Laws or any substance, material, or matter for which liability or
standards of conduct may be imposed under Applicable Laws, and the presence of which Lessee
demonstrates were or are caused or permitted by any Person not affiliated with Lessee or any
Lessee Party, and whether or not such substances, materials, matter, or Hazardous Materials were
or are present on, before, or after the Term Commencement Date.

20.3 Environmental Inspection at End of Lease Term. Within the last sixty (60) days of the
Term or within sixty (60) days after earlier Lease termination, City shall have the right to have an
environmental inspection performed to determine the status of any Hazardous Materials, including,
but not limited to asbestos, PCBs, PFAS, and urea formaldehyde, and radon gas existing on the
Leased Premises or whether any said substances have been generated, released, stored or deposited
over, or then exist beneath or on the Leased Premises from any source.

Lessee hereby expressly agrees to indemnify and hold City and each City Party harmless from and
against any and all liability for fines and physical damage to property or injury or death to persons,
including reasonable expense and atforney’s fees, to the extent arising from or resulting out of, or
in any way caused by, Lessee’s failure to comply with any and all applicable Environmental Laws.
Lessee understands that this indemnification is in addition to and is a supplement of Lessee’s
indemnification set forth in other provisions of this Lease and Lessee is in full understanding to
the extent of this indemnification and hereby expressly acknowledges that it has received full and

Ground Lease Fage 28 of 43



adequate consideration and that City would not execute this Lease without this indemnity. This
provision of the lease shall survive termination of the Lease.

With regard to any contamination caused by Lessee, or arising by reason of Lessee’s use or
occupancy of the Leased Premises, Lessee shall immediately take such action as is necessary to
clean up and remediate the Leased Premises at its own expense in accordance with applicable
Environemental Laws. The remediation must continue until the Governmental Authorities with
Jurisdiction have determined that no further action is necessary; it being understood and agreed
that Lessee shall be obligated to clean-up and remedijate the Leased Premises to achieve such
standards or clean-up levels as are reasonably required by the City for properties at the Airport. If
the City is unable to lease the Leased Premises during the period of cleanup and remediation due
to the environmental condition or cleanup work being performed, in addition to any other damages,
Lessee shall be responsible for payment of lost rent or lost use to the City.

The firm(s) conducting the site inspection or the site cleanup work must be qualified and approved
by City, and the methodology used by such firm shall be consistent with the then current
engineering practices and methods required by the State of Louisiana or the United States
government and be acceptable to City.

Lessee understands and agrees that it is strictly liable for any environmental violation or harm, or
any contamination to the soil or the water table under the Leased Premises to the extent caused by
Lessee or occutring by reason of Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Leased Premises. Said liability
shall extend beyond the term of the Lease until the Premises are retested and determined to be free
of contamination.

City understands and agrees that it is strictly liable for any environmental violation or harm, or any
contamination to the soil or the water table under the City property to the extent caused by City or
occurring by reason of City’s use or occupancy of the Leased Premises. Said liability shall extend
beyond the term of the Lease until the Premises are retested and determined to be free of
contamination.

ARTICLE 21
STORAGE TANKS

Lessee agrees that it will not have any underground or above ground storage tanks (“Tanks”) on
the Leased Premises unless specifically authorized in writing by City. If any tank is authorized by
City, Lessee covenants and agrees that it will comply with all Applicable Laws conceming the
installation, operation, maintenance and inspection of Tanks including financial responsibility and
corrective action requirements.

ARTICLE 22
NONDISCRIMINATION

Lessee acknowledges that the City is required by the FAA under the terms of certain agreements
between the City and the United States of America relative to the operation or maintenance of the
Alrport, the execution of which has been required as a condition precedent to the grant or receipt
of federal funds for the development of the Alrport, to include in this Lease certain required
contract provisions, attached as Exhibit D hereto (the “Federal Nondiscrimination Clauses™).

Ground Lease Page 29 of 43



Lessee agrees to comply with the Federal Nondiscrimination Clauses and, where applicable,
include the Federal Nondiscrimination Clauses int each of its subcontracts without limitation or
alteration. Lessee further agrees to comply with any modification to or interpretation of the Federal
Nondiscrimination Clauses that may from time to time be required by the FAA or other agency
with jurisdiction, within thirty (30) days of receiving notice from the City of such required
modifications.

ARTICLE 23
RIGHTS RESERVED TO CITY

Rights not specifically granted to Lessee by this Lease are expressly and independently reserved
to City. City expressly reserves the right to prevent any use of the Leased Premises which would
- interfere with or adversely affect the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the authorized
operations of other Airport tenants or users, or otherwise constitute an Airport hazard,

ARTICLE 24
RIGHT OF ENTRY

City shail have the right to enter the Leased Premises during normal business hours with no less
than twenty-four (24) hours® notice to Lessee (which may be oral), except In an emergency, o
inspect the Leased Premises for the purpose of determining whether Lessee is in compliance with
the requirements of this Lease, provided such inspection does not unreasonably interfere with
Lessee’s business operations. If, upon inspecting the Leased Premises, the City reasonably
determines that the Lessee is not in compliance with this Lease, the City shall provide the Lessee
with a written notice of noncompliance listing the items that are not in compliance with this Lease.
[f'the Lessee does not initiate cotrective action to cure the items in noncompliance within ten (10)
days and pursue in a diligent manner to complete actions to cure said noncompliance, the City
may, but is not obligated to, cure said noncompliance items. In the event the City cures
noncompliance items, Lessee agrees to be liable to the City for payment of all costs incurred by
the City, including costs and administrative overhead fee of twenty-five percent (25%), which shall
be due and payable to the City as Additional Rent within thirty (30) days from the date of written
notice from the City. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, City reserves the
right to enter the Leased Premises at any time with or without notice in case of emergency.

ARTICLE 25
RIGHT OF FLIGHT

City reserves unto itself, its successors and assigns, for the use and benefit of the public, a right of
flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of the real property owned by
City, including without limitation the Leased Premises, together with the right to cause in said
airspace such noise as may be inherent in the operation of aircraft, now koown or hereafter used,
for navigation of or flight in the said airspace, and for use of said airspace for landing on, taking
off from or operating on the Airport. Lessee further expressly agrees for itself, its successors and
assigns to restrict the height of structures, objects of natural growth and other obstruction on
Leased Premises to such a height so as to comply with Title 14 CFR, Part 77.

Ground Lease Page 30 of 43



ARTICLY 26
SUBORDINATION TO DEED AND GRANT AGREEMENTS

This Lease shall be subject and subordinate to all the terms, and conditions of any instruments and
documents under which City acquired the land or improvements thereon constituting the Airport
or any portion thereof, of which said Leased Premises are a part, including the City’s Deed of
Acquisition from the United States of America, and this Lease shall be given only such effect as
will not conflict with nor be inconsistent with such terms and conditions. Lessee understands and
agrees that this Lease shall be subordinate to the provisions of any existing or future agreement
between City and the United States of America, the State of Louisiana, or any of its or their
agencies, relative to the operation or maintenance of the Airport, the execution of which has been
or may be required as a condition precedent to the grant or receipt of federal or State funds for the
development of the Airport, and to any terms or conditions imposed upon the Airport by any other
Governmental Authority. In the event that this Lease, either on its own terms or by any other
reason, conflicts with or violates the terms of any such deeds or agreements, City may unilateraity
amend, alter, or otherwise modify the terms of this Lease in order to resolve such conflict or
violation without compromising or destroying any remaining portions of this Lease, and such
remaining provisions shalt remain binding and in full effect upon the parties as if no such
amendment or alteration had occurred. Lessee acknowledges that it has been given the opportunity
to review all applicable existing grant agreements as of the Effective Date.

If, as a resuit of any future agreement or action under this Article, the City intends to unilaterally
alter, amend, or otherwise modify the terms of this Lease, the City shall give Lessee sixty (60)
days’ notice of its proposed actions and the reasons therefor. After being notified, Lessee may,
within its discretion, elect to terminate this Lease within the notice period. In the event Lessee
terminates this Lease, Lessee shall return the premises as set forth in Article 4.4 and title to any
Facility(ies) or improvements shall immediately transfer to the City. Lessee shall have no further
recourse against the City. :

ARTICLE 27
SIGNS

27.1 Written Approval. Except with the prior written approval of the City, which may not be
unreasonably withheld, Lessee shall not erect, maintain or display any signs or any advertising at
or on the exterior parts of the Leased Premises or in the Leased Premises so as to be visible from
outside the Leased Premises.

27.2 Removal. Upon the expiration or termination of the Lease, Lessee shall remove, obliterate
or paint out, as City may direct, at its sole discretion, any and al! signs and advertising on the
Leased Premises and, in connection therewith, shall restore the portion of the Leased Premises
affected by such signs or advertising to the same conditions as existed prior to the placement of
such signs or advertising. In the event of failure on the part of Lessee to remove, obliterate or paint
out each and every sign or advertising and to so restore the Premises, City may perform the
necessary work and Lessee shall pay these costs plus a 25% administrative fee to City.

Ground Lease Page 31 of 43



ARTICLE 28
QUIET ENJOYMENT

Subject to Lessee’s compliance with each and every requirement and obligation on its part to be
met under this Lease, City covenants and warrants that Lessee shall and may peaceably and quietly
have, hold and enjoy the Leased Premises and all parts thereof for the Term hereby granted, subject
to the terms and provisions hereof.

ARTICLE 29
MORTGAGE RIGHTS OF LESSEE

Notwithstanding the prohibition upon the placement or creation of liens set forth in this Lease,
including any leasehold interests created hereunder in the Leased Premises, the Lessee may, upon
prior written permission of the City, pledge the Lessee’s leasehold interest created hereunder
pursuant to a mortgage, deed of trust, security deed, or other security instrument encumbering the
leasehold estate created by this Lease (2 “Leasehold Mortgage™), provided that such pledge ismade
in connection with the financing or refinancing (a “Loan™) of amounts to be used solely for the
construction of the Project referenced herein or other improvements to the Leased Premises and
shall be subject, subordinate, and inferior at all times to the rights of the City under this Lease.
Approval of a Leasehold Mortgage may be given by the City only if, at a minimum, the following
conditions are satisfied:

(a) The documents which are to be used to finance and secure the proposed transaction
(Le. the obtaining of funds and placing of a leasehold mortgage) are submitted to
the City for review and approval prior to their execution by the putative lender (the
“Lender”) and the Lessee (the “Proposed Financing Documents™);

(b) The funds obtained via the transaction contemplated under the Proposed Financing
Documents are to be used solely for the construction of the Project, construction of
additional improvements to the Leased Premises approved by the City, or
refinancing any Loan for such purposes;

(¢) The entity providing the Loan shall be a financial institution regularly engaged in
the business of making mortgage loans secured by commercial properties, with a
net worth of not less than twenty million dollars ($20,000,000) which is not an
affiliate of Lessee (a “Lender™);

(d) The Lender must certify to the City that it has reviewed this Lease and accepted
provisions that may affect the Leasehold Mortgagee and that no loan requirements
conflict with or materially diminish any provisions of this Lease;

(e) The Proposed Financing Documents include the following terms:

(i The encumbrances under the Proposed Financing Documents shall be
subordinate to the City’s interests under this Lease;

Ground Lease Page 32 of 43



(i)

(iii)

(i)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

)

The term of any such Loan shall not exceed the Temi of this Lease
(excluding any extensions);

Upon any default by the Lessee under the note, mortgage, or any of the other
Proposed Financing Documents (a “Financing Default™), the City shall have
a lien with first priority on all Lessee-owned property at the Leased
Premises; '

The Lender agrees to provide and maintain current contact information with
the City and provide the City with concurrent copies of any notices or
communications regarding a Financing Default;”

The City shall be notified at least seven (7) days prior to the Lender
exercising its rights under the Leasehold Mortgage to take possession or
control of the Lessee’s business or the Leased Premises or any portion
thereof;

The Lender explicitly agrees that the Leased Premises and any
improvements made thereupon must be used solely for the permitted uses
set forth in this Lease and no others, and any change in use may occur only
upon prior written permission of the City, which the City may grant or deny
in its sole discretion;

The Leasehold Mortgage may secure only Lessee’s obligations with respect
to a Loan that will be applied to finance or refinance improvements to the
Leased Premises and may not cross collateralize or secure any other loans
or obligations of Lessee;

In the event that the Lender exercises its security interest in the Leasehold
Mortgage to take possession or control of the Lessee’s business, the Leased
Premises, or any part thereof, the Lender is limited to a total period of

“twelve (12) months to locate a replacement tenant that is acceptable to the

City, in its reasonable discretion. In the event that a tenant acceptable to the
City is not obtained within the above-referenced twelve (12) month period,
then the Leasehold Mortgage shall terminate and all of the Lender’s rights
in this Lease, the Improvements constructed upon the Leased Premises, or
any part thereof shall be extinguished; '

The Lender agrees to hold the City harmless for any damages the Lender
may incur as a result of any action or inaction in connection with the
exercise of the City’s rights under this provision of the Lease or the related
Proposed Financing Documents, including, without limitation the
Leasehold Mortgage; and :

Any Financing Default relating to the encumbrances under the Proposed
Financing Documents shall be a default of this Lease.

Ground Lease

Page 33 of 43



®

)

(h)

Failure to Comply. If the Lender or other lienholder fails to comply with any of
the foregoing requirements, such failure shall be an Event of Default under this
Lease and the City may at any time (but is not required to) terminate this Lease and
exercise any rights the City may have under this Lease for an Event of Default.

No Additional Leasehold Mortgages. Lessee may enter into and encumber the

Leased Premises with only one Leasehold Mortgage in accordance with this Article
3]at any time. '

Lender’s Right to Cure. If Lessee enters into a Leasehoid Mortgage in accordance
with this Article 30, and if the Lessee or the Lender has notified the City pursuant
to this Lease of the existence of such Leasehold Mortgage and has provided the
address to which any notices to the Lender are to be mailed, then all notices given
under this Lease to the Lessee shall also be sent to the Lender at the address

provided by the Lender to the City. Any notice properly mailed to Lender by

registered mail, postage and fees prepaid, shall be deemed delivered when mailed,
whether received or not. The Lender shall have the right to remedy any defauit
under this Lease or cause the same to be remedied and the City shall accept such
performance by or at the direction of such Lender as if the same had been made by
the Lessee. From the date the Lender receives notice of an occurrence of default
from the City there shall be added to any grace period allowed by the terms of this
Lease an additional ten (10) days, in the case of default in payment of Rent due
under this Lease, or an additional thirty (30) days, in the case of all other defau Its,
for such Lender to cure the same beyond the time allowed to the Lessee. In case of
a default, other than failure to pay Rent, the City shall not be permitted to terminate

- this Lease by reason of the occurrence of such default if the Lender, within thirty

@

(30) days after the giving of notice of such defaunlt, commences foreclosure or
similar proceedings under the Leasehold Mortgage for the purpose of acquiring the
Lessee’s interest in this Lease and thereafter diligently prosecutes the same, and
shall bring current all payments of Rent payable by the Lessee hereunder, The
Lender may become the legal owner and holder of the leasehold estate under this
Lease by foreclosure of its Leasehold Mortgage or as a result of the assignment of
this Lease in lieu of foreclosure. While such Leasehold Mortgage is in effect, the
City shall not accept any surrender of cancellation of this Lease by the Lessee or
amend or modify any material provision of this Lease without the Lender’s prior
written consent, which such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Notwithstanding any term or provision of any Leasehold Mortgage or this Lease to
the contrary, under no circumstances shall any such Leasehold Mortgage or Loan
constitute an indebtedness or obligation or the City nor shall the City be liable in
any way for the payment of any portion of the indebtedness evidenced by such
Leasehold Mortgage or for the payment or performance of any obligation
thereunder or secured thereby. Nothing in this Lease shall operate as a pledge of
the City’s credit within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt
limitation.

Ground Lease

Page 34 of 43



(3) The City agrees to consider, in good faith, reasonable modifications to this Lease
at the request of the Lender, should the Lender deem such modifications required
as a condition of financing. The City shall not be required to grant such
modifications.

ARTICLE 30
RENT A SEPARATE COVENANT

Lessee shall not for any reason withhold or reduce Lessee’s required payments of Rent and other
charges provided in this Lease, it being expressly understood and agreed by the Parties that the
payment of Rent and any other rents, fees or charges provided hereunder is a covenant by Lessee
that is independent of the other covenants of the Parties hereunder.

ARTICLE 31
ASSIGNMENT

Lessee shall not sublease or assign, directly or indirectly, this Lease, either in whole or in part,
without prior written consent of City which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed; provided, however, that it shall not be unreasonable for the City to require
that any assignee or subtenant meet certain objective financial worth and operational standards.
Any assignment or sublease without the written consent of the City shall be void ab initio and of
no force or effect. No request for, or consent to, such assignment shall be considered unless Lessee
shall have paid all rentals, fees, and charges which have accrued in favor of City and Lessee shali
otherwise be in compliance with all other legal obligations to be performed, kept, and observed by
it under the terms and conditions of this Lease or as this Lease may be subsequently amended or
modified. City reserves the right fo investigate the financial capacity of the proposed assignee prior
to making its decision, and LESSEE SHALL REMAIN LIABLE FOR ALL OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS
LEASE AFTER SUCH ASSIGNMENT OR SUBLEASE. If the City’s consent to a sublease is given,
Lessee shall comply with the provisions of Section 6.6 hereof regarding calculation and payment
of Transaction Rent. Lessee shall provide City a copy of the proposed sublease agreement prior to
any request for consent. All subleases shall be limited to a term of one (1) year unless otherwise
agreed to in writing by City.

If there shall occur any change in the ownership of and/or power to vote the majority of the
outstanding capital stock or membership interest of Lessee, whether such change or ownership is
by sale, assignment, bequest, inheritance, operation of law or otherwise, Lessee shall have an
affirmative obligation to notify immediately City of any such change.

ARTICLE 32
EMINENT DOMAIN AND DAMAGE TO LEASED PREMISES

32,1 Damage to, Destruction or Condemnation of Airport.

In the event any Governmental Authority shall, by exercise of the right of eminent domain or any
other power, acquire title in whole or in part of the Airport, including any portion assigned to

Ground Lease Page 35 of 43



Lessee, Lessee shall have no right of recovery whatsoever against City but shall make its claim for
compensation solely against such Governmental Authority.

32.2 Damage or Destruction of Leased Premises. If the Leased Premises shali be partially
damaged by fire or other casualty, but not rendered untenantable, the same shall be repaired with
due diligence by the Lessee at its own cost and expense, and the Rent payable hereunder with
respect to the Leased Premises shall continue to be paid. If the damage shall be so extensive as to
render such Leased Premises untenantable but capable of being repaired in ninety (90) days, the
same shall be repaired with due diligence by the Lessee at its own cost and expense, and the Rent
payable hereunder with respect to the Leased Premises shall continue to be paid. The City shall
use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Lessee with altemate premises which shall, to the
extent reasonably possible, be comparable in size, type, character, condition, and suitability for
Lessee’s operations during such period of repair or reconstruction.

323 Untenantable Conditions.

In case the Facility is completely destroyed by fire or other casualty or so damaged that it will
remain untepantable for more than ninety (90) days, or in case it does so remain untenantable for
more than ninety (90) days, at the option of Lessee either (i) the Lessee shall repair or reconstruct
- the Facility with due diligence at its own cost and expense, and the Rents payable hereunder with
respect to the Leased Premises shall be proportionately paid up to the time of such damage or
destruction and shall thenceforth cease until such time as the Leased Premises shall be repaired so
as to be usable by Lessee for its permitted purposes; or (ii) within sixty (60) days after the time of
such damage or destruction and before the said Leased Premises are restored, Lessee shall give the
City notice of its intention to cancel this Lease, in which case this Lease shall forthwith cease and
determine, and Lessee shall pay over to the City all proceeds of property damage insurance relating
to the damaged Facility and Leased Premises. If the Leased Premises occupied or used by Lessee
hereunder, or any portion thereof, are damaged or destroyed and thereby rendered untenantable
for more than ninety (90) days, the City may provide Lessee with alternate premises which will,
to the extent reasonably possible, be comparable in convenience, size, type, character, condition,
and suitability for Lessee’s operations, during such period of repair or reconstruction. Except to
the extent the City provides Lessee with such alternative Leased Premises, Lessee shail not be
obligated to pay Rent for such untenantable portion during such time as it remains untenantable.
Provided, that there shall be no abatement or reduction of Rent where the untenantable condition
is caused by the willful misconduct or negligent act or omission of Lessee, or its officer,
employees, contractors, subcontractors or agents, except to the extent of proceeds of business
interruption or other similar insurance received with respect to such damage or destruction.

ARTICLE 33
NO ACCEPTANCE OF SURRENDER

No act or thing done by City or any City Party during the term of this Lease shall be deemed an
acceptance of the surrender of this Lease and no acceptance of a surrender shall be valid unless in
writing:

Ground Lease . Page 36 of 43



ARTICLE 34
PERSONAL PROPERTY

Any personal property of Lessee or of others placed in the Leased Premises shall be at the sole risk
of Lessee or the owners thereof, and City shall not be liable for any loss or damage thereto,
irrespective of the cause of such loss or damage, and Lessee hereby waives all rights of subrogation
or recovery from City for such damage, destruction or loss.

ARTICLE 35
APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE

Notwithstanding any other provision of any Applicable Laws, this Lease shall be construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana. Venue for any action brought pursuant to this
Lease shall be solely in Ouachita Parish, Louisiana. Any action for breach of or enforcement of
any provision of this Lease shall be brought in a court of appropriate jurisdiction in and for
Ouachita Parish, Louisiana.

ARTICLE 36
ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS

In the event legal action is required hereunder to enforce the rights of the parties pursuant to this
Lease, each party in such action shall pay its own costs and attorney’s fees, including appellate
fees.

ARTICLE 37
INVALIDITY OF CLAUSES

The invalidity of any portion, article, paragraph, provision or clause of this Lease shall have no
effect upon the validity of any other part of portion thereof.

ARTICLE 38
NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS

All notices or other communications to City or to Lessee pursuant hereto shall be deemed validly
given, served, or delivered, upon delivery in person or by courier service and, if mailed, upon three
(3) days after deposit in the United States mail, certified and with proper postage and certified fee
prepaid, or one (1) day after delivery to a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, fees
pre-paid, addressed as follows: '

To City: ' To Lessee:

Charles Butcher Philip Thomas
Airport Director Pilots For Patients
City of Monroe 55106 Operations Rd
P. 0. Box 123 Monroe, LA 71201
Monroe, LA 71210 318-322-5112

318-329-2460

Ground Lease Page 37 of 43



or to such other address as the addressee may designate in writing by notice to the other Party
delivered in accordance with the provisions of this Axticle.

ARTICLE 39
FEDERAL RIGHT TO RECLAIM

In the event a United States governmental agency shall demand and take over the entire facilities
of the Airport or the portion thereof wherein the Leased Premises are located, for public purposes,
then this Lease shall hereupon terminate and City shall be reteased and fully discharged from any
and all liability hereunder. In the event of such termination, Lessee’s obligation to pay Rent shall
cease; however, nothing herein shall be construed as relieving Lessee from any of its liabilities
relating to events or claims of any kind whatsoever prior to such termination under this Article .

ARTICLE 40
RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

Lessee is and shall be deemed to be an independent contractor and operator responsible to all
parties for its respective acts or omissions, and City shall in no way be responsible for such acts or
omissions nor shall the City and Lessee be considered as joint venturers. Nothing in this Lease is
intended to create any third-party beneficiaries hereto.

ARTICLE 41
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Simultaneously with providing any records to the City, Lessee shal} identify any such records that
Lessee claims are confidential or trade secrets (“Confidential Information™) under Louisiana law.
In the event the City receives any public records request for such Confidential Information, the
City shall notify Lessee and allow Lessee a reasonable opportumity, consistent with Applicable
Laws, to seek judicial relief prior to disclosing any such Confidential Information. If Lessee fails
to identify any such records as Confidential Information when they are initially provided to the
authority, the City may disclose such records pursuant to a public records request without notice
to Lessee.

ARTICLE 42
NO INDIVIDUAL LIABILITY

The Parties agree that neither the directors or Board members, nor any officer, employee,
representative, or agent of either Party shall be personally liable for the satisfaction of such Party’s
obligations under this Lease, and each Party shall look solely to the assets of the other for
satisfaction of any claims hereunder.

ARTICLE 43
MISCELLANEOUS

All of the terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon and the benefits inure to the Parties
hereto and their heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

Ground Lease Page 38 of 43



This Lease, and instruments or documents relating to same, shall be construed under Louisiana
law.

~ This Lease represents the complete Lease between the Parties and any prior agreements or
representations, whether written or verbal, are hereby superseded.

This Lease may subsequently be amended only by written instrument signed by the City and
Lessee. '

Nothing in this Lease shall operate to waive any sovereign or governmental immunity protections
available to the Cify under applicable law.

ARTICLE 44
SHORT-FORM LEASE

City and Lessee shall execute and record a short form or memorandum of this Lease in customary
form and content, setting forth, at a minimum, the leasehold interest granted hereunder, the Term
of this Lease and the prohibition against construction liens for Lessee’s improvements. The
original of this Lease shall not be recorded.

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank
Signature Page Follows

Ground Lease Page 39 of 43



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Lessee have hereunto set their hands and seals the day

and year first above written.

CITY:
CITY OF MONROE

BY:

LESSEE: :
PILOTS FOR PATIENTS

BY:

Printed Name: Stacey Rowell
Title: Director of Administration

Printed Name: Philip Thomas
Title: President and Founder

- WITNESSES FOR CITY: WITNESSES FOR LESSEE
Signature Signature
Name Printed Name Printed
Signature Signature
Name Printed Name Printed

Ground Lease

Page 40 of 43



EXHIBIT A
LEASED PREMISES

Ground Lease Form Exhibit A



AUGUST 13, 2616
REVISED: AUGUST 18, 2016

A LEGAL DESCRIPTION
OF
VACANT LAND
AT
MONROE REGIONAL AIRFORT
ACRES (70,094.36 SQ. FT)
FOR
CITY OF MONROE -
SITUATED YN
SECTION 68, T-18-N, R-4-E
OUACHITA PARISH, LOUISIANA

Commencing from a found wagon axle at the Southwest cotner of Section 35, T-18-N, R-4-E,
Guachita Parish, Louisiana; thence, North 52°46736™ West, a distance 0f 5993.11° to a found 5/
rebar at the Northeast property corner of Tisdale Converting, LI.C. as recorded in Conveyance Book
1722, Page 552 of the records of Ouachita Parish, Louisiana; thence, North 41°22°32” Fast, a
distance of 4038.34° to a point and being the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence, North 40°12°37>
West, a distance of 360.65” to a point; thence, North 49°34°29” Fast, a distance of 195.31° to apoint;
thence, South 40"27’48” East, a dmtancc of 343.83" to a point; thence, South 50°19” 42’ West, a
distance of 55.25° to a point; thence, South 41°23°47” East, a distance of 2028 toa pomt thence,

South 49°39°21” West, a distance 0of $7.62° ta a point; thence, South 52°55°0%” West, a distance of
44.44" back to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 1.609 acres (70,094.36 sq. ft.} more or
less. '

This survey depicts the buildings and existing equipment to be conveyed and not the property that
the buildings and equipment occupy.

Ownership of land that the buildings and equipment are on belongs 1o the City of Monroe and will

not be conveyed.

f*@

RMDY A. JENMON *
REG. «.o 4798 2 i
PFGISTEREH O IE
. PRYFESSHAAL j’f;i/‘z’?
L

£
%'S‘T/z’/ \\Q\\-@p
& SUR\I‘?,

'z;
i

iw



of A}

MRS LV

]
| | nEe |
! (NOILSNEVI) M4 OO | et | RS Egggs
. ]
i YNVISINGT "2OHNOW | ] m)l §g§E§
gty

A1.01

SINBILYS HO4 SLO NG| 5T mars
fhif SN0 ONY HYONYH vaN & T 5

T 3

e

[

0 PROPOSED FLOGR FLAN




A1AET T s At A
F N L LT e
3 HHA" 40 Lo

3

EiE—

3
armra

ALl
Thet
HOBIA Sl
vt
[
Er=T
‘L]

V¥ smoioo
e
i

SININY H0d S107d

BIDIAH0 ONV UYDNYH MIN

i

YHYISINGT SOENO

SNOLLYAT IS B0IALKT]

It L




B Tty

1

; _

H == s .2
masr 1 TR N v PEBESREE & | e i
=t 1 SMEAGE ety RS | i O :
i Igii . o e raEgEne - :

| YNVISING T ‘ZOMNON IEIERLERLL | ) ;

E;Hﬂ!p SINBILYA HOZ SLOTId [~ | s VSl 3§§Eg§§ﬁ <t )

bl SO0 ANV HVONH MINT 3 T i

90 VIEW @ PARKING LOT
(ot
W {




EXHIBIT B
RENT SCHEDULE

Year 1 -$10,513.20

Year 18 - $12,170.34

Year 2 - $10,513.20

Year 19 - $12,170.34

Year 3 - $10,513.20

Year 20 - $12,778.86

Year 4 - $10,513.20

Year 21 - $12,778.86

Year 5 - $11,038.86

Year 22 - $12,778.86

Year 6 - $11,038.86

Year 23 - $12,778.86

Year 7-511,038.86

Year 24 - $12,778.86

Year § - $11,038.86

Year 25 - $13,417.80

Year 9 - $11,038.86

Year 26 - $13,417.80

Year 10 - $§11,590.80

Year 27 - $13,417.80

Year 11 - $11,590.80

Year 28 - $13,417.80

Year 12 - $11,590.80

Year 29 - §13,417.80

Year 13 - $11,590.80

Year 30 - $14,088.69

Year 14 - $11,590.80 Fair Market Rent Adjustment
Year 15 -$12,170.34
Year 16 - $12,170.34
Year 17 - $12,170.34
Ground Lease Form Exhibit B




LWE]

EXHIBIT C
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Workers” Compensation and Emplovers’ Liability. Insurance in accordance with the
State of Louisiana Statutory Requirements. Limits shall not be less than:

Workers’ Compensation Statutory requirements

Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 limit each accident
$1,000,000 limit disease aggregate
$1,000,000 limit disease each employee

Property. Wind, Fire & Flood Insurance. Lessee shall agree to maintain: (1) Property
insurance written on a replacement cost basis in an amount not less than 100% of the
replacement cost of Lessee’s building(s) and contents, including without limitation the
Facility (if any), and including betterments and improvements made by or on behalf of
lessee, located on the Leased Premises. Coverage shall be written on a replacement cost
basis and include an endorsement for Ordinance & Law coverage; (2) Flood insurance,
regardless of the flood zone, in an amount not less than 100% of the actual cash value of
Lessee’s building(s) and contents, including betterments and improvements made by or oxn
behalf of Lessce, located on the Leased Premises, or the maximum amount available from
the National Flood Insurance Program, whichever is less.

Commercial General Liability. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including
Premises & Operations, Personal Injury, Contractual for this Lease, Independent
Contractors, and Broad Form property Damage including Completed Operations.

Limits of coverage shall not be less than:

$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit each occurrence Bodily Injury, Personal Injury and
Property Damage Liability,

OR
$5,000,000 each occurrence and aggregate for liability associated with all operations
under this specific Lease. The aggregate limits shall be separately applicable to this
Lease.

Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability Insurance shail be maintained by Lessee as to
the ownership, maintenance and use of all owned, non-owned, leased or hired vehicles
which are tagged and used commercially on City’s premises with limits of not less than:

Bodily Injury Liability $1,000,000 limit each person/$1,000,000 limit each
accident :

Property Damage Liability $1,000,000 limit each accident, or $3,000,000 for
vehicles driven on the airside of the Airport

Ground Lease Form Exhibit C



OR
Bodily Injury and $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit each occurrence, or
$3,000,000 for vehicles driven on the airside of the
Airport

5. Umbrella Liabilitv or Excess Liability. Umbrella Liability of Excess Liability Insurance
shall not be less than $1,000,000 each occurrence and aggregate. The limits of primary
liability insurance for the General Liability and Employers’ Liability insurance COVEerages
required in this section shall be not less than $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit each

occurrence and aggregate where applicable for Bodily Injury, Personal Injury, and Property
Damage liability.

- 6. Hangarkeeper’s Legal Liabilitv. If stored aircraft are part of the Lessee’s operations,
Lessee shall agree to maintain Hangarkeeper’s Legal Liability providing property damage
to aircraft which are the property of others and in the care, custody, or control of the Lessee,
but only while such aircraft are not in flight, in an amount not less than $10,000,000 any
one aircraft, $15,000,000 any one occurrence. '

7. Additional Insured Lessee agrees to endorse City as an Additional Insured with a
CG2026 Additional Insured — Designated Person or Organization endorsement, or similar
endorsement, to the Commercial General Liability and Business Automobile Liability,
naming the City as an additional insured to the extent of Lessee’s indemnity obligation set
out in Section 18 of this Lease.

Right to Revise or Reject The City reserves the right, but not the obligation, to review and
revise any insurance requirement, not limited to limits, coverages and endorsements based on
insurance market conditions affecting the availabifity or affordability of coverage; or changes
in the scope of work / specifications affecting the applicability of coverage, but prior to
requiring any increase in coverage or other change in any endorsement or other coverage, the
City shall demonstrate that such change is reasonable based on industry standards or is
reasonably necessary based on the risks associated with the Lessee’s use and operation of the
Leased Premises. Additionally, the City reserves the right, but not the obligation, to review and
reject any insurance policies failing to meet the criteria stated herein or any insurer providing
coverage due of its poor financial condition or failure to operating legally, provided that
nothing in this Lease requires the Lessee to provide to the City copies of any insurance policy
obtained or maintained by the Lessee. It is furthered agreed that Lessee shall not do or permit to
be done anything upon any portion of the Leased Premises or bring or keep anything thereon
which will in any way conflict with the conditions of any insurance policies upon the Leased
Premises to jeopardize coverage, or by its existence exempt an insurer from coverage for liability
or casualty, or which will increase the rate of the insurance on the Leased Premises, or which will
in any way obstruct or interfere with the rights of other tenants at the Airpori. Any policy

Ground Lease Form Exhibit C



provided by Lessce shall be primary insurance for any event ocourring on the Leased Premises
or otherwise indemnified by Lessee, and provide that the Lessee’s insurer shall not subrogate
against the City or its insurer.

Ground Lease Form - Exhibit C



A.

EXHIBIT D

REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Provisions. During the performance of this

Agreement, Lessee, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “Lessee”) agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Regulations: Lessee will comply with the Title VI List of
Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities, as they may be amended
from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of
this Agreement.

Non-discrimination: Lessee, with regard to the work performed by it during the
term of this Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or
national origin in the selection and retention of contractors, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. Lessee will not participate
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination
Acts and Autborities, including employment practices when the contract covers
any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21.

Solicitations for Agreements, Including Procurements of Materials and
Equipment: In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation
made by Lessee for work to be performed under a subconiract, including
procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential contractor or
supplier will be notified by Lessee of Lessee’s obligations under this Agreement
and the Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities on the grounds ofrace, color, or
national origin. '

Information and Reports: Lessee will provide all information and reports
required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and
will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information,
and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation
Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such
Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities and instructions. Where any
information required of Lessee is in the exclusive possession of another who fails
or refuses to furnish the information, Lessee will so certify to City or the Federal
Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has
made to obtain the information.

Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of Lessee’s noncompliance with
the Non-discrimination provisions of this contract, City will impose such
sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be
appropriate, including, but not limited to cancelling, terminating, or suspending
the Agreement, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions: Lessee will include the provisions of paragraphs
one through six of this Exhibit D. Section (A) in every contract, including

Ground Lease Form Exhibit D



procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts,
the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. Lessee will take action
with respect to any contract or procurement as City or the Federal Aviation
Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if Lessee becomes involved in, or is
threatened with litigation by a contractor, or supplier because of such direction,
Lessee may request City to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of
City. In addition, Lessee may request the United States to enter into the
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

B. Real Property Acquired or Improved Under the Airport Improvement Procram.
Lessee for itself, its heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part
of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land
that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property
described in this Agreement for a purpose for which a Federal Aviation Administration activity,
facility, or program is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services
or bepefits, Lessee will maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with ali
requirements imposed by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Regulations listed in the Pertinent List
of Nondiscrimination Authorities (as may be amended) such that no person on the grounds of
race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.

C. Construction/Use/Access to Real Property Acquired Under the Activity, Facility
or Program. Lessee for itself, its heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and
assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant
running with the land that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or naticnal origin, will be
exciuded from participation in, denied the benefits of; or be otherwise subjected to |
discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on,
over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground of race,
color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or
otherwise be subjected to discrimination, and (3) that Lessee will furnish its services in
compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to the List of Nondiscrimination
Acts And Authorities.

D. Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities. During the
performance of this Agreement, Lessee, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest
(hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:

.. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d ef seq., 78 stat.
252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);
il. 49 CFR Part 21 (Non-disctimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of The
Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights
Act of 1964);

ii.  The Uniform Relocation: Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies
Act 0f 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons

Grotund Lease Form Exhibit D



iv.

V1.

vii.

viil.

ix.

Xl

Xii.

displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-
aid programs and projects);

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 US.C. § 794 et seq.), as
amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR
Part 27;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 ez seq.),
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);

Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section
47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color,
national origin, or sex);

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the
scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act 0f 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities”
to include ali of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-

recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally
funded or not);

Titles II and I1I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit
discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities,
public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation,
and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 — 12189) as implemented by
Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR Parts 37 and 38;

The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C.

§ 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin,
and sex);

Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in
Mimority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-
discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs,
policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health
or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

Executive Order 13166, Improving Access o Services for Persons with
Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency
(LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to
ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed.
Reg. at 74087 to 74100); and

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits
you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities
(20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

Ground [ease Form

Exhibit D




E. General Civil Rights Provision. Lessee agrees to comply with pertinent statutes,
Executive Orders and such rules as are promulgated to ensure that 1o person shall, on the
grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from
participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal assistance. If Lessee
transfers its obligation to another, the transferee is obligated in the same manner as Lessee. This
provision obligates Lessee for the period during which the property is owned, used or possessed
by Lessee and the airport remains obligated to the Federal Aviation Administration. This
provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

F. Right of Re-entry. In the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination
covenants, City will have the right to terminate the Agreement and to enter, re-enter, and
repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold the same as if the Agreement had never been
made or issued.

G. Subcontracts. Lessee agrees that it shali insert the above six provisions (Section
(A) through Section (F)} in any agreement by which Lessee grants a right or privilege to any
person, iirm, or corporation to render accommodations and/or services to the public under this
Agreement.

Ground Lease Form Exhibit D



ORDINANCE

STATE OF LOUISIANA NO.
CITY OF MONROE

The following Ordinance was offered by Mr./Ms. who moved for its
adoption and was seconded by Mr./Ms, :

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF MONROE TO TAKE CORPOREAL
POSSESSION OF AND SELL TO KEVIN LEFE ALL RIGHTS, TITLE, AND INTEREST
THAT THE CITY MAY HAVE ACQUIRED TO LOTS 11 & 12, SQUARE 21,
ALEXANDERS ADDITION, AND THAT PORTION OF AN ALLEY REVOKED IN
BOOK 1334/673, ( NO SITUS) DICK TAYLOR ST., DISTRICT 4, OUACHITA PARISH,
MONROE, LA, BY ADJUDICATION AT TAX SALE DATED JUNE 4, 2018, AND
FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS the property described as follows, to-wit:

Lots 11 & 12, Square 21, Alexanders Addition
And that portion of an alley revoked in Book 1334/673
{No Situs) Dick Taylor St.

Ouachita Parish, Monroe, Louisiana
District 4
Parcel #48140

was adjudicated to the City of Monroe, Louisiana for non-payment of 2017 Ad Valorem Taxes
by Adjudication Deed dated and filed June 4, 2018, in Conveyance Book 2548 at page 904 of the
Records of Ouachita Parish, Louisiana and adjudicated to the City of Monroe, Louisiana. The
2017 Ad Valorem Taxes forming the basis for the described adjudication were validly assessed
by the City of Monroe against Glenda King Griffin:

WHEREAS, the City of Monroe has made efforts to contact Glenda King Guiffin by
registered mail and notification published in the News Star with no response;

WHEREAS, Kevin Lee wishes to purchase said property from the City of Monroe;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of La. R.S. 47:2238.1 et seq., property
adjudicated to the City of Monroe for more than five (5) years may be sold to a specific named
individual who has paid all taxes and other costs associated with the transfer of the property by
the City of Monroe to the named individual; and

WHEREAS, Kevin Lee has paid One Thousand Four Hundred Seventy-Five and 14/100
($1,475.14) which includes Eight Hundred Thirteen and 14/100 (3813.14) in City and Parish
taxes, the remainder being legal fees legal fees for the City of Monroe and the Parish of
Ouachita, advertising costs, mailing cost, and filing and recordation of all documents necessary
to accomplish the acquisition of the property and then transfer from the City to the new owner.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Moaroe,
Louisiana, in legal session convened, that the hereinafter described property is no longer needed
for public purposes; the City of Monroe has made efforts to contact Glenda King Griffin with no
response; the City of Monroe desires to sell to Kevin Lee the property described as follows:

Lots 11 & 12, Square 21, Alexanders Addition
And that portion of an alley revoked in Book 1334/673
{No Situs) Dick Taylor St,

Ouachita Parish, Monroe, Louisiana
District 4
Parcel #48140



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that a designated City representative is authorized to
execute all documents necessary to effectuate said sale.

This Ordinance was introduced on the day of July 2024.
Notice published on the day of July 2024.

This Ordimance having been submitted in writing, introduced and published, was then
submitted to a vote as a whole, the vote thereon being as follows:

AYES;
NAYS:
ABSENT:

And the Ordinance was declared ADOPTED on the day of August 2024,

CHAIRPERSON

CITY CLERK

MAYOR’S APPROVAL

MAYOR’S VETO



